
 
JOHN WARD 
Director of Corporate Services 
 
Contact: Fiona Baker on 01243 534609 
Email: fbaker@chichester.gov.uk 

 

East Pallant House 
1 East Pallant 
Chichester 
West Sussex 
PO19 1TY 
Tel: 01243 785166 
www.chichester.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
A meeting of Planning Committee will be held in Committee Rooms, East Pallant House 
on Wednesday 4 May 2022 at 9.30 am 
 
MEMBERS: Mrs C Purnell (Chairman), Rev J H Bowden (Vice-Chairman), 

Mr G Barrett, Mr B Brisbane, Mr R Briscoe, Mrs J Fowler, 
Mrs D Johnson, Mr G McAra, Mr S Oakley, Mr H Potter, Mr D Rodgers, 
Mrs S Sharp and Mr P Wilding 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

1   Chairman's Announcements  
 Any apologies for absence which have been received will be noted at this stage. 

 
The Planning Committee will be informed at this point in the meeting of any 
planning applications which have been deferred or withdrawn and so will not be 
discussed and determined at this meeting. 

2   Approval of Minutes (to follow)  
 The minutes relate to the meeting of the Planning Committee on 6 April 2022. 

3   Urgent Items  
 The chairman will announce any urgent items that due to special circumstances 

will be dealt with under agenda item 12. 

4   Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 2) 
 Details of members’ personal interests arising from their membership of parish 

councils or West Sussex County Council or from their being Chichester District 
Council or West Sussex County Council appointees to outside organisations or 
members of outside bodies or from being employees of such organisations or 
bodies. 
 
Such interests are hereby disclosed by each member in respect of agenda items in 
the schedule of planning applications where the Council or outside body 
concerned has been consulted in respect of that particular item or application. 
 
Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial 
interests are to be made by members of the Planning Committee in respect of 
matters on the agenda or this meeting. 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS - AGENDA ITEMS 5 TO 8 INCLUSIVE 
Section 5 of the Notes at the end of the agenda front sheets has a table  

showing how planning applications are referenced. 

5   CC/21/02880/ADV  48 East Street Chichester PO19 1HX (Pages 3 - 10) 

Public Document Pack



 1 no. non-illuminated fascia sign to front of building to replace existing. 

6   CC/21/02893/FUL 48 East Street Chichester PO19 1HX (Pages 11 - 17) 
 Shopfront re-painted with new paint. 

7   SI/21/02786/FUL Land South Of Telephone Exchange  Selsey Road 
Sidlesham PO20 7NG (Pages 19 - 33) 

 Change of use of land to storage of caravans and boats. Erection of secure 
storage building and associated hardstanding. (part retrospective). 

8   LX/20/01977/FUL Land West Of Guildford Road Loxwood West Sussex 
(Pages 35 - 99) 

 27 no. residential dwellings comprising 19 market units and 8 affordable residential 
units; a single retail unit, on-site parking and turning, hard and soft landscaping 
together with sustainable drainage system and alterations to a public right of way 

9   Chichester District Council Schedule of Planning Appeals, Court and Policy 
Matters (Pages 101 - 120) 

 The Planning Committee will consider the monthly schedule updating the position 
with regard to planning appeals, litigation and recent planning policy publications 
or pronouncements. 

10   South Downs National Park Authority Schedule of Planning Appeals, Court 
and Policy Matters (Pages 121 - 126) 

 The Planning Committee will consider the monthly schedule updating the position 
with regard to planning appeals, litigation and recent planning policy publications 
or pronouncements. 

11   Schedule of Contraventions (Pages 127 - 166) 
 The Planning Committee is asked to consider the quarterly schedule which 

updating the position with regards to planning enforcement matters.  

12   Consideration of any late items as follows:  
 The Planning Committee will consider any late items announced by the Chairman 

at the start of this meeting as follows: 
 

a) Items added to the agenda papers and made available for public inspection 

b) Items which the chairman has agreed should be taken as matters of 
urgency by reason of special circumstances to be reported at the meeting 

13   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 There are no restricted items for consideration. 
 
 

NOTES 
 

1. The press and public may be excluded from the meeting during any item of business 
whenever it is likely that there would be disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
section 100I of and Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 
 

2. The press and public may view the agenda papers on Chichester District Council’s website 
at Chichester District Council - Minutes, agendas and reports unless these are exempt 
items. 
 

3. This meeting will be audio recorded and the recording will be retained in accordance 
with the council’s information and data policies. If a member of the public makes a 
representation to the meeting they will be deemed to have consented to being audio 
recorded. By entering the committee room they are also consenting to being audio 
recorded. If members of the public have any queries regarding the audio recording of 

http://chichester.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


this meeting please liaise with the contact for this meeting detailed on the front of this 
agenda. 

 
4.   Subject to the provisions allowing the exclusion of the press and public, the photographing, 

filming or recording of this meeting from the public seating area is permitted. To assist with 
the management of the meeting, anyone wishing to do this is asked to inform the chairman 
of the meeting of his or her intentions before the meeting starts. The use of mobile devices 
for access to social media is permitted but these should be switched to silent for the 
duration of the meeting. Those undertaking such activities must do so discreetly and not 
disrupt the meeting, for example by oral commentary, excessive noise, distracting 
movement or flash photography. Filming of children, vulnerable adults or members of the 
audience who object should be avoided. [Standing Order 11.3 in the Constitution of 
Chichester District Council] 

 
5. Subject to Covid-19 Risk Assessments members of the public are advised of the following;  

 
a) Where public meetings are being held at East Pallant House in order to best manage 

the space available members of the public are in the first instance asked to listen to the 
meeting online via the council’s committee pages.  

b) Where a member of the public has registered to speak they will be invited to attend the 
meeting and will be allocated a seat in the public gallery.  

c) You are advised not to attend any face to face meeting if you have symptoms of Covid.  
 

6. How applications are referenced: 
 
a) First 2 Digits = Parish 
b) Next 2 Digits = Year 
c) Next 5 Digits = Application Number 
d) Final Letters = Application Type 
 
Application Type 

 
ADV Advert Application 

                    AGR Agricultural Application (following PNO) 
CMA County Matter Application (eg Minerals) 
CAC Conservation Area Consent  
COU Change of Use 
CPO Consultation with County Planning (REG3) 
DEM Demolition Application 
DOM Domestic Application (Householder) 
ELD Existing Lawful Development 
FUL Full Application 
GVT Government Department Application 
HSC Hazardous Substance Consent 
LBC Listed Building Consent 
OHL Overhead Electricity Line 
OUT Outline Application  
PLD Proposed Lawful Development 
PNO Prior Notification (Agr, Dem, Tel) 
REG3 District Application – Reg 3 
REG4 District Application – Reg 4 
REM Approval of Reserved Matters 
REN Renewal  (of Temporary Permission) 
TCA Tree in Conservation Area 
TEL Telecommunication Application (After PNO) 
TPA Works to tree subject of a TPO 
CONACC Accesses 
CONADV Adverts 
CONAGR Agricultural 
CONBC Breach of Conditions 
CONCD Coastal 
CONCMA County matters 
CONCOM Commercial/Industrial/Business 
CONDWE Unauthorised  dwellings 
CONENG Engineering operations 
CONHDG Hedgerows 
CONHH Householders 
CONLB Listed Buildings 

Committee report changes appear in bold text. 
Application Status 
 
ALLOW Appeal Allowed 
APP Appeal in Progress 
APPRET Invalid Application Returned 
APPWDN Appeal Withdrawn 
BCO Building Work Complete 
BST Building Work Started 
CLOSED Case Closed 
CRTACT Court Action Agreed 
CRTDEC Hearing Decision Made 
CSS Called in by Secretary of State 
DEC Decided 
DECDET        Decline to determine 
DEFCH Defer – Chairman 
DISMIS Appeal Dismissed 
HOLD Application Clock Stopped 
INV Application Invalid on Receipt 
LEG Defer – Legal Agreement 
LIC Licence Issued 
NFA No Further Action 
NODEC No Decision 
NONDET Never to be determined 
NOOBJ No Objection 
NOTICE Notice Issued 
NOTPRO Not to Prepare a Tree Preservation Order 
OBJ Objection 
PCNENF PCN Served, Enforcement Pending 
PCO Pending Consideration 
PD Permitted Development 
PDE Pending Decision 
PER Application Permitted 
PLNREC DC Application Submitted 
PPNR Planning Permission Required S64 
PPNREQ Planning Permission Not Required 
REC Application Received 
REF Application Refused 



CONMHC Mobile homes / caravans 
CONREC Recreation / sports 
CONSH Stables / horses 
CONT Trees 
CONTEM Temporary uses – markets/shooting/motorbikes 
CONTRV Travellers 
CONWST Wasteland 

REVOKE Permission Revoked 
S32 Section 32 Notice 
SPLIT Split Decision 
STPSRV Stop Notice Served 
STPWTH Stop Notice Withdrawn 
VAL Valid Application Received 
WDN Application Withdrawn 
YESTPO Prepare a Tree Preservation Order 

 

 
 



Chichester District Council 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Wednesday 6 April 2022  
 

Declarations of Interests 
 

Details of members’ personal interests arising from their membership of parish councils or 
West Sussex County Council or from their being Chichester District Council or West Sussex 
County Council appointees to outside organisations or members of outside bodies or from 
being employees of such organisations or bodies are set out in the attached agenda report. 
    
The interests therein are disclosed by each member in respect of planning applications or 
other items in the agenda which require a decision where the council or outside body 
concerned has been consulted in respect of that particular planning application or item. 
 
Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests, prejudicial interests or 
predetermination or bias are to be made by members of the Planning Committee or other 
members who are present in respect of matters on the agenda or this meeting. 

 
 

Personal Interests - Membership of Parish Councils 
 

The following members of the Planning Committee declare a personal interest by way of 
their membership of the parish councils stated below in respect of the items on the schedule 
of planning applications where their respective parish councils have been consulted: 

 

 Mr H C Potter – Boxgrove Parish Council (BG) 

 Mrs S M Sharp – Chichester City Council (CC) 

 Mr G V McAra - Midhurst Town Council (MI) 

 Mr S J Oakley – Tangmere Parish Council (TG) 

 Mrs D F Johnson – Selsey Town Council (ST) 

 Mrs L C Purnell – Selsey Town Council (ST) 

 Mr R A Briscoe – Westbourne Parish Council (WB) 
 

Personal Interests - Membership of West Sussex County Council 
 

The following members of the Planning Committee declare a personal interest by way of 
their membership of West Sussex County Council in respect of the items on the schedule of 
planning applications where that local authority has been consulted: 

 

 Mrs D F Johnson – West Sussex County Council Member for the Selsey Division 

 Mr S J Oakley - West Sussex County Council Member for the Chichester East 
 Division 

 Mrs S M Sharp – West Sussex County Council Member for the Chichester South 
Division  

 
 Personal Interests - Chichester District Council Representatives on Outside 

Organisations and Membership of Public Bodies 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



The following members of the Planning Committee declare a personal interest as Chichester 
District Council appointees to the outside organisations or as members of the public bodies 
below in respect of those items on the schedule of planning applications where such 
organisations or bodies have been consulted: 

 

 Mr G A F Barrett - Chichester Harbour Conservancy 

 Mr G A F Barrett – Manhood Peninsula Partnership 

 Rev. J-H Bowden – Goodwood Aerodrome Consultative Committee 

 Mr H Potter – South Downs National Park Authority 
 

Personal Interests – Chichester City Council Representatives on Outside 
Organisations and Membership of Public Bodies 

 
The following member of the Planning Committee declares a personal interest as a 
Chichester City Council appointee to the outside organisations stated below in respect of 
those items on the schedule of planning applications where that organisation has been 
consulted: 

NONE 
 
 Personal Interests – West Sussex County Council Representatives on Outside 

Organisations and Membership of Public Bodies 
 
The following member of the Planning Committee declares a personal interest as a West 
Sussex County Council appointee to the outside organisation stated below in respect of 
those items on the schedule of planning applications where that organisation has been 
consulted: 
 

 Mrs D Johnson – Chichester Harbour Conservancy 
 

Personal Interests – Other Membership of Public Bodies 
 
The following member of the Planning Committee declares a personal interest as a member 
of the outside organisation stated below in respect of those items on the schedule of 
planning applications where that organisation has been consulted: 
 

 Mrs L C Purnell – Manhood Peninsula Partnership (Chairman) 
 

Page 2



 

 

 

Parish: 
Chichester 
 

Ward: 
Chichester Central 

CC/21/02880/ADV 

 

Proposal  1 no. non-illuminated fascia sign to front of building to replace existing. 
(Retrospective)  
 

Site 48 East Street Chichester PO19 1HX    
 

Map Ref (E) 486392 (N) 104795 
 

Applicant Mr James France Agent Mr Gurpreet Ladher 

 
RECOMMENDATION TO PERMIT 
 

 
 
 

 
NOT TO 
SCALE 

Note: Do not scale from map. For information only. Reproduced 
from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the 
controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown Copyright. 
License No. 100018803 

 
1.0  Reason for Committee Referral 
 
 
1.1 Parish Objection - Officer recommends Permit 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
2.0   The Site and Surroundings  
 
2.1 The application site is located to the north side of East Street within the Chichester 

Settlement Boundary and Chichester Conservation Area. The application site adjoins the 
former Shippams factory and comprises of a four-storey building with retail units at ground 
floor level. 
 

3.0   The Proposal  
 

3.1  The advertisement application (21/02880/ADV) relates to the advertisements connected 
with the proposed use of the property at 48 East Street. A full planning application 
(21/02893/FUL) has also been submitted for the repainting of the shopfront.  

 
3.2  For planning purposes, an 'advertisement' is defined in section 336(1) of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) as: 
 
"any word, letter, model, sign, placard, board, notice, awning, blind, device or 
representation, whether illuminated or not, in the nature of, and employed wholly or partly 
for the purposes of, advertisement, announcement or direction, and (without prejudice to 
the previous provisions of this definition) includes any hoarding or similar structure used or 
designed, or adapted for use and anything else principally used, or designed or adapted 
principally for use, for the display of advertisements." 
 

3.3  The application involves a non- illuminated fascia sign which is now in situ which is the 
result of a number of amendments over the course of the application process to address 
concerns from a number of consultees. The current application has omitted the originally 
proposed internal illumination and instead comprises a non-illuminated fascia sign. In 
addition, the vinyl stickers and the signage on the side elevation of the property have also 
been omitted from the application.  
 

4.0   History 
 

 
03/01773/FUL WDN Two and four storey redevelopment and 

conversion of site and alterations to 42-43 and 
45-46 East Street, for mixed uses comprising A1 
retail, A3 food and drink and residential, 
together with highway and access works and 
landscaping. 

 
03/01775/CAC WDN Demolition of majority of Shippams factory 

buildings and adjoining properties, i.e.  Sadlers 
Walk and the Boys Club in Little London. 

 
05/00427/CAC PER Demolish front section of former Shippam's 

factory. 
 
05/00430/FUL PER106 Comprehensive mixed-use redevelopment, 

comprising of retail and residential 
accommodation, together with associated car 

Page 4



 

 

parking landscape and highway works (after 
demolition of existing factory and former social 
club building). 

 
12/03154/ADV REF 2 no. pod signs and 1 non-illuminated projecting 

sign. 
 

12/04286/ADV PER Two 10mm thick block perspex letters fixed to 
existing timber fascias (Retrospective). 

 
21/02893/FUL PDE Shopfront re-painted with new paint. 

 
21/03145/FUL WDN Shopfront repainted with new paint. Alterations 

to fenestration. 
 
21/03146/ADV WDN New illuminated fascia sign to front and rear of 

building to replace existing. 
 
 

 
5.0  Constraints 
 

Listed Building No 

Conservation Area Yes 

Rural Area No 

AONB No 

Tree Preservation Order No 

EA Flood Zone  

- Flood Zone 2 No 

- Flood Zone 3 No 

 
6.0  Representations and Consultations 
 
6.1  Parish Council 

 
Further Comments (9.12.21) 
 
In respect of the above applications, and further to the City Council's original 
representations, our Members would like to express that the "Shippams" name above the 
original door of the building must be retained.  
 
Further Comments (15.1121) 
 
Strong objection, for the following reasons:  

• The design, appearance, colours and materials of the fascia signage, as well as the 
proposed illumination, including light boxes, would harm the character and 
appearance of the area.  

•  "Respraying" is not appropriate in the conservation area where hand painting is 
required in order to give a suitable finish and appearance.  

•   Excessive use of vinyl covering whole windows and doors would reduce interaction 
with the street and the perception of vitality.   

Page 5



 

 

•   The light boxes and other window blocking advertisements are inappropriate and 
harm the character and appearance of the building and conservation area 

•    Although the applications' descriptions relate to advertisements and respray of the 
shopfront, the plans show removal and replacement of the wooden shopfront; 
decorative timber upstands and some mullions are shown to be replaced with brick, 
harming the historic character and appearance of the building and surrounding 
conservation area.   

•    It is requested that the red line application area is checked, as the plans appear to 
show works to the East Street frontage outside of the red line boundary. It is also 
noted that the applicants have marked at least one proposed plan as "approved" 
which is misleading; this marking should be removed.  

 
   

 Original Comments (19.10.21 
 
Holding Objection - There is significant concern over the potential impacts of the proposal 
on the character and appearance of the area and the historic building itself. An objection is 
therefore issued in respect of the application which will be discussed at the City Council's 
next planning meeting on 11 November, following which a further response will be sent.  

 
6.2  CCAAC 

 
The Committee objects strongly to this Application. Both the internally illuminated signs 
and window vinyls are non-compliant with CDC shop-front guidance and are excessive. 
Any signage on the east elevation is unnecessary and wholly inappropriate as it would 
damage the setting of the East Wall, a Scheduled Ancient Monument, which it faces. The 
visuals provided indicate that the historic SHIPPAMS bronze lettering over the window on 
the corner of the building is to be removed. This was retained, along with the clock and 
wishbone, under the first redevelopment to maintain the historic link and should be 
retained here. 
 

6.3  Third party comments 
 
One letter of objection has been received concerning: 
 
a) The internally illuminated fascia signage contravenes the Councils Requirements for 
shop front design in the Conservation Area and the introduction of signage on the East 
Walls elevation would cause harm to the setting of the City Wall Ancient Monument, and 
the retained elevations of the former Shippam premises. 
 
b) The provision of a sensitive display within the retained Shippam entrance portal would 
be welcomed to enliven this feature. 
 

 
7.0  Planning Policy 
 

The Development Plan 
 

7.1 The Development Plan for the area comprises the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 
2014-2029, the CDC Site Allocation Development Plan Document and all made 

Page 6



 

 

neighbourhood plans. There is no made neighbourhood plan for Chichester City at this 
time.  
 

7.2 The principal planning policies relevant to the consideration of this application are as
 follows: 

 
Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029 
 
 Policy 10: Chichester City Development Principles 
 Policy 27: Chichester Centre Retail Policy 
 Policy 47: Heritage and Design 
 
Chichester Local Plan Review Preferred Approach 2016 - 2035  
 

7.3 Work on the review of the adopted Local Plan to consider the development needs of the 
Chichester Plan Area through to 2036 is now well underway. Consultation on a Preferred 
Approach Local Plan has taken place and following detailed consideration of all responses 
to the consultation, it is intended that the Council will publish a Submission Local Plan 
under Regulation 19 in July 2022. Following consultation, the Submission Local Plan will 
be submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination. In accordance with 
the Local Development Scheme, it is anticipated that the new Plan will be adopted by the 
Council in 2023. However, at this stage, it is considered that very limited weight can be 
attached to the policies contained within the Local Plan Review.  
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 

7.4 Government planning policy now comprises the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF 2021), which took effect from 20 July 2021. Paragraph 11 of the 
revised Framework states that plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development, and for decision-taking this means: 
 
c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or 
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission 
unless: 
  i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas of assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
  ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

7.5 Consideration should also be given to the following paragraph and sections:  NPPF 
Sections 2, 4, 12, 14 and 16. Consideration has been given to paragraph 132 in particular, 
as this relates specifically to the control of advertisements. The relevant paragraphs of the 
National Planning Practice Guidance have also been taken into account.  
 
Other Local Policy and Guidance 
 

7.6  The following documents are material to the determination of this planning application: 
 

o Chichester District Council Shopfront and Advertisement Design Guidance Note 

Page 7



 

 

o Chichester Conservation Area Character Appraisal 
 

7.7 The aims and objectives of the Chichester in Partnership Community Strategy 2016-2029 
which are relevant and material to the determination of this planning application are: 
 

o Maintain low levels of unemployment in the district 
o Support local businesses to grow and become engaged with local communities 
o Influence local policies in order to conserve and enhance the qualities and 

distinctiveness of our area 
 

7.8 The aims and objectives of the Chichester in Partnership Community Strategy 2016-
2029 which are relevant and material to the determination of this planning application 
are: 

 
➢ Influence local policies in order to conserve and enhance the qualities 

and distinctiveness of our area 
 
8.0  Planning Comments 
 
8.1  The main issues arising from this proposal are:  
   

i. Design and Impact upon visual amenity, character of the area and setting of 
heritage assets 

ii. Impact upon public amenity and safety 
 

Design and Impact upon visual amenity, character of the area and setting of heritage 
assets 
 

8.2  Policy 47 of the Chichester Local Plan requires that proposals must conserve and 
enhance the special interest and setting of Conservation Areas, respect distinctive local 
character and maintain the individual identity of settlements. 

 
8.3  The non-illuminated fascia signage would measure 0.6m in height, 1.4m in width and 

would project 75mm from the face of the building. The lettering within the signage would 
be 0.2m in height, which is an appropriate height for the size of the facia sign. The sign 
would be positioned centrally within the existing timer facia and is considered to be 
appropriate in size and scale of the height of the facia. 

 
8.4  The signage has been significantly revised during the course of this application, including 

the removal of the secondary signage to the side elevation, removal of vinyl stickers and 
confirmation that the Shippam signage and the Shippam clock are to be retained. 

 
8.5 In combination, the shopfront has been painted in Basalt Grey (RAL 7012), which is 

acceptable and in keeping with other shopfronts painted similar shades of grey (see 
21/02893/FUL). The repainted shopfront the subject of a separate application to be 
determined therefore sits comfortably within the streetscene and does not result in an 
unacceptable impact upon the Chichester Conservation Area. 
 

8.6  Overall, having regard to the above and subject to conditions, it is considered that the in-
situ advertisement on balance would be appropriate in terms of size, colour, siting, and 

Page 8



 

 

design, and would not result in visual clutter which would be harmful to the appearance of 
the Conservation Area or the setting of Listed Buildings within the vicinity. 
 
Impact Upon Public Amenity and Safety 
 

8.7  Section 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007 (as amended) permits the display of advertisements where they do not 
adversely impact upon the interests of public amenity or public safety. 
 

8.8 Public safety is not confined to road safety and includes all the considerations which are 
relevant to the safe use and operation of any form of traffic or transport on land (including 
the safety of pedestrians), over water or in the air. The proposal is small scale and set 
back from the road. Therefore, it is considered that the proposed advertisements will not 
adversely impact public safety as they would be sited sufficiently beyond the boundary of 
the highway and are positioned in a way that would not obstruct highway visibility or 
distract motorists. 
 
Conditions 
 

8.9  All advertisements permitted under current regulations are subject to five standard 
conditions relating to matters including requirements for them to be maintained in the 
interest of public and highway safety and visual amenity. Further conditions are also set 
out in the recommendation below concerning compliance with the approved plans and 
removal after five years (unless further consent is given). 
 
Conclusion 
 

8.10  Based on the above assessment of amenity and public safety, the proposed non-
illuminated advertisement and proposed work to the shop front are acceptable. The 
proposal therefore complies with Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) 
(England) Regulations 2007 (as amended) and The Chichester Local Plan 2014-2029 and 
the application is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
Human Rights 
 

8.11  In reaching this conclusion the Human Rights of the applicants and nearby occupiers have 
been considered and it is concluded that the recommendation to permit is justified and 
proportionate. 
 

 RECOMMENDATION 
PERMIT subject to the following conditions and informatives:-    
 
1) The works associated with the display of the advertisement(s) hereby permitted 
shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the plans listed below under the 
heading "Decided Plans". 
 
Reason: For clarity and in the interest of proper planning. 
 

 

Page 9



 

 

2) The development hereby permitted shall not be constructed other than in 
accordance with the materials specified within the application form and plans, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that a harmonious visual relationship is achieved between the 
new and the existing developments. 
 

 
3) Notwithstanding any indication on the approved plans or documents, the signage 
hereby approved shall not be in any way illuminated. The signage shall remain non-
illuminated unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and highways safety, and to preserve the 
special character of the conservation area. 
 

Decided Plans 
 
The application has been assessed and the decision is made on the basis of the following plans 
and documents submitted: 
 

Details Reference Version Date Received Status 
 

 PLAN - Site and location 

plan 

HLP/1302/15 
 

28.09.2021 Approved 

 

PLANS - Plans PLAN - 

PROPOSED FRONT 

ELEVATION 

HLP/1302/07 
 

01.04.2022 Approved 

 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1) The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally 
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the 
proposal to address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has 
been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on this application please contact Rebecca Perris on 01243 534734 
 
To view the application use the following link - https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R05HW2ERFYC00 

Page 10

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;


 

 

 

Parish: 
Chichester 
 

Ward: 
Chichester Central 

CC/21/02893/FUL 

 

Proposal  Shopfront re-painted with new paint.  
 

Site 48 East Street Chichester PO19 1HX    
 

Map Ref (E) 486392 (N) 104795 
 

Applicant Mr James France Agent Mr Gurpreet Ladher 

 
RECOMMENDATION TO PERMIT 
 

 
 
 

 
NOT TO 
SCALE 

Note: Do not scale from map. For information only. Reproduced 
from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the 
controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown Copyright. 
License No. 100018803 

 
1.0  Reason for Committee Referral 
 
1.1 Parish Objection - Officer recommends Permit 

 
2.0   The Site and Surroundings  
 
2.1 The application site is located to the north side of East Street within the Chichester 

Settlement Boundary and Chichester Conservation Area. The application site adjoins the 
former Shippams factory and comprises of a four-storey building with retail units at ground 
floor level. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 

3.0   The Proposal  
 

3.1  The proposal seeks retrospective planning consent, for the repainting of the existing 
timber shop front, which has been carried out during the course of this application. The 
advertisement application (21/02880/ADV) relates to the advertisements connected with 
the proposed use of the property at 48 East Street.  
 

4.0   History 
 

 
03/01773/FUL WDN Two and four storey redevelopment and 

conversion of site and alterations to 42-43 and 
45-46 East Street, for mixed uses comprising A1 
retail, A3 food and drink and residential, 
together with highway and access works and 
landscaping. 

 
03/01775/CAC WDN Demolition of majority of Shippams factory 

buildings and adjoining properties, i.e.  Sadlers 
Walk and the Boys Club in Little London. 

 
05/00427/CAC PER Demolish front section of former Shippam's 

factory. 
 
05/00430/FUL PER106 Comprehensive mixed-use redevelopment, 

comprising of retail and residential 
accommodation, together with associated car 
parking landscape and highway works (after 
demolition of existing factory and former social 
club building). 

 
12/03154/ADV REF 2 no. pod signs and 1 non-illuminated projecting 

sign. 
 

12/04286/ADV PER Two 10mm thick block perspex letters fixed to 
existing timber fascias (Retrospective). 

 
21/02880/ADV PDE 1 no. non-illuminated fascia sign to front of 

building to replace existing. 
 
21/02893/FUL PDE Shopfront re-painted with new paint. 

 
21/03145/FUL WDN Shopfront repainted with new paint. Alterations 

to fenestration. 
 
21/03146/ADV WDN New illuminated fascia sign to front and rear of 

building to replace existing. 
 

 
 

Page 12



 

 

5.0  Constraints 
 

Listed Building NO 

Conservation Area Multiple (Spatial) 

Rural Area No 

AONB No 

Tree Preservation Order No 

EA Flood Zone  

- Flood Zone 2 No 

- Flood Zone 3 No 

 
6.0  Representations and Consultations 

 
6.1  Parish Council comments  

 
Further Comments (9.12.21) 
 
In respect of the above applications, and further to the City Council's original 
representations, our Members would like to express that the "Shippams" name above the 
original door of the building must be retained.  
 
Further Comments (15.11.21) 
 
Strong objection, for the following reasons:  

• The design, appearance, colours and materials of the fascia signage, as well as the 
proposed illumination,  including light boxes, would harm the character and 
appearance of the area.  

•  "Respraying" is not appropriate in the conservation area where hand painting is 
required in order to give a suitable finish and appearance.  

•   Excessive use of vinyl covering whole windows and doors would reduce interaction 
with the street and the perception of vitality.   

•   The light boxes and other window blocking advertisements are inappropriate and 
harm the character and appearance of the building and conservation area 

•    Although the applications' descriptions relate to advertisements and respray of the 
shopfront, the plans show removal and replacement of the wooden shopfront; 
decorative timber upstands and some mullions are shown to be replaced with brick, 
harming the historic character and appearance of the building and surrounding 
conservation area.   

•    It is requested that the red line application area is checked, as the plans appear to 
show works to the East Street frontage outside of the red line boundary. It is also 
noted that the applicants have marked at least one proposed plan as "approved" 
which is misleading; this marking should be removed.  

 
   
 
 
Original Comments 19th October 2021 
 
Holding Objection 
There is significant concern over the potential impacts of the proposal on the character 
and appearance of the area and the historic building itself. An objection is therefore issued 

Page 13



 

 

in respect of the application which will be discussed at the City Council's next planning 
meeting on 11 November, following which a further response will be sent.  

 
6.2  CCAAC 

 
The Committee objects strongly to this Application. Both the internally illuminated signs 
and window vinyls are non-compliant with CDC shop-front guidance and are excessive. 
Any signage on the east elevation is unnecessary and wholly inappropriate as it would 
damage the setting of the East Wall, a Scheduled Ancient Monument, which it faces. The 
visuals provided indicate that the historic SHIPPAMS bronze lettering over the window on 
the corner of the building is to be removed. This was retained, along with the clock and 
wishbone, under the first redevelopment to maintain the historic link and should be 
retained here. 

 
6.3  Third party comments 

 
One letter of objection has been received concerning: 
 
a) Strong objection to the proposed signage. No comment regarding the East Street shop 
front fascia redecoration, which is shown to be the same appearance and colour as the 
existing. The fascia is required by the Council to incorporate the street number. 
 
 

7.0  Planning Policy 
 
The Development Plan 
 

7.1 The Development Plan for the area comprises the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 
2014-2029, the CDC Site Allocation Development Plan Document and all made 
neighbourhood plans. There is no made neighbourhood plan for Chichester City at this 
time.  
 

7.2 The principal planning policies relevant to the consideration of this application are as
 follows: 

 
Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029 
 
 Policy 10: Chichester City Development Principles 
 Policy 27: Chichester Centre Retail Policy 
 Policy 47: Heritage and Design 
 
Chichester Local Plan Review Preferred Approach 2016 - 2035  
 

7.3 Work on the review of the adopted Local Plan to consider the development needs of the 
Chichester Plan Area through to 2036 is now well underway. Consultation on a Preferred 
Approach Local Plan has taken place and following detailed consideration of all responses 
to the consultation, it is intended that the Council will publish a Submission Local Plan 
under Regulation 19 in July 2022. Following consultation, the Submission Local Plan will 
be submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination. In accordance with 
the Local Development Scheme, it is anticipated that the new Plan will be adopted by the 

Page 14



 

 

Council in 2023. However, at this stage, it is considered that very limited weight can be 
attached to the policies contained within the Local Plan Review.  
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 

7.4 Government planning policy now comprises the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF 2021), which took effect from 20 July 2021. Paragraph 11 of the 
revised Framework states that plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development, and for decision-taking this means: 
 
c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or 
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission 
unless: 
  i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas of assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed;or 
  ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

7.5 Consideration should also be given to the following paragraph and sections:  Sections 2, 
4, 12 and 16. Consideration has been given to paragraph 132 in particular, as this relates 
specifically to the control of advertisements. The relevant paragraphs of the National 
Planning Practice Guidance have also been taken into account.  
 
Other Local Policy and Guidance 
 

7.6  The following documents are material to the determination of this planning application: 
 

o Chichester District Council Shopfront and Advertisement Design Guidance Note 
o Chichester Conservation Area Character Appraisal 

 
7.7 The aims and objectives of the Chichester in Partnership Community Strategy 2016-2029 

which are relevant and material to the determination of this planning application are: 
 

o Maintain low levels of unemployment in the district 
o Support local businesses to grow and become engaged with local communities 
o Influence local policies in order to conserve and enhance the qualities and 

distinctiveness of our area 
 

7.8 The aims and objectives of the Chichester in Partnership Community Strategy 2016-
2029 which are relevant and material to the determination of this planning application 
are: 

 
➢ Influence local policies in order to conserve and enhance the qualities and 

distinctiveness of our area 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 

8.0  Planning Comments 
 

The main considerations are: 
i. Principle of Development  
ii. Impact upon the Character of the Area  

 
Principle of Development 
 

8.1  The application site is located within the Chichester settlement boundary, which is a 
location where the provision of a range of homes, workplaces and social and community 
facilities is supported by Policy 2 of the Local Plan subject to compliance with other 
policies of the Development Plan. 
 
Impact upon the Character of the Area 
 

8.2  S. 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires the 
planning Authority (LPA) to have special regard to the desirability of preserving and 
conserving the character and appearance of a conservation area. In addition, Policy 47 of 
the Chichester Local Plan states that permission will only be granted where it can be 
demonstrated that the proposal conserves or enhances the special interest and settings of 
the designated heritage assets. 

 
8.3 The application relates solely to seeking planning permission for the repainting of the 

existing shopfront. The initial proposal was to ‘respray’ the shopfront rather than hand 
paint. In response to concerns raised by the City Council, the proposal was revised to 
secure hand painting of the facia, which is considered to result in a more traditional and 
appropriate paint finish within the City Centre. The hand painting of the shopfront has 
been completed to an acceptable standard and finish.  

 
8.4 The shopfront has been painted in Basalt Grey (RAL 7012), which is considered 

acceptable and in keeping with other shopfronts painted similar shades of grey. The 
repainted shopfront therefore sits comfortably within the street scene and does not result 
in an unacceptable amenity impact upon the Chichester Conservation Area or the nearest 
Listed Buildings. The proposal therefore accords with Section 72 of the Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas Act 1990 (as amended), Section 16 of the NPPF and Policy 47 of the 
Chichester Local Plan. 

 
 Conclusion  

 
8.5 Based on the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed hand painted 

treatment to the shopfront is compatible with the setting  of the conservations area and 
complies with the Development Plan and there are no material considerations that indicate 
otherwise; therefore it is recommended that planning permission should be granted 
subject to conditions . 
 

 Human Rights 
 

8.6 In reaching this conclusion the Human Rights of the applicants and nearby occupiers have 
been considered and it is concluded that the recommendation to permit is justified and 
proportionate. 
 

Page 16



 

 

  
 RECOMMENDATION 

PERMIT subject to the following conditions and informatives:-    
 

1) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
plans listed below under the heading "Decided Plans" 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
2) The development hereby permitted shall not be constructed other than in 
accordance with the materials specified within the application form and plans, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that a harmonious visual relationship is achieved between the 
new and the existing developments. 
 
Decided Plans 

 
The application has been assessed and the decision is made on the basis of the following 
plans and documents submitted: 

 

Details Reference Version Date Received Status 
 

 PLAN - Proposed Front 

Elevations 

HLP/1302/07 
 

01.04.2022 Approved 

 

 PLAN - Site and Location 

Plan 

HLP/1302/15 
 

27.11.2021 Approved 

 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1) The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally 
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the 
proposal to address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has 
been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on this application please contact Rebecca Perris on 01243 534734 
 
To view the application use the following link - https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R071EKERFZM00 

Page 17

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Parish: 
Sidlesham 
 

Ward: 
Sidlesham With Selsey North 

SI/21/02786/FUL 

 

Proposal  Change of use of land to storage of caravans and boats. Erection of 
secure storage building and associated hardstanding. (part retrospective). 
 

Site Land South Of Telephone Exchange Selsey Road Sidlesham PO20 7NG   
 

Map Ref (E) 485659 (N) 97768 
 

Applicant Mr W Hughes Agent Mr Ben Kirk 

 
RECOMMENDATION TO REFUSE 
 

 
 
 

 
NOT TO 
SCALE 

Note: Do not scale from map. For information only. 
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with 
the permission of the controller of Her Majesty's 
Stationery Office, Crown Copyright. License No. 
100018803 

 
1.0  Reason for Committee Referral 
 
1.1   Red Card: Cllr Donna Johnson; Important information/opinion to raise in debate  

 
2.0   The Site and Surroundings  

 
2.1  The site comprises a parcel of land measuring approximately 3.75 acres, located on part 

of an area of land to the west of Selsey Road and to the north of Keynor Lane. The 
Applicant owns adjoining land to the north and east, which has the benefit of planning 
permissions for four gypsy and traveller pitches located beyond the northern boundary of 
the site. The remainder of the site benefits from planning permission for a stable block and 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

 

paddocks, although at the time of the site visit there did not appear to be horses on the 
land. 
 

2.2  The wider site is bordered by Muttons Farmhouse to the south (a grade II listed building), 
and a recreation ground with pavilion building to the north and a telephone exchange to 
the north/east. The site is generally flat and open and covered in grass.  There is an 
existing vehicular access to the south of the site from Keynor Lane.  The boundary 
treatments of the application site are mainly formed by vegetation and post and rail 
fencing.   
 

3.0   The Proposal  
 

3.1  The description for the development involves the Change of use of land to storage of 
caravans and boats. Erection of secure storage building and associated hardstanding 
(part retrospective). 
 

3.2  The proposal involves the use of the site to store caravans and boats.  The site layout 
indicates 20 touring caravans and 7 storage boats.  The land would be serviced via the 
existing vehicular access which progresses north off Keynor Lane, then turns at 90 
degrees within the relative centre of the applicant’s wider landownership land and 
progresses westwards and then runs south into the subject land.   
 

3.3  A building is also proposed to provide four internal storage units, which, would be 
rectangular in form with pitched roofs and designed with gable ends and a canopy. The 
building would measure 15.4m in length x 5m deep, 2.35m to underside of eaves, 3.6m 
ridge height. The external materials would include corrugated sheeting to the roof and 
unstained timber weatherboarding to the walls.  
 

4.0   History 
 

17/02640/FUL REF Change of use of land from agricultural land for 
stationing of caravans for residential purposed 
by 3 no. gypsy-traveller families, with associated 
utility building, hard standing, widened gateway, 
landscaping and access. 

 
18/01173/FUL REF Change of use of land from agricultural land for 

stationing of caravans for residential purposes 
by 3 gypsy-traveller families with facilitating 
development (utility buildings, hard standing, 
widened gateway, septic tank and landscaping). 

 
 

18/02925/FUL NDET Proposed private stable block and associated 
hard standing.  New access to the highway. 

 
19/02507/DOC SPLIT Discharge of condition 4, 5, 7, 8, 9 and 10 from 

planning permission SI/18/01173/FUL. 
 

Page 20



 

 

20/00193/DOC PER Discharge of condition 4, 5, 6, 7 and 10 from 
planning permission 
SI/18/02925/FUL(APP/L3815/W/19/3232132). 

 
20/01916/DOC SPLIT Discharge of Conditions 4, 5 and 10 of planning 

permision SI/18/01173/FUL 
(APP/L3815/W/18/3209147). 

 
20/01981/FUL PER Proposed private stable block and associated 

hard standing.  New access to the highway. 
(Variation of condition 2 of permission 
18/02925/FUL - amended the plan numbers to 
reflect the materials used in the construction of 
the building). 

 
20/02956/DOC PER Discharge of condition 4 _ 5 from permission 

SI/18/01173/FUL (APP/L3815/W/18/3209147). 
 

21/00322/FUL PER106 Alterations to allowed appeal under reference 
18/01173/FUL to include; change the use of the 
land and increase number of gypsy-traveller 
pitches from 3 to 4 including; utility buildings, 
hard standing, landscaping and amended 
access position. 

 
21/00404/FUL REF Erection of brick wall and timber field gates to 

form entrance along with planting of laurel 
hedge to replace boundary treatments permitted 
under application 18/02925/FUL. 

 
 

22/00452/FUL PCO Change of use of land and part of stable building 
to garden land and utility building as an 
alternative to the utility building approved under 
application SI/18/01173/FUL. Changes to the 
layout and elevation treatments of the approved 
stable building approved under application 
SI/18/02925/FUL and associated landscaping 
works. 

 
22/00453/FUL PCO Change of use of land to dog agility along with 

associated hardstanding and fencing. 
 

22/00585/FUL PCO Stationing of 1 additional caravan for gypsy-
traveller families along with associated utility 
building, hard standing and landscaping. 

 
Appeals 

18/00052/REF ALLOW Change of use of land from agricultural land for 
stationing of caravans for residential purposes 
by 3 gypsy-traveller families with facilitating 

Page 21



 

 

development (utility buildings, hard standing, 
widened gateway, septic tank and landscaping). 

 
18/00053/REF DISMIS Change of use of land from agricultural land for 

stationing of caravans for residential purposed 
by 3 no. gypsy-traveller families, with associated 
utility building, hard standing, widened gateway, 
landscaping and access. 

 
19/00032/NONDET ALLOW Proposed private stable block and associated 

hard standing.  New access to the highway. 
 
 

5.0  Constraints 
 

Listed Building Grade II nearby 

Conservation Area No 

Rest of Plan Area Yes 

AONB No 

Tree Preservation Order No 

EA Flood Zone  

- Flood Zone 2 No 

- Flood Zone 3 No 

Historic Parks and Gardens No 

 
6.0  Representations and Consultations 

 
6.1   Parish Council 

 
Further comments  
Sidlesham Parish Council are pleased to see that the agent has provided the LPA with an 
updated plan showing the correct line of the constructed driveway from Keynor Lane past 
Muttons Farmhouse boundary. 
 
The Council would now respectfully request that CDC draw the WSSC Highways 
Department's attention to the corrected position and ask them to carry out a visit to the site 
as opposed to a desktop exercise, because the Parish Council believes this entry to the 
site is dangerous in relation to the bend by Muttons Farmhouse, particularly now that there 
will be large slow moving towed caravans/boats onto the site. The PC contend that the 
entrance should be equally-distanced between the field boundary and the main Selsey 
Road, as proposed in the original application. 
   
Original Comments 
Sidlesham Parish Council discussed this application and heard from the applicant. It 
narrowly voted NO OBJECTION with the Chairman exercising the casting vote. 
 
But it seeks a number of conditions are made by the LPA. These conditions are that the 
proposals include substantial screening hedging of native planting; that the site has a 
density limit of 7 boats and 20 caravans maximum at any time; that there is a 24-hour 

Page 22



 

 

access request for any visitors to the storage facility and that caravans and boats in the 
storage facility are not used for living accommodation at any time. 
 
The PC would like to raise concerns over highway access. It notes that the Full Site 
Photographs and Key Plan 3931228 denote the access away from Muttons Farmhouse 
boundary and not where the current access has been constructed much closer to that 
boundary, this issue has previously been raised on the grounds of safety. WSCC 
Highways have not yet approved the siting of the entrance, and if they are to use the plans 
provided as a desktop exercise rather than the actual line of the drive now constructed, 
they will be making a judgement on an incorrect view of the positioning of the entrance 
actually built. Further the PC raises concerns over slow moving and turning of large, towed 
vehicles on the blind corner of Keynor Lane and within proximity of the junction of the 
B2145. 
 

6.2   Natural England (summarised) 
 

No objection - Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed 
development will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected nature 
conservation sites or landscapes. Natural England's generic advice on other natural 
environment issues is set out at Annex A. 
 

6.3   WSCC Local Highway Authority (summarised) 
 
The LHA does not consider that this proposal would have an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety or result in 'severe' cumulative impacts on the operation of the highway 
network, therefore is not contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 
111), and that there are no transport grounds to resist the proposal.  
 

6.4   WSCC Fire and Rescue 
 
Please find attached a planning condition for application no. 21/02786/FUL for the 
requirement of an additional fire hydrant. Currently the nearest Hydrant to the proposed 
storage of caravans and boats and erection of secure storage building and associated 
hardstanding is 270 metres away. The supply of water for firefighting for a commercial 
premises should be within 90 metres. 
 
Evidence will also be required that Fire Service vehicle access meets with the 
requirements identified in Approved Document B Volume 1 2019 Edition: B5 Section 13, 
including Table 13.1 and diagram 13.1.  
 

6.5   CDC Ecology 
 
Bats 
 
The hedgerows on site are used by bats for commuting and foraging and will need to be 
retained and enhanced for bats. As per the EIA (Oct 2021), access shall be via the pre-
approved entrance thereby avoiding any fragmentation of the existing hedgerow. New and 
existing hedgerows should be sensitively managed and maintained. Any gaps should be 
filled in using native hedge species to ensure the continued ecological functionality of the 
surrounding vegetation. Conditions should be used to ensure this. 
 

Page 23



 

 

The lighting scheme for the site will need to take into consideration the presence of bats in 
the local area and the scheme should minimise potential impacts to any bats using the 
trees, hedgerows and buildings by avoiding unnecessary artificial light spill through the 
use of directional light sources and shielding. 
 
Guidance outlined in the new Bats and Lighting Publication produced by the Institution of 
Lighting Professionals and the Bat Conservation Trust "Guidance Note 08/18 Bats and 
artificial lighting in the UK Bats and the Built Environment series publication should be 
adopted into the site plans 
(http://www.bats.org.uk/news.php/406/new_guidance_on_bats_and_lighting). 
 
Reptiles  
 
We are happy that a precautionary approach can be undertaken on the site for reptiles.  
The small area of longer ruderal vegetation the margins of the site area shall be 
directionally strimmed from east to west to a height of no less than 150mm. The area shall 
be left for 24hours before a final cut reduces the vegetation to <50mm, making it 
unsuitable for reptiles. The construction zone shall then be maintained at this height 
before and during construction to ensure the site remains unsuitable for reptiles.  
 
Badgers 
 
A precautionary approach should be adopted during the construction phase. Any trenched 
deeper than 1.0m or drainage pipework greater than 200mm diameter, shall be covered or 
capped overnight to prevent badgers or other mammals becoming trapped. Excavations 
should be checked each morning for the presence of any mammals or other species. Any 
hazardous chemicals will need to be suitably stored away so animals cannot access them.  
A commuting corridor shall be maintained around the site via the new and existing 
hedgerows. 
 
Birds 
 
Any works to the trees or vegetation clearance on the site should only be undertaken 
outside of the bird breeding season which takes place between 1st March - 1st October.  If 
works are required within this time an ecologist will need to check the site before any 
works take place (within 24 hours of any work).   
 
CEMP 
 
Owing to the sites proximity to Pagham Harbour SPA works during the construction phase 
will be undertaken in accordance with guidance provided within The Control of Dust and 
Emissions During Construction and Demolition SPG (July 2014) to control any excess 
dust creation which may impact adjacent sites. All vehicles carrying loose loads shall be 
sheeted with a wheel wash implemented on site during periods of very wet or dry weather.  
 
All vehicles used during construction shall be maintained in good condition. All re-fuelling 
is to take place within the site itself, with appropriate spill kits and secondary containment 
measures in place. All hazardous substances are be to stored in suitable containers with 
drip trays as appropriate to prevent any contamination of ground water. Conditions should 
be used to ensure this. 
 

Page 24



 

 

Habitats 
 
The scheme shall retain and protect all boundary hedgerows. Access into the site shall be 
via the previously approved driveway which will prevent any hedgerow fragmentation. As 
per the EIA (October 2021), new native hedgerow planting post-development shall provide 
a foraging resource for birds and invertebrates and mitigate the loss of grassland and 
ruderal vegetation. A condition should be used to ensure this.  
 
Enhancements  
 
Recommendations for ecological enhancements that should be considered as part of 
development proposals include; New native hedge planting to the western boundary to link 
the northern and southern hedgerows. This shall include the use of flowering plants as 
listed within the RHS 'Plants for Pollinators' plant list to provide year-round interest for 
invertebrates. The provision of 1no. general purpose nest boxes to the northern aspect of 
a mature tree within the blue line boundary Installation of 1no. crevice bat boxes to the 
southern aspect of a mature tree, The use of log and compost piles to the margins of the 
adjacent paddocks to provide refugia for reptiles and common amphibians. 
 
6.6   Third party objection comments 
 
1 x third party representations of objection have been received concerning the following 
matters: 
 
a)   This planning application will adversely affect the local area with a serious increase 
in visitors, cars, boats and caravans to what is a relatively small field, on an extremely 
busy road. The owners have yet to comply with the previous planning decision concerning 
the entrance. The red brick wall and tarmac entrance was not agreed in the original 
proposal and the enforcement process has not been completed. It is inappropriate to allow 
a planning application to be accepted when the owners have yet to comply with the 
previous application. Furthermore, the documents state no business is allowed for 
commercial purposes and yet during the christmas period the owners were selling 
Christmas trees from this entrance with vehicles pulling into the driveway mentioned 
above. There is plenty of caravan and boat storage elsewhere in Keynor Lane itself and 
elsewhere on the pennisula, this provision therefore seems not only unnecessary but also 
contravenes the terms of the planning consent in allowing the owners to conduct a 
commercial business on this field. The Council should be standing up to these clear 
abuses of the planning process and enforce the terms and conditions of the original 
planning application. 
 

7.0  Planning Policy 
 

7.1   The Development Plan for the area comprises the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 
2014-2029, the CDC Site Allocation Development Plan Document and all made 
neighbourhood plans. There is no made neighbourhood plan for Sidlesham. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

 

7.2   The principal planning policies relevant to the consideration of this application are as 
follows: 
 
  Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029 
 
 
  Policy 1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
  Policy 2: Development Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy 
  Policy 3: The Economy and Employment Provision 
  Policy 39: Transport, Accessibility and Parking 
  Policy 40: Sustainable Design and Construction 
  Policy 42: Flood Risk and Water Management 
  Policy 45: Development in the Countryside 
  Policy 47: Heritage 
  Policy 48: Natural Environment 
  Policy 49: Biodiversity 
 
Chichester Local Plan Review Preferred Approach 2016 - 2035  
 

7.3   Work on the review of the adopted Local Plan to consider the development needs of the 
Chichester Plan Area through to 2036 is now well underway. Consultation on a Preferred 
Approach Local Plan has taken place and following detailed consideration of all responses 
to the consultation, it is intended that the Council will publish a Submission Local Plan 
under Regulation 19 in July 2022. Following consultation, the Submission Local Plan will 
be submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination. In accordance with 
the Local Development Scheme, it is anticipated that the new Plan will be adopted by the 
Council in 2023. However, at this stage, it is considered that very limited weight can be 
attached to the policies contained within the Local Plan Review.  
 
 
 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 

7.4   Government planning policy now comprises the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF 2021). Paragraph 11 of the revised Framework states that plans and 
decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development, and for 
decision-taking this inter alia means: 
 
  c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development 
plan without delay; or 
  d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are 
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission 
unless: 
  i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas of assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; 
or 
  ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

Page 26



 

 

7.5   Consideration should also be given to the following paragraph and sections:  12, 14, 
15 and 16. 
 
  Other Local Policy and Guidance 
 

7.6   The following documents are material to the determination of this planning application: 
 
Surface Water and Foul Drainage SPD 
CDC Waste Storage and Collection Guidance 
 

The aims and objectives of the Chichester in Partnership Community Strategy 2016-2029 
which are relevant and material to the determination of this planning application are: 

 
➢ Promote and increase sustainable, environmentally friendly initiatives in the district 
➢ Influence local policies in order to conserve and enhance the qualities and 

distinctiveness of our area 
 
8.0  Planning Comments 

 
8.1   The main issues arising from this proposal are:  

   
  i.  Principle of development 
  ii.  Design and impact upon character of the surrounding area 
  iv. Impact upon heritage assets 
  v.  Impact upon amenity of neighbouring properties 
  vi. Impact upon highway safety and parking 
  vii. Environmental Considerations 
  xiii. Other matters 
 
 
 

Assessment 
 
Executive Summary 
 

8.2 The site is removed from and not within a designated settlement and is therefore within 
the Rest of the Plan Area and is not within a sustainable location. The applicant has not 
demonstrated that the proposed storage use would be appropriate or considered that 
necessary on this site.  There is no justified need submitted by the applicant for this 
storage facility in this location.  Furthermore, employment opportunities are typically more 
limited in respect of this type and size of storage building, and it is contended be less 
beneficial for the rural economy.  
 

8.3 Additionally, there would be an adverse visual impact arising from the encroachment 
northwards onto land that is currently undeveloped open grazing.   This was a material 
consideration when the Council considered the application LPA ref: 18/02925/FUL for a 
stables building to provide sufficient facilities for up to 3 horses.  
 

8.4 The statement submitted with this application has been carefully considered. However, the 
scale of the proposed development in its proposed setting is such that it would cause 
harm to the character of the area and would be a step change from smaller scale 

Page 27



 

 

permitted uses granted permission by the Council or on appeal, on adjoining land within 
the ownership of the applicant. 
 

8.5  The application proposes firstly a change of use of a large area of open grazing land, to a 
caravan and boat open storage facility that would be open to the public on a booking 
arrangement.  The application also involves the addition of a storage building with a 
hardstanding area.  As a consequence, it would result in the urbanising of this countryside 
location, and its associated boundary treatment which would be visually detrimental.  The 
encroachment of the proposed use onto the grazing land would also have an increased 
impact on the setting of Muttons Farmhouse a grade II listed building.  
 

8.6 The storage facility would generate additional private motor vehicle and service vehicle 
trips via customers collecting and dropping off their boats and caravans from the site.  The 
site has very limited connections to slipways, moorings, harbours, marinas, holiday 
caravan sites, and to the designated settlements (within the District's plan led hierarchy of 
designated settlements), where the LPA would expect this type of storage facility to be 
logistically located; to reduce trips or at least minimise them, rather than creating 
unnecessary trips over distances.  Therefore, the development would promote the use of 
unsustainable transport and trip generation due to its location.    
 

8.7 Given the principle and therefore fundamental concerns with this proposal the officer 
recommendation is to refuse. 
 
i. Principle of development 
 

8.8 Policies 2 and 45 of the Local Plan allows development within the Rest of the Plan Area 
where a countryside location is required, where it supports rural diversification or where it 
meets a need which cannot be met within existing settlements. Policy 1 of the Local Plan 
requires development to accord with these policies.  Meaning current Development Plan 
policy requires that proposed development in the Rest of the Plan Area to be sustainable, 
essential for agriculture, and to protect the character of the countryside. Also, that 
applicants demonstrate need/demand which is small scale, structurally sound, of 
traditional or architectural merit and connected to existing buildings and supporting the 
local rural economy. 
 

8.9 Policy 45 in the Local Plan accepts sustainable development in the countryside under 
certain criteria stating that; 'Planning permission will be granted where it can be 
demonstrated ALL the following criteria have been met: 
 
1. The proposal is well related to an existing farmstead or group of buildings, or located 
close to an existing settlement; 
2. The proposal is complementary to and does not prejudice any viable agricultural 
operations on a farm and other existing viable uses; and 
3. Proposals requiring a countryside setting, for example agricultural buildings, ensure 
that their scale, siting, design and materials would have minimal impact on the landscape 
and rural character of the area'. 
 

8.10 The application site is currently undeveloped and used for grazing as part of a recently 
permitted equestrian development.  The site has a mixed use, including gypsy and 
traveller pitches, and stables and animal grazing. However, it is not considered that the 
nature of the storage use would be compatible with the area, as it does not constitute any 

Page 28



 

 

form of agricultural use and does not require a location within the designated Rest of the 
Plan Area.  
 

8.11 The increased vehicular movements would attract additional daily traffic, but with those 
who use the site for long term storage, likely to visit only occasionally. However, the 
configuration and width of vehicular access to and from the application site is not 
considered appropriate in this countryside location and would be more appropriate to 
within a more urban or settlement location as set out by CLP policies 1 and 2.   
 

8.12 The caravan and boat storage could not be supported by other more sustainable modes of 
transport.  It may be argued that this type of use would create additional journeys, no 
matter where located by its very nature.  However, when planned more strategically in 
accordance with the Development plan, it is likely such journeys would not cover extended 
distances and would be linked with trips to other locations and purposes. 
 

8.13 Furthermore, the site has very limited connections to slipways, moorings, harbours, 
marinas, holiday caravan sites, and to the designated settlements (within the hierarchy of 
designated settlements), where Officers would expect this type of storage facility to be 
logically located; to reduce trips or at least minimise them, rather than creating 
unnecessary trips over distances.  Therefore, it is considered that the development causes 
an increase in vehicle movements in a countryside location that would be contrary to the 
aims of sustainable development with associated environmental and social implications 
contrary to NPPF and Development Plan policy. 
 

8.14 The NPPF 2021 promotes policy which seeks to balance the rural economy with the need 
to protect the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside and to promote sustainable 
modes of transport. Therefore, in conclusion the weight that should be given to the benefit 
of economic growth in this rural area is limited and does not in Officer’s opinion outweigh 
the harm arising from the unsustainable nature of the proposal and to the character of the 
countryside.  
 

8.15 The applicant has failed to demonstrate the level of need for this use to require 
development of this site which is located in open countryside.  Therefore, it is considered 
that the change of use of land to storage of caravans and boats, and erection of a secure 
storage building and associated hardstanding (part retrospective) is not supported by the 
current development plan policy. In summary the proposed use and building would be 
more appropriate within an urban, marina, slipway, boat pound, coastal or caravan park 
setting that conforms with the hierarchy of settlements established by CLP policies 1 and 
2.   
 
ii.   Design and impact upon character of the surrounding area  
 

8.16 Sidlesham is informed by its agricultural and horticultural history, and this establishes a 
pattern of low-rise dwellings set around outbuildings, fields and glasshouses forming the 
Land Share Association Plots.   The application site is set in a mixed-use environment 
formed by the recently permitted and implemented gypsy and traveller pitches with stables 
and grazing land.   
 

8.17 The site is also framed by roads to two frontages, a grade II listed building (Mutton's 
Farmhouse) and Sidlesham Football ground, with a small cluster of linear rows of 

Page 29



 

 

dwellings fronting the football ground and opposite side of the roads. A dwelling and 
arable farmland adjoining lies to the opposite side of Keynor Lane.  
 

8.18 The proposed storage facility would cluster together boats, caravans, a building and hard 
surface with associated fencing and gates.  The external finishes of the boats and 
caravans clustered together in this manner would constitute a discordant feature within 
open land to the detriment of the character of the area.    This contrasts with the use of 
adjoining land for landscaping, gardens (for each pitch) and a suitable amount of grazing 
for the horses.  As a consequence, the adjoining uses by the applicant provides sufficient 
natural space for each plot so that the visual impact is respectful of its countryside setting 
in contrast to the cluttered effect of this proposal comprising of external and internal 
storage   
 

8.19 Landscaping and fencing is to provide some screening of the land use which would be set 
back from the road but still visible from the wider public realm.  Development Plan policy 
require such proposals to be compatible with its countryside setting.  Landscaping in itself 
cannot override the impact of the built form and uses which are compatible with more 
urban areas. 
 

8.20 The Inspector in decisions APP/L3815/W/18/3209147 (appeal A) 
APP/L3815/W/18/3209145 (appeal B) for the pitches assessed the character as semi-
rural.  The Inspector considered that that development to the road frontage with Keynor 
Lane (appeal B) as visually harmful due to its prominence.  The application site being 
considered here is further south than the allowed appeal and encroaches into the 
undeveloped greenfield land in a manner that would not respect the pattern of 
development within the locality.  Therefore, Officers conclude that the proposal would not 
respect the character of locality and a storage facility by its nature, in a semi-rural setting 
would be a visually harmful urbanisation of the site and surroundings.  The proposal would 
therefore be contrary to the 2021 NPPF and policies 45 and 48 of the Chichester Local 
Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029.   
 
iv. Impact upon Heritage Assets 
 

8.21 The setting of Mutton's Farmhouse was considered by the Inspector and commented in 
paragraphs 35 to 47 that; ‘the significance of the listed building is derived from its original 
detailing and historic fabric’, and that; ‘the immediate relationship between the field and 
the dwelling has been somewhat diminished by the extensions to Mutton Farmhouse’s 
garden and its domestic features. Also, I agree that both appeals would alter the land use 
of part of the adjoining field, the details that give rise to heritage significance are not seen 
in the context of the field. I conclude that neither development would result in harm to the 
significance of the listed building, as the appreciation of the dwelling’s listed features and 
historic fabric would remain unchanged’.  The Inspector concluded on this point as 
follows:-  
 

‘As such, there is nothing before me to suggest that the field has particular significance 
in relation to the listed building, I conclude that the developments would preserve the 
listed Mutton’s Farmhouse and its setting and any features of special architectural and 
historic interest which it possesses. In any case, the extension of Mutton Farmhouse’s 
garden into areas of the field has created a buffer and I find the Council’s argument in 
respect of the visibility of this dwelling from Keynor Lane overstated. Moreover, the 
planting I noticed on the garden boundaries suggest that views across and from within 

Page 30



 

 

the field will in any case be obscured with the passage of time. This buffer would also 
provide spatial separation between Mutton’s Farmhouse and the development of Appeal 
B’. 

 
8.22 In the case of the application site  the siting of the open storage and associated building 

storage facility would be close to Mutton's Farmhouse abutting its northern boundary.  
Given the Inspectors previous discussion, even though the development nature is 
different, in the context of the 2021 NPPF, the impact on the setting of Muttons Farm 
would potentially be of concern by virtue of its location cause a level of harm to its setting. 
 
v. Impact upon amenity of neighbouring properties 
 

8.23 Para 130 NPPF states that planning should ensure a good quality of amenity for existing 
and future users (of places).   

 
8.24 The closest residential properties are Muttons Farm and the implemented Gypsy and 

Traveller pitches.  The proposed storage use would be of a type of activity and scale that 
potentially have a harmful impact although it is in a relatively isolated location and as such 
would not cause an unacceptable loss of amenities of the neighbouring properties and 
garden. Therefore, it is considered on balance that that the development should not be 
refused on the above grounds.  

 
vi. Impact upon highway safety and parking  

 
8.25 The existing vehicular access would be utilised and is already used by towing vehicles.  

WSCC Highways have advised that there is no reason to consider that this part of Keynor 
Lane could not cope with the type of vehicles or the limited amount of traffic this 
development is likely to attract, and so severe harm would not be caused to highway 
safety. Therefore, the proposal would accord with policy 39 of the CLP which seeks to 
ensure that new development has acceptable parking levels, and access and egress to 
the highway.   The Parish Council has raised concerns about the access however, the 
proposed use would not be considered to result in highway safety concerns for the 
previously discussed reasons.  
vii. Environmental considerations 
 

8.26 Flood risk; the storage facility and its access would be located within EA FLZ1 an area 
identified by the EA as having the lowest flood risk.  Additional risk to life and property in 
zone 1 would be at its lowest.  That said water management would be necessary and 
surface water from the building and hardstanding would require management via 
soakaways and permeable surfaces would be necessary.  

 
8.27 Biodiversity; surveys have been submitted and the recommendations for ecological 

enhancements include; new native hedge planting to the western boundary to link the 
northern and southern hedgerows. This shall include the use of flowering plants as listed 
within the RHS 'Plants for Pollinators' plant list to provide year-round interest for 
invertebrates. The provision of 1no. general purpose nest boxes to the northern aspect of 
a mature tree within the blue line boundary, installation 1no. Crevice bat boxes, to the 
southern aspect of a mature tree, the use of log and compost piles to the margins of the 
adjacent paddocks to provide refuge for reptiles and common amphibians. 

  
 xiii. Other matters 

Page 31



 

 

 
Loss of Grazing Land   
 

8.28 Relevant to the considerations of this case is application 18/02925/FUL which allowed and 
permitted 3 stables on adjoining land owned by the applicant.  During that application the 
number of stables were reduced to 3, as there was not enough land to provide suitable 
grazing land for more than 3 stables.  3 stables were permitted consequently. 

 
8.29 What is apparent therefore is that the horses would be subject to further reductions in the 

amount of grazing land. The originally permitted 3.75 acres of grazing land would be 
reduced to 1.8 acres of grazing land (measuring the site plan the remaining grazing land 
would measure 7539sqm. amounting to 1.8 acres).  Whilst this development is for storage 
it is on land that formed a fundamental part of the permitted land for horse grazing. This 
would be a concerning reduction to the amount of land for the horses and a materially 
diminished scheme between the permitted and implemented use of the site resulting from 
this proposal which is a requirement for consideration under para 135 of the 2021 NPPF.  

 
8.30 Please be aware that 3 stables would be retained under the current proposal at 

application; 
  

  PCO Change of use of land and part of stable building 
to garden land and utility building as an 
alternative to the utility building approved under 
application SI/18/01173/FUL. Changes to the 
layout and elevation treatments of the approved 
stable building approved under application 
SI/18/02925/FUL and associated landscaping 
works.   
 
 
 

    
Conclusion  
 

8.31 The proposed storage use, and its associated building, hardstanding and fencing would 
not be compatible with its countryside setting outside any existing settlement. Also, in 
Officers’ view the proposed use and buildings, also reduce the opportunity for 
grazing/agriculture.  

 
Furthermore, the proposed development would generate use of private motor vehicles 
and delivery vehicles in a countryside location.  In addition, the proposal storage 
arrangements which would include open storage of boats and caravans plus a storage 
building would be visually harmful to the amenities of the site and rural character of the 
surrounding area.  The potential level of employment would not outweigh the 
unsustainable nature of the proposed use in this location and the harm to the character of 
the countryside.  The proposal is therefore contrary to the 2021 NPPF and policies 1, 2, 8, 
39, 45 and 48 of the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029. 

 
8.32 It is therefore recommended that the proposal does not comply with the relevant National 

or Development Plan policy and there being no other overriding material considerations, 
that it is recommended that permission should be refused. 

Page 32



 

 

 
Human Rights 
 

8.33 In reaching this conclusion the Human Rights of the applicants and nearby occupiers have 
been taken into account and it is concluded that the recommendation to refuse is justified 
and proportionate. 
 

 RECOMMENDATION 
REFUSE for the following reasons:-  
 
1.The proposed storage use for caravans and boats and its associated storage 
building, hardstanding and fencing would be located on open grazing land outside of 
the existing settlement boundary as designated by the Chichester Local Plan 2014-
2029. It would therefore constitute inappropriate development within the countryside, 
resulting in the unacceptable loss of the land for grazing/agriculture, and thereby also 
causing harm to the rural economy.  
 
2.The commercial use would be situated within a relatively isolated, and non-
sustainable location.  The visual harm to the countryside would be exacerbated by 
the proposal’s clustering of boats and caravans and additional storage building on the 
site which would be detrimental to the pattern of open fields and low-density 
residential development in the locality, causing harm to the character of the site and 
local residential amenity.   
 
The proposal would therefore be contrary to the NPPF 2021 and policies 1, 2, 8, 39, 
45 and 48 of the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029. 
 
2) This decision related to plans; 210824_R0_001 , 002, 200 and 300 REV R.1 
 
For further information on this application please contact Maria Tomlinson on 01243 
534734. 
To view the application use the following link - 
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QZKGUAERFHR00 

Page 33

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QZKGUAERFHR00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QZKGUAERFHR00


This page is intentionally left blank



Parish: 
Loxwood 

Ward: 
Loxwood 

 

LX/20/01977/FUL 

 
Proposal 27 no. residential dwellings comprising 19 market units and 8 affordable 

residential units; a single retail unit, on-site parking and turning, hard and 
soft landscaping together with sustainable drainage system and 
alterations to a public right of way. 

Site Land West Of Guildford Road Loxwood West Sussex 

Map Ref (E) 503669 (N) 131671 

Applicant Antler Homes Plc Agent Mr Huw James 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION TO DELEGATE TO OFFICERS 
 

 

 
 

 

 

NOT TO 
SCALE 

Note: Do not scale from map. For information only. Reproduced 
from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the 
controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown Copyright. 
License No. 100018803 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



1.0 Reason for Committee Referral 
 

Officer's Recommendation contrary to Development Plan but in accordance with the 
Interim Position Statement for Housing. 

 
This application was considered at the meeting of the Planning Committee on 6th 
January 2021, where the decision on the application was to Defer for S106 
Agreement then Permit.  Following the January 2021 Planning Committee meeting 
work progressed on the S106 Agreement.  In May 2021 the S106 Agreement was 
agreed by all parties and circulating for signatures.  On 26 May 2021 it was brought 
to officers’ attention that Natural England could not conclude that water abstraction 
to serve the Sussex North water supply zone was not causing harm to the 
designated sites within the Arun Valley.  It was considered that this constituted a 
material consideration which needed to be taken into account by the Council before 
the application could be determined. 
 
In the intervening period the Council has also published its 5 year housing land 
supply position for 2021-2026 (updated position at 1 April 2021) which now 
indicates that the Council benefits from a supply of 5.3 years. The implication of 
this changed position is the need to re-appraise the planning application in this 
regard. 
 
The government has also published a Government written ministerial 
statement (June 2021) setting out a requirement for First Homes on sites 
subject to full or outline planning permission determination after 28 December 
2021 (or 28 March 2022 where there has been significant pre-application 
engagement). The provision of First Homes is therefore also a material 
consideration for this application. 

 
2.0 The Site and Surroundings 

 

2.1 The application site is situated on the western side of Loxwood village, approximately 
180m from the existing village shops which include Loxwood Post Office and store and 
butchers and is within easy accessibility to other local amenities, include Loxwood Primary 
School and the Onslow Arms. As set out in the made Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan, the 
majority of the site is located outside, but adjacent to, the settlement boundary of 
Loxwood, however, the north-eastern (front) section of the site is located within the 
settlement boundary. 

 
2.2 The 0.93ha application site is located to the west of Guildford Road (B2133) which 

forms the main thoroughfare through the village of Loxwood. The north-eastern 
(front) part of the site comprises part of the land allocated in Policy 5 of the Loxwood 
Neighbourhood Plan for the provision of affordable and market housing and 
community facilities now known as Nursery Green. The whole allocation site 
(including this application site) was granted outline planning permission for residential 
development comprising 43 dwellings, 2no. retail units, access roads, landscaping 
and village green (ref LX/15/02012/OUT). The indicative plans submitted with the 
outline application, showed the north-eastern part of the current application site 
comprising the 2no. retail units, with a combined floorspace up to 300sqm and 
associated parking provision. Subsequently a reserved matters application was  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



submitted (ref. LX/16/02284/REM) for 43 dwellings, a village green and estate roads. 
This reserved matters application omitted the current application site and therefore, 
whilst the remainder of the allocated site has been fully developed, the north-eastern 
part of the application site remains undeveloped and closed off by heras fencing. 
The remainder of the application site (outside the settlement boundary) currently 
comprises a large paddock and part of the rear ancillary garden land of the 
residential property Black Hall. 

 
2.3 The site is accessed off the main Guildford Road (B2133) via the new access route 

as approved for the Nursery Green housing development to the north of the site. 
 

2.4 The application site is relatively flat with a small sloping gradient ascending from west 
to east. The application site is bounded by mature trees and hedgerows on the 
majority of its perimeter, with trees found predominately on the western boundary 
and a number of low level Blackthorn scrub groups found internally. To the north of 
the application site is residential development of Nursery Green. Residential 
development is also located to the east and south-east of the site, with the curtilage 
of Black Hall, a residential property with an arts and crafts vernacular, located 
immediately to the south of the application site and the public footpath (ref. 795_2/1). 
The western site boundary is defined by a screen of hedging and mature trees 
including major oaks.  Beyond the western boundary and northern boundary (at the 
western end of the Nursery Green development) are agricultural fields currently in arable 
use. The northern and north-eastern boundaries of the site adjoin the pavements and the 
layby provided as part of the Nursery Green development, with the public open space for 
Nursery Green beyond. The surrounding area is residential in character with a mix of 
detached and semi-detached properties set back from Guildford Road. 

 
2.5 A public right of way footpath (PROW) (ref. 795_2/1) runs along the southern 

boundary of the site from Guildford Road, then crosses through the north-western 
corner of the application site, to run along the northern boundary of the site forming 
the border with the Nursery Green development. The PROW then connects to the 
bridleway (ref. LOX/810), which runs along the western boundary of the site. 

 
2.6 The site falls within Flood Zone 1, which are areas defined as having a low probability 

of flood risk. Two parallel drainage ditches run adjacent to the western boundary of 
the site. The nearest connection to the public sewer is in Guildford Road (B2133), 
just south of Black Hall. 

 
2.7 The site does not contain any Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) or other designations 

in terms of landscape or heritage. In terms of heritage assets, there are a number of 
statutorily listed buildings within Loxwood, predominantly located along Guildford 
Road. None of these listed buildings are located within close proximity to the 
application site nor would be directly affected by the proposed development. The 
dwelling to the east, Black Hall, can be considered to constitute an undesignated 
heritage asset but is not statutorily listed nor identified on the Council’s local heritage 
list. 

3.0 The Proposal 
 

3.1 The proposal seeks full planning permission for the erection of 27 no. dwellings and a 
single retail unit with associated on-site parking and turning and landscaping and 
alterations to a public right of way. The proposal has been amended during the course of 
the application and has been reduced from the original submission for 30 dwellings. 
 
 
 

Page 37



3.1a Since the consideration of the application by Planning Committee in January 2021, 
additional information has been provided by the applicant to remove the need for 
some of the pre-commencement conditions from any future approval and to seek 
some minor amendments to the proposal: 

• Submission of a Construction and Environmental Management Plan and Traffic 
management Plan (condition 3); Provision of existing and proposed ground 
levels (condition 4); details of proposed surface water drainage scheme 
including the provision of on-site rainwater harvesting scheme (condition 5); 
details of proposed foul water drainage scheme including the provision of on-
site rainwater harvesting scheme (condition 6); submission of a badger survey 
report (condition 9); submission of a reptile mitigation statement (condition 10), 
the trees outlined to be felled prior to commencement of development have 
now been felled following inspection by a suitably qualified professional 
(condition 11 to be deleted); material schedule and samples (condition 12), 
landscaping scheme (condition 15); boundary treatments (condition 16) and 
details of the electric vehicle charging points (condition 17). 

• Minor amendments to the layout of plots 22-25.  The units retain the same floor 
area, with the ground floor reduced slightly and the first floor increased slightly 
to provide improved private amenity space and provides a better arrangement 
for home working.  There is no change to the number of the bedrooms in these 
units. 

• Minor amendments to the details on the north side elevation of plot 27.  Prior to 
committee the CDC Design Officer stated some concerns with the final design 
for this elevation which included an oriel window.  The applicant is now 
proposing to remove the oriel window at first floor level and replace it with two 
tax (false) windows and a brick design feature on the gable end wall of plot 27 
to provide a design feature when entering the site.   

• The layout has also been altered with regards to the visitor space outside plot 
19.  This has been moved next to the parking bays for plots 20 and 21, which 
have been re-orientated by 90 degrees. 

 
3.2 The proposed development would be accessed by a new vehicular access, via the 

approved access granted as part of the Nursery Green housing development which 
comes off the Guildford Road (B2133). The junction bell mouth is 16m wide with 6m kerb 
radii and the internal access road is 4.8m wide. 

 
3.3 On the site frontage facing the Nursery Green access road with the public open space 

beyond, the layout comprises two x two storey buildings with the site access road running 
between the two buildings. The southern frontage building comprises a retail unit 
(203sqm) with store/office at ground floor level (55sqm) and 4 x 1 bed affordable flats at 
first floor level, together with a bin/cycle store for the residential flats and a bin store for 
the retail unit. The northern building comprises four affordable flats (2x1 bed and 2x2 
bed). To the front of the retail unit adjacent to the Nursery Green access road is the 
relocated loading bay and to the north (side) of the retail unit adjacent to the site access 
road is a further layby for retail parking. A car park, with 8 spaces for retail use together 
with a further 4 unallocated residential spaces, is located immediately to the rear of the 
retail unit. Opposite the car park is a small area of open space (260m2). The housing 
development is located to the rear of the open space and car park, laid out over the 
remainder of the site. It has a simple cul-de- sac layout with all the dwellings fronting onto 
the access road. A further landscaped area is located adjacent to the western boundary, 
at the rear of the site. 
 
 
 

Page 38



3.4 A total of 10 car parking spaces are shown to be provided for the retail unit, all of which 
are unallocated. 57 car parking spaces are provided for the residential element, 
comprising 49 allocated spaces (including 5 single garages) and 8 unallocated visitor 
spaces. 

 
3.5 The overall housing mix comprises: 

6 x 1 bed (6 flats) 
8 x 2 bed (6 houses, 2 flats) 
10 x 3 bed (10 houses) 
3 x 4 bed (3 houses) 

 
3.6 In terms of the split between market and affordable units, the proposal breaks down as 

follows: 
 

Unit size Private (70%) Affordable (30%) 
 rent shared ownership 
1 bed 0 4 2 
2 bed 6 0 2 
3 bed 10 0 0 
4 bed 3 0 0 
TOTAL 19 4 4 

 
3.7 The application now seeks to deliver 27 residential dwellings. In line with Policy 34 of the 

Chichester Local Plan, 30% of the housing (8.1 units) is required to be provided as 
affordable housing. The applicant is proposing 8 units on site. The fraction of the unit is 
required to be provided as an affordable housing commuted sum of £1,942.50. Together 
this meets the affordable housing provision for the site. 

 
3.8 Based on the whole site area (and including the retail unit and car park) the density of 

development is approximately 29 dph. The part of the site outside the settlement 
boundary comprising 19 dwellings has a density of 24.5dph, when including the car park 
and 27.5dph when excluding it. The predominant appearance of the dwellings will be of a 
traditional design and materials. The majority of the dwellings are designed over two 
stories with gable and hipped ends and of brick construction under slate and plain clay 
tiled roofs. Some of the dwellings will be treated with areas of dark horizontal boarding at 
first floor level and detailed brick work and chimneys have been provided in a number of 
prominent locations. The proposed mixed retail and residential building is of scale and 
design which will create a traditional styled shop front. 

 
3.9 There is mature boundary trees and hedging to all boundaries which will be retained. New 

planting is also proposed adjacent to the western boundary and part of the northern 
boundary. 

 

3.10 The proposal includes alteration and diversion of the Public Right of Way (PROW) 
footpath (ref. 795_2/1). The PROW currently runs along the southern boundary of the site 
from Guildford Road, then crosses through the north-western corner of the application 
site, to run along the northern boundary of the site forming the border with the Nursery 
Green development. It is proposed that that PROW is diverted so that it runs adjacent to 
the southern/south-eastern boundary of the site until it joins the bridleway (ref. LOX/810) 
at the western end of the site. An application for the PROW diversion has been submitted 
to the Council and is being dealt with by Democratic Services. The application will be 
considered under the PROW diversion order under S257 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. The decision on the S257 diversion order would follow the grant of 
any planning permission. 

 
 

Page 39



4.0 History (including Nursery Green site) 

 
15/02012/OUT PER106 Outline application for proposed residential 

development comprising 43 dwellings, 2no. 
retail units, access roads, landscaping and 
village green. 

16/02284/REM PER Reserved matters approval for layout, scale, 
appearance and landscaping for 43 dwellings 
(excluding retail unit) in relation to outline 
application LX/15/02012/OUT. 

 
17/02152/FUL PER Addition of a post and rail fence to front 

edge of public open space. 

 
19/01498/FUL 
 
 
 
 
22/00489/DOC 

PERS106 
 
 
 
 
PCO 

Single retail unit on the ground floor and 2 
floors of residential accommodation, 4 no. 2 
bed and 6 no. 1 bed flats with associated 
parking and landscaping. 
 
Discharge of conditions 3 (arboriculture), 
4 (CEMP), 5 (surface water drainage 
scheme) 6, (SuDS scheme), 7 (foul 
drainage scheme), 8 (protection measures 
for PROW) of Planning Permission 
LX/19/01498/FUL.  

 
5.0 Constraints 

 
Listed Building NO 

Conservation Area NO 

Rural Area YES 

AONB NO 

Tree Preservation Order NO 

EA Flood Zone FZ1 

- Flood Zone 2 NO 

- Flood Zone 3 NO 

Historic Parks and Gardens NO 

 

6.0 Representations and Consultations 
 

6.1 Loxwood Parish Council 
 

Comments received 05/11/2020 
 

The amended plans had reduced density by three houses and included very small green 
spaces. The Committee has previously commented the density was too high and the 
amended density is still high at 25 houses/hectare. The average density over the last 10 
years for this area is 18.5/hectare. The Made NP Policy 9 states: 
“The density of any new development should be in character with the local surrounding 
area, respect the semi-rural nature of the parish and be designed to give an impression of 
spaciousness with uniform houses and plots being avoided.” 
The amended plans do not conform with this Policy. 

 
 

Page 40



The Committee previously commented that car parking was inadequate for retail and 
residential purposes. WSCC have responded to the revised plans and calculated what 
they require. According to WSCC, allocated residential parking is 13 spaces short and 
retail 9 spaces short. Total short of 22 spaces overall. WSCC are asking CDC to require 
the applicant to resubmit revised plans. Loxwood Parish Council agree with this comment 
as the result of lack of parking will create a temptation for cars to be parked on the 
existing retail area, within Nursery Green or along the B2133. 

 
No detail on sewerage disposal. Southern Water has responded in standard format not 
taking into account the issues in Loxwood. As per the Thakeham Homes development 
(20/01481/FUL), the issue of sewerage disposal should be the subject of a planning 
condition which requires that Southern Water satisfactorily upgrade the infrastructure prior 
to the occupation of the first house/retail unit. 

 
The applicants flood report does not adequately detail the proposed method of draining 
the site. The Executive Summary of the report states the following: 

 
“Ground investigation undertaken at the site confirms that underlying soils to be cohesive 
in nature and therefore unsuitable for infiltration as a means of disposing surface water 
runoff generated by the development. 
Surface water from the development will therefore discharge to the existing land drainage 
ditch immediately beyond the south-western boundary of the site as currently via overland 
flows. 
It is assumed that the ditch connects to the culverted watercourse north of the site. 
Further site investigation is required to confirm the ditch outfall.” 

 
Loxwood Parish Councils drainage consultant has investigated the drainage ditches to the 
South West of the site and found that the ditches do not have any outfall. See attached 
sketch. It is, therefore not clear how the site will be drained. CDC’s own drainage 
engineer, Dom Healy has expressed the same concern and has suggested a planning 
condition which requires the drainage strategy be approved by CDC prior to the 
commencement of the development. LPC supports this approach and will send our 
consultants sketch to Dom Healy under separate cover. 

 

WSCC has recognised the Loxwood NP Traffic Calming Policy and have suggested £15K 
be condition to allow for another VAS. The Parish has a high number of VASs and the 
Parish Council does not feel this is an appropriate response to their Traffic Calming Policy 
is this area and would welcome the chance to discuss this with the site proposer and CDC 
before planning permission is granted. 

 
The Committee discussed the issues and RESOLVED support in principle for the 
development of the site but they have concerns with this application due to the sewerage 
connection, drainage, car parking and density issues as detailed above. The retail outlet 
was supported on the site. 

 
Comments received 09/09/2020 

 
The Parish Council responds to the Planning proposal as set out above. In principle the 
Parish Council generally supports the development of this site in conjunction with the 
Commercial site area attached to the Nursery Green development subject to the concerns 
and comments listed below. 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



1. The provision of a new village shop on the commercial part of the Nursery Green 
development is welcomed and the proposed design appears to be of the correct 
vernacular for the village and offers the opportunity for a size of shop appropriate for 
both the village and the surrounding area. 

 
2. However, the proposed layout for the Land to the Rear of Black Hall, are deemed to be 

too cramped in comparison with other developments surrounding it and elsewhere in 
the village. The density of the Black Hall site (0.76 hectares) and with the proposed 22 
no. dwellings on it together with car parking for the new shop is 29 dwellings per 
hectare (dph). The average density of surrounding developments over the last 15 years 
in Loxwood is 18.5 dph. 

 
3. If the car park area for the village shop and associated flats is deducted from this site 

area because they are not associated with the 22 dwellings of the housing 
development, then the area becomes 0.72 hectares and the density increases to 30.6 
dph. 

 
4. The Parish Council believes that this is not an acceptable density for this development 

and is not in keeping with the existing density of the village. The recently approved 
application at land to the West of Guildford Road (Thake Ham homes site) for 50 
houses on an area of 2.9 hectares has a density of only 17.2 dph. The Nursery Green 
site adjacent to this site has a density of 22.75 dph by the same developer. 

 
5. The design of the site also does not include any open space which does not lend itself 

to the requirement for maintaining the rural nature of the village as defined in 
Neighbourhood plan policy 10 g; h; and j. The contention by the developer, Antler 
Homes Ltd., that they could include the green space allocated at the front of the 
Nursery Green development as part of their density calculation lacks credibility and is 
incorrect as this land was part of the design for the Nursery Green residential 
development and not this development (see LX/15/02012/OUT and LX/16/02284/REM 
which define the site layout and content for the Nursery Green Development). 

 
6. There is insufficient provision for car parking for the proposed new retail shop and 

associated flats/apartments to be built on the commercial part of the site which has a 
current planning consent LX/19/01498/FUL, now superseded by this planning 
application, and which extends into the Black Hall site. There are insufficient parking 
slots assigned for a retail unit of 2195 sq ft (204 sq m) shop floor space (2787 sq ft/259 
sq m overall including store and office). CDC’s Planning Guidance Note 5 - Parking 
Standards document requirement for food retail shops is 1 space per 14 sq m. This 
equates to 15 spaces for the retail unit itself let alone the requirement of 4 additional 
spaces for the 4 flats above. 

 
7. Residents have also expressed concern over the relocation of the existing PROW 

which currently runs to the northern boundary of this proposed development. Loxwood 
Parish council believes the PROW could essentially remain where it is with a little 
redesign of the site. 

 
8. Loxwood Parish Council would also like to bring to the attention of the planning officers 

the need for an acceptable permanent foul and surface water solution given the issues 
recently experienced with the adjacent Nursery Green development where the design 
of the temporary waste water solution is not fit for purpose causing Southern Water to 
require infrastructure improvements before they will consider adopting this scheme. A 
repeat of this situation would be unacceptable for this or any other new development 
within Loxwood. 

 
 

Page 42



Loxwood Parish Council urges the Planning Officers to take note of these concerns in 
their determination of this application as, if allowed in its current layout, it does not meet 
the requirements of both CDC and LPC. Also, policies 7; 8; 9; 10; 15; 16; 17 and 18 of the 
current Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan apply. 

 
6.2 Southern Water 

 

Comments received on 24/03/2022 
 
No discharge of foul sewerage from the site shall be discharged into the 
public system until offsite drainage works to provide sufficient capacity 
within foul network to cope with additional sewerage flows are complete.  
Southern Water is currently in process of designing and planning 
delivery of offsite sewerage network reinforcements.  As previously 
advised Southern Water seeks to limit the timescales to a maximum of 
24 months from a firm commitment of the development. 
 
The developer is currently in consultation with Southern Water with 
regards to Section 104 agreement for adoption of sewers.  On site 
drainage should be constructed as per details to be agreed with 
Southern Water under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act. 
 
All other comments in our response dated 04/12/2020 remain unchanged 
and valid. 
 
Comments received 04/12/2020 (where they differ from those received on 
03/09/2020) 

 
Southern Water has undertaken a desktop study of the impact that the additional foul 
sewerage flows from the proposed development will have on the existing public sewer 
network. This initial study indicates that these additional flows may lead to an increased 
risk of foul flooding from the sewer network. Any network reinforcement that is deemed 
necessary to mitigate this will be provided by Southern Water. Southern Water and the 
Developer will need to work together in order to review if the delivery of our network 
reinforcement aligns with the proposed occupation of the development, as it will take time 
to design and deliver any such reinforcement. It may be possible for some initial dwellings 
to connect, pending network reinforcement. Southern Water will review and advise on this 
following consideration of the development programme and the extent of network 
reinforcement required. 

 
Southern Water hence requests the following condition to be applied: Occupation of the 
development is to be phased and implemented to align with the delivery by Southern 
Water of any sewerage network reinforcement required to ensure that adequate waste 
water network capacity is available to adequately drain the development. 

 

Comments received 03/09/2020 
 

The applicant has not stated details of means of disposal of foul drainage from the site. 
Should planning approval be granted, Southern Water recognises its obligations under the 
new charging regime to provide capacity in the existing sewerage system to 
accommodate the needs of the proposed development. Any such network reinforcement 
will be part funded through the New Infrastructure Charge with the remainder funded  
 
 
 
 

Page 43



through Southern Water’s Capital Works programme. Southern Water and the Developer 
will need to work together in order to review if the delivery of our network reinforcement 
aligns with the proposed occupation of the development, as it will take time to design and 
deliver any such reinforcement. It may be possible for some initial dwellings to connect, 
pending network reinforcement. Southern Water will review and advise on this following 
consideration of the development program and the extent of network reinforcement 
required. The overall time required depends on the complexity of any scheme needed to 
provide network reinforcement. Southern Water will seek however to limit the timescales 
to a maximum of 24 months from a firm commitment by the developer to commence 
construction on site and provided that outline planning approval has been granted. 

 
Where a SuDS scheme is to be implemented, the drainage details submitted to the LPA 
should specify the responsibilities of each party for the implementation of the SuDS 
scheme, specify a timetable for implementation and provide a management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development. The Council's technical staff and 
the relevant authority for land drainage consent should comment on the adequacy of the 
proposals to discharge surface water to the local watercourse. Land uses such as 
general hardstanding that may be subject to oil/petrol spillages should be drained by 
means of oil trap gullies or petrol/oil interceptors. The design of the drainage should 
ensure that no groundwater or land drainage is to enter public sewers. Investigations 
indicate that Southern Water can facilitate water supply for the development and will 
require a formal application for a connection. It is possible that a sewer now deemed to 
be public could be crossing the development site. Therefore, should any sewer be found 
during construction works, an investigation of the sewer will be required to ascertain its 
ownership before any further works commence on site. 

 
A condition and informative are requested. 

 
6.3 Environment Agency 

No objection. 
 

6.3a Natural England  
 
 Comments received on 21/04/2022 (in response to the HRA) 
  

No objection – subject to appropriate mitigation being secured. 
 
We consider that without appropriate mitigation the application would: 

• As submitted, the applications below could have an adverse effect on the 
integrity of the Arun Valley Special Protection Area (SPA), Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) and Ramsar site (together the Habitats Sites). 
 

In order to mitigate these adverse effects and make the development acceptable, the 
following mitigation options should be secured: 

• Securing of onsite and offsite water efficient fixtures and fittings and 
greywater harvesting as detailed in the water neutrality mitigation letter of 15 
March. We advise that an appropriate planning condition or obligation (please 
see below) is attached to any planning permission to secure these measures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



HRA Conclusions 
Your appropriate assessment concludes that your authority is able to ascertain that 
the proposal will not result in adverse effects on the integrity of any of the sites in 
question. From the evidence provided above, the appellant is able to demonstrate 
that water neutrality can be achieved via securing a combination of onsite and offsite 
water efficient fixtures and fittings and rainwater harvesting. 
 
Having considered the assessment, and the measures proposed to mitigate for all 
identified adverse effects that could potentially occur as a result of the proposal, 
Natural England advises that we concur with the assessment conclusions, providing 
that all mitigation measures in the water neutrality mitigation proposals (15 March 
2022) are appropriately secured in any planning permission given. The applicant 
states that all mitigation measures will be controlled by way of a S106 agreement. 
You, as the competent authority, should ensure conditions are sufficiently robust 
to ensure that mitigation measures can be fully implemented and are enforceable 
until such time as an alternative water supply is operational within Sussex North. 
Conditions will need to provide a sufficient degree of certainty to pass the Habitats 
Regulations. 
 
Comments received on 13/09/2021 
 
This development falls within the Sussex North Water Supply Zone.  As it cannot be 
concluded that the existing abstraction within the Sussex North Water Supply zone 
is not having an impact on the Arun Valley site, we advise that developments within 
this zone must not add to this impact. 
 
Water neutrality – developments within Sussex North must therefore, not add to this 
impact and one way of achieving this is to demonstrate water neutrality.  
Strategic approach – NE has advised that water neutrality across the Sussex North 
Water Supply Zone needs to be resolved in partnership through Local Plans across 
the affected authorities.  NE is working in partnership with all the relevant authorities 
to secure water neutrality collectively through a water neutrality strategy.  We advise 
that whilst the strategy is evolving, decision on planning applications should await 
its completion. 
 
Extant permissions – the application has the benefit of an extant planning 
permission.  However this application seeks to increase the number of dwellings.  
We advise therefore that the extant permission is used as a baseline for calculating a 
water budget and that the development must demonstrate water neutrality for 
anything above this baseline. 
 
NE notes that your authority has undertaken an appropriate assessment of the 
proposal, which concludes that your authority is not able to ascertain that the 
proposal will not result in adverse effects on the integrity of any of the European 
sites in question.  Having considered the assessment and the measures proposed to 
mitigate for any adverse effects, NE concurs with the conclusions you have drawn. 
 
Natural England advise that either the application is revised to achieve this in line 
with our Position Statement (September 2021) or awaits completion of the strategic 
approach. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



6.4 Police 
 

With the level of crime and anti-social behaviour in Chichester district being below average 
when compared with the rest of Sussex, I have no major concerns with the proposals, 
however, additional measures to mitigate against any identified local crime trends and site 
specific requirements should be considered. 

• Commercial - securing of cycles left unattended must be considered within the design. 

• Retail unit and residential flats - there needs to be clear segregation of the residential 
from the retail element of the development. Access control will need to be 
implemented into the design and layout to ensure control of entry into the 
apartments. Postal arrangements for the flats should be through the wall or externally 
mounted secure post boxes. 

• Parking - communal parking must be within view of an active room within the property 
(eg. kitchens and living rooms). 

• Footpath – secure by design recommends that public footpaths should not run to the 
rear of, and provide access to gardens, rear yards or dwellings as these have been 
proven to generate crime. Where this is unavoidable, designers should consider 
making the footpath a focus of the development and ensure that they are as straight as 
possible, wide, well lit, devoid of potential hiding places, overlooked by surrounding 
buildings and well maintained so as to enable natural surveillance. 

• Lighting throughout the development will be an important consideration and where it is 
implemented it should conform to the recommendations within BS 5489-1:2013. 

 

6.5 WSCC Highways 
 

Comments received on 05/11/2021 

Car Parking - Retail spaces now clearly marked including 1 x space with additional 
hatching for disabled parking. Spaces outside the shop are also marked for retail 
use. EV parking plan already provided and acceptable. 

Cycle Parking - All plots now shown with cycle parking and from memory plots 16-18 
have garages so cycle parking can be within these. You may wish to ask for finer 
detail (facility size, secure/covered etc,) though LHA consider it has been 
demonstrated that each plot plus shop will be provided with cycle parking. 

Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) - Whilst tracking hasn’t been 
provided it is anticipated that there is sufficient space within the site for turning of 
construction vehicles. It is considered the above conditions can be worded as details 
approved as the detail is now sufficient from a highway safety point of view. 

Travel Plan Statement – Fee of £1500 for monitoring to be secured through a s106 
agreement/ Unilateral Undertaking, as is now our process. 

 

Comments received 01/06/2021 
 
In comments dated 16th December 2020 the LHA raised no objections subject to 
conditions. The conditions included that car parking, cycle parking, construction 
management plan (CMP) details be provided. The LHA also advised on 17th 
December 2020 that a Travel Plan Statement (TPS) be secured. It is understood 
that amended plans and details have been provided to address some of these 
matters and negate the need for some pre-commencement conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



Car Parking - The latest site plan still shows the 2 x retail spaces as U8 and U9 and 
the residential only spaces within the retail car parking area have not been clearly 
marked. As per previous comments it is also advised that 1 x retail parking bay is 
marked with additional side and rear hatching as a disabled bay. Details of electric 
vehicle charging points should also be provided. The LHA therefore advise that 
car parking as details to be provided is still secured as a pre-commencement 
condition, or additional details should be provided at this stage. 
 
Cycle Parking - Whilst it is noted that the plans give some indication of cycle 
parking areas, for example in and outside the retail unit, further detail for 
residential and commercial cycle parking is still required and thus the LHA advise 
this is still secured as a pre-commencement condition, or additional details should 
be provided at this stage. 
 
Travel Plan Statement - The TPS has not yet been provided. The LHA advise that 
the TPS is secured through a s106 agreement/ Unilateral Undertaking and a fee of 
£1500 for monitoring and auditing of the Travel Plan Statement is secured. 

 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) - The relevant points of the 
CEMP have been reviewed and comments as follows: 

• the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during 
construction - will vary but on average 10 material deliveries per week - some 
articulated but mainly rigid, 8 skip trucks per week and 15-20 subcontractor / 
LGV movements per day. Swept path tracking for the construction vehicles 
anticipated, including articulated HGV, should be provided, including 
demonstration that these can turn within the site. 

• the location and specification for vehicular access during construction - 
access will be via Nursery Green and Guildford Road. The applicant should 
apply for a s278 application for the access through Nursery Green as per 
previously advised informative. The engineer reviewing the access 
application will be able to confirm at which stage of construction the access 
will be suitable to use 

• the provision made for the parking of vehicles by contractors, site operatives 
and visitors - within the site and shown on layout plan. 

• the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste - designated areas 
within the site as shown on the plan, turning space within site and banksmen 
to be used to supervise turning manoeuvres. As per comments above, 
tracking for construction vehicle including articulated should be provided. 

• the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the development - 
within the site and shown on layout plan. 

• the erection and maintenance of security hoarding - shown on layout plan, 
the CEMP states this will not obstruct visibility for pedestrians or vehicles. 

• the provision of road sweepers, wheel washing facilities and the type, details 
of operation and location of other works required to mitigate the impact of 
construction upon the public highway (including the provision of temporary 
Traffic Regulation Orders) - wheel washing to be located near site entrance, 
road cleaning/ sweepers to take place where required. 

Conclusion - The Car Parking, Cycle Parking, CEMP and TPS require further 
information as set out above. 
 

Comments received 16/12/2020 
No objection. 

 
 
 

Page 47



Parking 
Spaces U8 & U9 have been marked as 2 no. Retail Spaces yet as they are still marked 
U8 & U9 they could be mistaken for unallocated spaces for residents. It is advised the 
plan is updated to remove reference to U8 & U9. The unallocated spaces within the retail 
car park haven't been marked for residential only - the LPA may wish to seek these small 
amendments or condition it as details to be provided for parking. 

 

Whilst it is noted that 3.1D of the DR sets out that the layby parking will be of additional 
space suitable for disabled use but won't be marked up as such, the LHA still advise that 
one parking bay is properly marked up for disabled use, with additional hatching etc - 
details of this can be secured via a parking condition. 

 
A single additional unallocated space for residents has been provided south of the turning 
head. This brings the total number of residential unallocated spaces to 8 no. with no 
additional allocated spaces (46.5). The shortfall in residential parking is therefore 11.5 
spaces (where garages count as 0.5 space). The LHA consider there may be a benefit to 
providing additional spaces for example for the larger plots and 3-bedroom dwellings 
where the shortfall is most significant. Nevertheless, it is considered that some overspill 
parking could occur within the site. Double yellow lines are proposed at the new junction 
via a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) and thus the LHA does not consider that overspill 
parking could occur in locations that would be detrimental to highway safety. The LPA 
may wish to consider the shortfall from an amenity and street-scene point of view and a 
detailed breakdown of where the shortfall lies can be provided if required. 

 
RSA 
Whilst an updated RSA document has not yet been provided, an updated DR has and the 
LHA consider this is sufficient at this stage to review the issues detailed within. The 
updated report covers the amended proposals for site access, linking footway, access 
crossing, layby relocation on Nursery Green and the proposed internal road layout. The 
previous and any new issues are summarised: 

 

• 3.1A - referred to taper of loading bay within the site which was advised to be 
lengthened (previous issue). The loading bay is now proposed from Nursery Green 
and swept path tracking plans have been provided for servicing vehicles showing this 
is suitable. The layby within the site will be re purposed for retail unit car parking. The 
auditor has confirmed that this addresses issue as servicing will no longer be from 
within the site - no further action required. 

• 3.1B - referred to the internal layby not having dropped kerbs to facilitate loading 
operations (previous issue). Whilst the loading bay will now be from Nursery Green 
the auditor has confirmed that the problem has been addressed by the DR confirming 
that dropped kerbs will be detailed at Stage 2 RSA. The LHA consider that review for 
dropped kerbs at both internal parking layby and servicing layby on Nursery Green 
can be addressed at Stage 2 RSA - no further action required at this stage. 

• 3.1C - referred to service vehicle manoeuvres within the retail car park access leading 
to risk of pedestrian collision (previous issue). The loading bay is now proposed from 
Nursery Green, an improvement over the previous arrangement, and omits the need 
for a servicing vehicle to turn within the retail car park access. The auditor notes that 
cars may still turn in this area and thus the point has been retained and a footway 
should be provided. As per previous comments the DR disagrees stating that the 
diverted PROW rear of the bays will provide a route for pedestrians. The LHA agree 
with DR and note that any dropped kerbs from the car park to retail unit can be  
 
 
 
 

Page 48



explored at detailed design stage. An additional point has been raised by the auditor 
regards loading bay on Nursery Green which will remove parking on the side of the 
road nearest to the shops. Auditor states that pedestrians may park on site road and 
cross to the shop and thus a crossing point should be provided. The DR argues that a 
TRO will be secured for double yellow lines in this area preventing parking outside of 
dedicated bays, reducing the likelihood of a pedestrian needing to cross the main site 
access road at this location. This point can be further reviewed at Stage 2 RSA. The 
LHA agree with the DR and that any future crossing issues for pedestrians visiting the 
shop can be addressed at Stage 2 RSA. 

• 3.1D - referred to the retail car park wheelchair access to the footway (previous 
issue). The auditor has reviewed the DR for this point and confirmed that it addresses 
the issue. A dropped kerb will be provided for access from parking area to shop and 
from parking layby to shop and detailed at detailed design stage to support the Stage 
2 RSA. The LHA agree that no further action is required at this stage but still advise 
that a bay marked up specifically for disabled use is provided, and can be secured via 
condition. 

• Point labelled N/A - refers to pedestrian crossing at retail unit car park access (new 
issue). The auditor states that the crossing should be aligned with the footway on the 
shop side. The DR disagrees, stating that it has been provided in the only location 
where it can be aligned to retail car park access. The LHA agree with the DR and 
consider there is sufficient space after the crossing to reach the shop - without being 
directly placed in to the parking layby. 

 

The LHA consider all RSA issues have been addressed at this stage and further review on 
some of the points can be include at Stage 2 RSA. Completed DR has been sent to the 
LPA under separate cover. 
 
Conclusion 
The Local Highway Authority does not consider that the proposal would have an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety or result in ‘severe’ cumulative impacts on the 
operation of the highway network, therefore is not contrary to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (paragraph 109), and that there are no transport grounds to resist the 
proposal. 

 
Previous comments also received 08/12/2020, 30/10/2020 & 17/09/2020; requesting 
further information on matters including internal layout, matters within the Road 
Safety Audit, parking, loading and pedestrian crossing points. 

 
6.6 WSCC Fire and Rescue 

 

Condition required for additional fire hydrant(s) for the proposed development. This is to 
ensure that all dwellings on the proposed site are within 150 metres of a fire hydrant for 
the supply of water for firefighting. 

 
6.7 WSCC Lead Local Flood Authority 

 

Comments received 13/10/2021 
Further discussions and correspondence have taken place and we support 
the latest comments provided by the District Drainage Engineer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



Comments received 14/09/2020 

Current surface water flood risk based on 30year and 100year events - Low Risk 
Modelled groundwater flood hazard classification - Moderate Risk 
Ordinary Watercourses nearby? - No 
Records of any flooding within the site? No 

 
6.8 WSCC Public Rights of Way Officer 

 

Comments received 24/09/2020 
I wish to withdraw my objection to this proposal having had the opportunity to fully review 
the submission. 

 
In place I wish to advise that should the Planning Authority agree that a diversion is 
required under S.257 of the Town and Country Planning Act we will expect a minimum 2m 
wide Footpath, surfaced according to our specification which can be obtained on request. 
It should be noted that Hoggin is not acceptable. 

 
The development must not commence until the S.257 diversion has been secured / 
confirmed and WSCC will a consultee as part of the objection process. This is also 
important as a closure of the existing footpath, which will be required when development 
begins, cannot be instigated unless the above process has been completed. An 
application to close the existing Footpath, once work on the site begins, will be required 
and details found on the WSCC PRoW website, a minimum of 6 weeks is required to 
consider the application. 

 
No new structures can be added to a Public Right of Way without the permission of WSCC 
as Highways Authority. 

We would encourage the applicant and Planning Authority to consider the boundary of the 
PRoW and materials used. High close board fencing for example can create a tunnel-like 
environment and potential social misuse issues causing a nuisance for residents and 
reduce the appeal of the Footpath. 

 
Where the ground levels adjacent to the PRoW are to be raised above existing ground 
levels, this could increase the risk of flooding. A suitable drainage system must be 
installed adjacent to the path and likewise no drainage should expel directly onto the 
PRoW surface itself. 

 
Comments received 18/09/2020 

 
Objection 
The existence of a Public Right of Way (PROW) Footpath 795_2 is a material 
consideration. Should planning consent be granted, the impact of development upon the 
public use, enjoyment and amenity of the PROW must be considered by the planning 
authority. 

 
The granting of planning permission does not authorise obstruction of, interference to or 
moving of any Public Right of Way (PROW); this can only be done with the prior consent 
of West Sussex County Council (WSCC), as highway authority, and possibly also a legal 
Order process by Chichester District Council as the local planning authority. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



It is unclear from the proposal how the applicant intends to lawfully divert the Public 
Footpath and how such a diversion would be a 'benefit to all Loxwood residents' as stated 
in the application would be achieved. Indeed by doing so connectivity is lost from adjacent 
Footpath 795_1 causing an inconvenience to users who would be diverted along the 
Highway before able to re-join the PRoW. (See map below). A diversion also moves the 
Footpath away from the development to the North and the convenience store. 

 
As Highway Authority we would seek not only to upgrade the surface of Footpath 795_2 
but also to take this opportunity to upgrade the status to Bridleway, thus allowing for a 
wider variety of users including cyclists and equestrians. This would increase the local 
amenity and provide a safe off-road alternative linking to existing Bridleway 810 to the 
West of the site. 

 
Upgrading the route to Bridleway would not only benefit residents of the new development 
and their guest but also to the wider community and visitors to Loxwood Parish. 

 
We would seek to maintain the route on its existing alignment and secure an upgrade to 
Bridleway status. As such the route will require a minimum 3m width and surfaced to 
WSCC specification. 

 
6.9 CDC Housing Enabling Officer 

 

Comments received 28/03/2022 
 
Following previous Housing Delivery Team comments dated 17 December 2020 
and 22 October 2020, 8 affordable dwellings are being provided on site and the 
0.1 unit is being provided as an affordable housing commuted sum.  
 
The overall housing mix comprises:  
6 x 1 bed (6 flats)  
8 x 2 bed (6 houses, 2 flats)  
10 x 3 bed (10 houses)  
3 x 4 bed (3 houses)  
 
Unit size   Private (70%)                         Affordable (30%)  
               Rent   Shared Ownership 
1 bed  0    4 (flats)   2 (flats) 
2 bed    6    0    2 (flats) 
3 bed  10    0    0 
4 bed  3    0    0 
TOTAL  10    4    4 
 
We would typically require an element of First Homes as part of the affordable 
housing provision reflecting a Government written ministerial statement (June 
2021) requirement for First Homes on sites subject to full or outline planning 
permission determination after 28 December 2021 (or 28 March 2022 where 
there has been significant pre-application engagement).  
 
It is understood that ongoing planning engagement for the scheme, amended 
during the course of the application, is continuing beyond 28 March 2022 and 
there is potential for late changes to impact development delivery and the 
required tenure split. The Housing Delivery Team is aware that there are  
 
 
 
 

Page 51



additional elements in this particular case to consider in the round, namely the 
challenges overcome in having secured a registered provider to acquire, 
manage and maintain the 4 x 1 bed affordable rented flats above the new retail 
premises.   
 
On this occasion only, a departure from the First Homes ministerial statement 
is acceptable. 

 

Comments received 17/12/2020 
 

The applicant has submitted revised plans. 8 affordable dwellings are being provided 
on site and the 0.1 unit is being provided as an affordable housing commuted sum. In 
line with the Council’s adopted Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD, 
we would typically require a commuted sum of £133,875. However, the Housing 
Delivery Team is aware that there are a number of additional elements in this 
particular case to consider in the round, namely the provision of a policy compliant 
shop. On this occasion only, a departure from the SPD is acceptable and a 
commuted sum of £1,942.50 is required. This has been calculated as follows: 

 
Affordable housing commuted sum calculation 
444 m² (Onsite A/H GIFA) / 8 (A/H units onsite) = 55.5 m² (average A/H unit size) 
55.5 m² x 0.1 (A/H remaining fraction) = 5.55 m² 
5.55 m² x £350 = £1942.50 

 
Proposed housing mix 
No changes have been made to the affordable size and tenure mix which was 
previously agreed. The market mix varies from my previous recommendations by 
proposing 1 additional 4 bed in lieu of a 3 bedroom dwelling. It is recognised that this 
is a minor departure from my previous comments in that it provides 1 additional 4 
bedroom dwelling in lieu of a 3 bedroom. On review, the provision the additional 4 
bed is within the tolerances of the Chichester Housing and Economic Development 
Needs Assessment (HEDNA) 2020 market mix requirements. As such, the market 
mix is acceptable. To conclude, the Housing Delivery Team raises no objections to 
this proposal. 

 
Comments received 22/10/2020 

 
The application now seeks to deliver 27 residential dwellings. In line with Policy 34 of 
the Chichester Local Plan, 30% of the housing (8.1 units) is required to be provided 
as affordable housing. The applicant is proposing 8 which meets this requirement. 
The fraction of the unit is required to be provided as an affordable housing commuted 
sum of £133,875, calculated in accordance with the Planning Obligations and 
Affordable Housing SPD. 

 
Market Housing Mix 
The proposed market mix is not in line with the Chichester HEDNA 2018 
requirements in that it provides a disproportionate amount of 3 beds in lieu of other 
dwelling sizes. Previously this was acceptable, as it was not a significant departure 
away from the required need (5% 1 bed, 25-30% 2 bed, 40-45% 3 bed and 25% 4 
bed). Taking this into account along with existing housing stock, we would require the 
following market mix to be delivered: 
6 x 2 bedroom; 11 x 3 bedroom, 2 x 4 bedroom 

 
 
 
 

Page 52



Affordable Housing Mix 
Antler Homes and their agent have been in continuous discussions with the Housing 
Delivery Team over the disposal of the affordable dwellings to a registered provider. 
Only 1 of the registered providers provided an offer, based on the following mix: 
Affordable rented – 4 x 1 bedroom 
Shared ownership – 2 x 1 bedroom and 2 x 2 bedroom. 
Whilst this is a departure away from the Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing 
SPD requirements of 70% affordable rent and 30% shared ownership, it is 
acknowledged that this is made necessary by a lack of registered provider interest. 
The resultant mix will still ensure the delivery of 4 affordable rented units which will 
contribute to meeting the identified need within Loxwood Parish. Therefore, on this 
occasion this is acceptable. 
 

Pepper potting and design 
All 8 affordable units are clustered together towards the entrance to the site. This is 
compliant with the Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD and therefore 
acceptable. The development should be delivered tenure blind and the affordable 
dwellings should not be externally distinguishable from the market dwellings. 

 
To conclude, the Housing Delivery Team is unable to support this application until the 
market mix has been amended to meet the above requirements. 

 
Comments received 01/09/2020 

 
This application seeks to deliver 30 residential dwellings. Policy 34 of the Chichester 
Local Plan requires 30% (9 units) to be delivered as affordable housing. The 
applicant is proposing 9 affordable dwellings which meet this requirement. 

 
Market Housing 
The proposed market mix is not in line with the HEDNA requirements in that it 
provides greater number of 3 beds in lieu of 4 beds. On this occasion a departure 
away from the HEDNA required mix is acceptable as the existing stock within 
Loxwood is weighted towards the larger, less affordable 4 bedroom dwellings 
(43.4%). The proposal to provide more 3 beds will provide a more affordable option 
for younger newly forming households and those wanting to downsize, freeing up 
larger accommodation elsewhere. 

 
Affordable Housing 
It is noted that the provision of flats makes it more difficult to provide a policy 
compliant mix. As such, the provision of mainly smaller units is acceptable. However, 
I have concerns that the provision of 4 x 1 bed affordable rented flats above the retail 
unit will be unattractive to a registered provider to acquire. In our experience, RPs will 
refuse to take these types of units on due to the management and maintenance 
difficulties it provides. Consequently, this may result in the required tenure split not 
being deliverable. As demonstrated by the Chichester Housing and Economic 
Development Needs Assessment, there is a greater demand for affordable rented 
accommodation to come forward with 2,706 homes needed between 2016 and 2036 
(2.5 times larger than low cost home ownership at 1,082). It is recommended that the 
applicant should engage with the Council’s registered provider partners to ensure 
that the required mix can be delivered. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



Pepper Potting 
The affordable units are located towards the north eastern boundary of the site 
abutting the entrance. The location of all 9 units together is consistent with the 
Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD requirement on pepper potting i.e. 
no more than 10 units clustered together. The affordable units should be delivered 
tenure blind and should not be externally distinguishable from the market dwellings. 

 
To conclude, until further clarity is sought on whether a registered provider would be 
willing to take on the required tenures of affordable housing, the Housing Delivery 
Team is unable to support this application. 
 

6.10 CDC Design Officer 
 

Comments received 17/12/2020 
 

Layout 
The site is constrained due to both shape and access which has made achieving an 
acceptable layout more challenging. The density of the proposals has been reduced 
during the application and is now at a level which is considered to enable the spacing 
of the properties and layout to better relate to the more rural character of Loxwood 
and provide more meaningful areas of landscaping / frontage to the proposed 
dwellings. This has also resulted in improvements to the layout removing aspects of 
the scheme which it was considered had the potential to appear as back land 
development. 

 
It is considered that the positioning and variety of parking types throughout the 
development is sufficiently varied to prevent parked cars becoming dominant within 
the street scenes. The parking in front of plot 21 has been revised in the latest set of 
drawings. Whilst the same number of spaces are proposed in this area it is 
considered that the repositioning is likely to result in a cramped relationship and 
outlook for plot 21. 

 
The western edge of the site boarders open countryside. Except for the retention of 
the row of mature trees to this boundary it was not initially considered that the 
development had given adequate consideration to softening this edge of the 
development. However over the course of the application improvements have been 
made to soften this edge securing larger landscaped areas and setting the built 
aspects of the development back particularly from the North West corner which 
provides a greater buffer zone to the countryside and a more suitable setting for the 
PROW. 

 
The existing PROW is proposed to be diverted which results in the path passing 
between the rear of both the existing and proposed housing. Throughout the 
application process this has been raised as a concern and does not align with the 
aims of BLF12 which suggests pedestrian routes passing to the rear of homes rather 
than to the front should be avoided. It is acknowledged that the existing PROW 
passes to the rear of housing however it is open to the existing site on one side. As 
proposed the resulting path would be of a substantial length and would lack passive 
surveillance which is likely to reduce the sense of security for both users of the path 
and occupiers of the existing and proposed dwellings. During the application it was 
indicated that the positioning of the path or the houses should be reconsidered 
however this aspect of the scheme remains unresolved. 

 
 
 

Page 54



Appearance 
The proposed development has taken a traditional approach to its appearance which 
is considered appropriate for the setting. Given the closeness in age and adjacency 
of the proposals to the existing Loxwood Green development throughout the 
application it has been suggested that greater consistency should be provided 
between the two developments particularly in terms of materiality. Concern remains 
regarding the use of darker cladding boards and windows on some properties and 
the contrast this creates with the white fenestrations within the rest of the 
development. However it is considered there has been improvement in this regard 
through the reduction in the extent of dark cladding proposed. The houses with the 
dark boarding are now proposed to have brick walls to the ground floor which will 
visually link them with other properties within the development and therefore goes 
some way to mitigating the strong contrast proposed previously. 

 
The design and scale of the proposed mixed retail and residential building is 
considered more appropriate than the current approval. The approach to create a 
traditional styled shop front is considered successful. Throughout the development it 
is considered for the most part that visible side elevations and corner turning plots 
have been appropriately detailed and fenestrated for their level of visibility within the 
street scene. The flat block plots 5-8 remains an example which for which it is 
considered a more appropriate fenestration and detailing design could have been 
developed for the rear façade given its public visibility within the street scene. It is 
disappointing that the opportunity has not been taken to improve this even if this only 
resulted in the continuation of the brick detailing around the corner along this 
elevation. 

 
In keeping with the traditional design of the housing chimneys have been provided in 
a number of prominent locations within the development. It remains considered that 
additional chimneys would have been beneficial in certain locations such as to break 
up ridge line of the terrace of 4 houses plots 22-25. 

 
In terms of external enclosures / boundary treatments close boarded fencing is 
generally proposed throughout with a very limited number of brick walls proposed in 
key locations. It is considered that there are fences proposed in locations that will be 
clearly visible in the street scenes for which it would usually be expected that brick 
walls would be proposed particularly to protect the ongoing appearance and or 
consistency of boundary treatments. These include plots 14, 15, 60, 27 and those 
with boundaries adjacent to the PROW. It is considered there are potential 
discrepancies within the external enclosures plan drawing with the refuse access 
paths to the sides of plots 22 and 25 appearing to be open for access directly from 
the PROW. It is also not clear what is proposed along boundaries covered by the red 
site line on the external enclosures plan. For plots such as 18, 17 and to a lesser 
extent 16 it is considered that close boarded fencing is unlikely to create an 
acceptable boundary with the countryside and a softer landscape approach such as 
stock proof fencing with vegetation to create enclosure and privacy would be more 
appropriate. It is not considered that currently the external enclosures are adequately 
resolved and it is therefore recommended that these are negotiated through 
condition. 

 
It is not clear what is proposed for the verge details however it is considered that the 
development should avoid the use of dry verge caps which look overly chunky and 
appear to fade with time. It is considered that details for the verges could be secured 
by condition. 

 
 
 

Page 55



Comments received 29/09/2020 

Layout 
The site is constrained due to both shape and access. It is understood that this 
makes the layout more challenging. The proposals appear to be higher in density 
than both the more recent and older residential properties, the density is not 
considered appropriate for the more rural character of Loxwood. Many of the houses 
have very limited / no landscaped frontage in front of the properties which is 
considered out of keeping with the area. Whilst it is understood there is an area of 
open space near to the site it is considered a small area of shared green space 
would provide visual relief and help provide a focal space / greater greenery within 
the development itself. 

 
The back to back distances of some of the plots appear overly close to the existing 
houses which share the Northern boundary with the site, in particular plot 9 and 10. 
These do not appear to have sufficient distance to protect the privacy/overlooking of 
occupiers of both the existing and proposed housing. 

 
The positioning of the building for plots 5-8 is not considered to respect the existing 
staggered building line of the road it faces to the North of the plot. The position of the 
building would result in a greater sense of enclosure at the entrance to the existing 
housing development which is currently laid out in a manner which gradually 
decreases the openness as the built area is entered. 

 
The western edge of the site boarders open countryside. The retention of the row of 
mature trees to this boundary is welcomed. It is not considered that other aspects of 
the design have given appropriate consideration to softening the edge of the 
development adjacent to this boundary. This includes the heights and density of the 
buildings, the positioning of plot 20 (this plot also appears very cramped) and the 
close proximity of the parking for plots 21-24 without a landscaping buffer zone. It is 
considered this boundary should be softened to reflect its position adjacent to open 
countryside and its contribution to the setting for the PROW. 

 
The existing PROW has been diverted. This results in a path passing between the 
rear of both the existing and proposed housing. As per the aims of BLF12 this should 
be avoided with pedestrian routes passing in front of homes rather than to the rear. 
As proposed this path would be of a substantial length and would lack passive 
surveillance this is likely to reduce the sense of security for both users of the path 
and occupiers of the existing and proposed dwellings. The positioning of the path or 
the houses should be reconsidered. 

 
It is considered that plots 13-14 are likely to appear as back land development and 
their setting / outlook is unlikely to be satisfactory. Where the provision of a true cul 
de sac with a number of houses is not possible the positioning of one or two 
properties behind other housing should be avoided due to both outlook and 
appearing disconnected to the rest of the development. It is considered this layout 
should be reconsidered.  It is not clear what is proposed for all plots in terms of 
recycling and waste storage and access to relocate bins for collection. It is 
considered that if access routes are not made clear / easy to use that bins are 
likely to be left in the street between collections causing harm to the visual amenity 
of the development and the rural character. It is considered greater clarity should 
be sought to understand this aspect of the development. 

 
 
 
 

Page 56



Appearance 
The proposed development has taken a traditional approach to its appearance which 
is considered appropriate for the setting. Given to the closeness in age and 
adjacency of the proposals to the existing Loxwood Green development it is 
considered that greater consistency should be provided between the two 
developments particularly in terms of materiality. The proposals represent a small 
development for which that the current varied palette of materials seems excessive 
and is likely to lack a visually consistent approach. It is not considered that the 
material distribution within the proposals currently shows a particular logic/strategy, 
for example limiting feature materials to key buildings on principle corners for 
example. It is considered the approach to materials should be reconsidered and 
more closely reflect that of the adjacent development. 

 
The design and scale of the proposed mixed retail and residential building is 
considered more appropriate than the current approval. The approach to create a 
traditional styled shop front is considered successful. It is likely to be visually 
beneficial for this approach to be expanded to add additional interest to the 
remainder of the North and East facing principle facades. 

 
It is not clear what is proposed to the East elevation with the step in the roof adjacent 
to the gable, this is shown on the elevations but not on the roof plan. It is considered 
it would be visually beneficial for the roof to continue without stepping. Given the very 
traditional appearance of the shop frontage and the building overall it is considered 
the proposed rooflight could appear out of keeping. It is suggested a reduction in the 
size of the proposed rooflight and using a conservation style rooflight would improve 
the current proposal. The roof form to the southern and western ends of the building 
appears overly complicated. Could this be revised to a simpler form such as a barn 
hip removing the additional gablet form above? It is considered that this would better 
reflect the roof forms in the local area. 

 
The proposed lean to single storey area to the Southern end of the proposed retail 
unit is considered an appropriate form. So that this lean to Is read as an addition 
which is what buildings of this form would traditionally be it is considered it would be 
more appropriate for this to be slightly set back from the principal East elevation and 
the brick detailing not to be continued into the East face of the lean to. 
 

The form to the rear of the building is unfortunate. It is understood that this is likely to 
be the result of necessary service areas for the retail and the provision of access for 
the residential units. Not combining these areas into the main traditional form of the 
building is advantageous in terms of minimising the bulk of the mixed use building 
from the principal public vantage points and distant views. Whilst not visible at a 
distance the rear elevations would have some public visibility due to PROW which 
would run immediately adjacent to the two storey flat roof element. Therefore if 
possible it would be preferable for the design of this area to be softened / become 
more in keeping with the rest of the building and the rural setting. 

 
Overall it is considered that the development would visually benefit from a greater 
number of chimneys given the traditional approach to the development and that 
chimneys are a dominant feature of the existing area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



Within the development gable end roofs are the most dominant roof form compared 
to the adjacent housing development which is characterised by predominantly hipped 
roof forms with feature gables. It is considered that whilst similar 2 storey depths and 
heights exist in the Loxwood Green development this is likely to leave some of the 
proposed house types in this development appearing narrower and taller, for 
example the Sunningdale house type. It is acknowledged that gables are present 
within the local area however it is considered the use of a hip or barn hip could help 
alleviate the vertical emphasis some plots appear to have. 

 
Notwithstanding comments relating to density / layout above the comments on 
individual plots below are provided for guidance for future revisions. 
Plot 5-8 – On the North elevation window appears much larger in elevation than on 
the plan drawings. It is considered that this elevation is not adequately fenestrated for 
is level of visibility in the street scene. As previously mentioned there are layout 
concerns with this plot as existing and how it relates to the existing building lines. 
Plot 30 - The East elevation of this plot will have a high level of visibility on the 
approach into the development and from the adjacent public parking area. Whilst for 
privacy of the occupiers additional fenestration may not be an appropriate option 
here it is considered the elevation is currently overly plain for its level of visibility. 
Plots 25-28 – It is considered that visually the terrace would be improved by handing 
one half of the houses so the frontage was symmetrical creating more of a central/ 
focal feature with two porches adjacent to each other. The ridge line of this length of 
terrace house is also unbroken. It is considered that chimneys would be visually 
beneficial. 
Plot 21 – The North side elevation of this plot would be a principal elevation in the 
street scene and is not currently appropriately detailed / fenestrated for its level of 
visibility. In general where side elevations are publicly visible these will be expected 
to be given greater attention in terms of detailing / fenestration. 

 

6.11 CDC Drainage Officer 
 
Comments received on 28/10/2021 
 
Following receipt of the construction details “I’m now satisfied that the submitted 
details are acceptable”. 
 
Comments received on 21/10/2021 
 
I note all of the following: 
1. The appropriately amended title and drawing number of the attached drawing 
AH283-CIV-108 PO6. 
2. Your (applicant) comments relating to drawing number AH283-CIV-111 PO3 (and 
the instruction to disregard any previous revisions of that drawing). 
3. The fact that further construction details are to follow in due course. 
 
For clarity my comments relating to non-prejudice off-site drainage improvement 
works were just meant to highlight that if there had been any further agreement 
reached between Antler and the Parish Council about further/different works, then that 
should be reflected in drawing AH 283-CIV-112 Rev P01.  Unfortunately, I was not party 
to the aforementioned site meetings/discussions on the 5th July, so I was unaware of 
the outcome/situation.  I was not suggesting that there was a requirement for Antler 
to commit to/undertake further non-prejudice works, just that if such an agreement 
had been reached that changes to the aforementioned drawing would be prudent. 
 
 

Page 58



I can confirm that subject to the submission of acceptable construction details that 
we have no objection to the proposed development on Surface Water Drainage 
grounds. 
 
Comments received on 27/09/2021 
 
I reiterate my comments made in June 2021.  My understanding is that the applicant 
wishes to avoid pre-commencement conditions relating to surface water drainage.  If 
that is the case I suggest the applicant contacts us to discuss the matters outlined to 
ensure that any subsequent submissions address our concerns.  Alternatively if the 
applicant is now prepared to agree pre-commencement conditions those suggested 
in August 2020 could be applied. 
 
Comments received on 16/06/2021 
 
There have been some further investigations into the off-site path and the surface 
water drainage discharge from this site.  It is now apparent that a small diameter 
culvert exists that appears to covey the flow from the ditch that this proposed 
development is to discharge its surface water into, to the west through a further series 
of ditches and ultimately into the Wey and Arun Canal (rather than via the previously 
assumed path to the north-east).  This discovery is encouraging as this route takes 
flows away from the Loxwood Stream; a watercourse that has a history of flooding.  
However this flow path is reliant on the aforementioned small diameter culvert, located 
under a field to the west of the proposed development. 
 
Ideally we (and Loxwood Parish Council) would like to see that small diameter culvert 
up-sized to increase its capacity and reduce the likelihood of it blocking in the future, 
which could have impacts upon this proposed development.  Loxwood PC has 
therefore sent out invitations ot a meeting to CDCs Land Drainage Team, WSCC Flood 
Risk Management Team, Antler Homes, the owner of the land though which the culvert 
passes and the proposers of the land at Loxwood House (as that proposed 
development would also utilise this flow route).  It is our understanding that the PC 
hope this meeting so the two developers will agree to some further without prejudice 
off-site drainage improvements, specifically the up-sizing of the aforementioned 
culvert.  The developer has already committed ot deliver some off-site improvements 
to the local surface water drainage network. 
 
I also made some comments about the ambiguity about the naming and numbering of 
a few of the submitted plans.  These matters should be addressed by the applicant to 
ensure there is complete clarity about which plans are ultimately approved. 
 
Comments received on 27/11/2020 

 
Following our concerns regarding connectivity of the ditch network, the applicant and 
their consultant offered to attend a ditch walkover, which was undertaken on the 18th 
November 2020. The attached plan shows the findings of this visit. 

 
As per our earlier comments on the application, the applicant has submitted a 
scheme which should adequately drain the development, and therefore we have no 
objection to the application being approved, but still recommend that detailed design 
is conditioned. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Our remaining concerns have now also been addressed in respect that we have now 
identified a positive outfall and found additional connectivity between the local 
ditches. However the downstream system would benefit from some “maintenance”. 
Although this is not the developers responsibility, except on their boundary, they 
have offered to undertake additional clearance and to investigate/expose connectivity 
to improve the local drainage and ensure their scheme works effectively. Should the 
application be approved this will be picked up further as part of the detailed design 
and ordinary watercourse consent application, which will be required for the 
discharge to the watercourse. 

 
Comments received 09/11/2020 

 
The proposed drainage scheme remains the same as that which we have previously 
comments on. Therefore we have no further comments to make on the principle of 
the scheme. You will see we raised some concerns re the final discharge point in our 
comments on 24th August, these concerns remain and the Parish have shared their 
records of the local drainage which do not show an ultimate positive discharge from 
the network. This is essential to demonstrate that the site can be adequately drained 
and you will need to decide whether you are happy for this to wait until detailed 
design stage, or whether this should be resolved before permission is given. 

 
Comments received 01/09/2020 

 
In our comments on the 24th August 2020, we stated that the proposed (as shown on 
the drainage layout) discharge of 2.5l/s was acceptable. The applicant has confirmed 
that this was a “typing error” and instead the flow will be restricted to 4.8l/s. They 
have confirmed that the rate of 4.8l/s is based on the greenfield rate of the area 
which will subsequently drain to the SuDS system, therefore we have no objection to 
this approach/rate subject to detailed design. 

 
Comments received 24/08/2020 

 
Flood Risk / Surface Water Drainage: The proposal is wholly within flood zone 1 (low 
risk) however we are aware of localised flooding, so the surface water drainage will 
need to be designed and constructed carefully to ensure there is no increase in flood 
risk. Subject to satisfactory surface water drainage we have no objection to the 
proposed use, scale or location based on flood risk grounds. 

Surface Water Drainage: The proposal is to drain surface water to the adjacent 
watercourse at a restricted rate (2.5 l/s), with excess water up to the 1 in 100 yr event 
+ 40% retained in storage beneath the roads. This approach is acceptable in 
principle as infiltration has been shown to not be viable. We have limited information 
on the receiving watercourse and do have some concerns over its ability to receive 
water from a housing development. The flood risk assessment states "it is assumed 
the ditch connects to the culverted watercourse north of the site. Further site 
investigation is required to confirm the ditch outfall". This is essential to demonstrate 
that the site can be adequately drained and you will need to decide whether you are 
happy for this to wait until detailed design stage, or whether this should be resolved 
before permission is given. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



6.12 CDC Environmental Health Officer 
 

Comments received on 20/05/2021 
 
The majority of our previous comments still stand i.e. those relating to land 
contamination and noise. 
A CEMP has been submitted (May 2021).  The plan has been reviewed and it 
complies with the majority of items within the suggested condition relating to 
CEMPs however further details on noise control are requested (see section 1.2(1) of 
CEMP. 
 
Comments received 10/09/2020 
 
No objection to the proposed development, in principle, however conditions are 
recommended. 
 
Contaminated Land: Consideration has been given to enzygos geo environmental report 
Ref: CRM.1023.032.GE.R.002.A, June 2020. No contaminated land issues were identified. 
Condition recommended. 

 
Noise: It is noted that the proposed retail unit shall share separating structures with 
neighbouring residential dwelling or dwellings. A condition is recommended. It is 
likely that external mechanical plant or externally venting plant will be part of any 
retail development. Due to the close proximity of proposed neighbouring dwellings a 
condition is recommended. Due to the mix of a retail unit and residential dwellings 
deliveries shall be restricted to 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Saturday and 10:00 to 
16:00 Sunday, Public Holidays and Bank Holidays and Construction Management 
Plan condition recommended. 

 
6.13 CDC Environmental Strategy Officer 

 

Comments received 28/09/2021 

Further to our initial comments a Reptile Mitigation Strategy and Badger Survey have 
been provided.  The reptile mitigation strategy is acceptable and should be 
conditioned and implemented in its entirety, should planning permission be secured.  
The badger survey identified an inactive sett on-site.  Therefore the mitigation 
strategy as provided within section 7 of the report is acceptable and should be 
conditioned and implemented in its entirety, should planning permission be secured. 

 

Comments received 18/12/2020 
 

The detail of all the SAP calculations is not in there but we would not expect that at 
planning stage design. Overall the measures proposed as fabric improvement are 
clear and a 19.6% reduction is proposed when averaged across all the residential 
units, so I can confirm that the proposal meets the requirements of Policy 40 and the 
IPS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



Comments received 24/11/2020 
 

Policy 40 - Following submission of the Sustainability and Energy Statement (Oct 
2020) we are disappointed to see that there is only a 7.6% improvement above the 
baseline CO2 emissions through a fabric first approach. As detailed within the 
Interim position statement for housing (IPS) point 8 we require the following criteria is 
met “Minimising energy consumption to achieve at least a 19% improvement in the 
Dwelling Emission Rate (DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) calculated 
according to Part L of the Building Regulations 2013”. This should be achieved 
through improvements to the fabric and ventilation systems of the dwelling. Further 
information to be provided to demonstrate how this will be met. 

 

We are pleased to see that there will be a 25.2% reduction in CO2 emissions from 
the installation of PV panels onsite. We are pleased to see the commitment by the 
application to install electric car charging points also within the site. As part of the 
condition, further information relating to the number and location of charging points 
will need to be provided. 

 
Comments received 05/10/20 

 
Reptiles - Following submission of the Reptile Mitigation Strategy (Sept 2020) we are 
happy that the mitigation proposed would be suitable. A condition should be used to 
ensure this takes place. 

 
Comments received 06/09/20 

 

Bats - Following an email sent from Lizzie Withall of ECE Planning on 25.08.2020 we 
are satisfied that prior to works taking place to the trees they will be inspected by a 
licensed ecologist before felling works in line with the recommendations within the 
PEA. Please can a condition be included to ensure this takes place. 

 
Reptiles - As detailed within the Reptile Survey Report (July 2020) there are reptiles 
onsite and mitigation is required. Unfortunately no mitigation has been included 
within the report. We require that prior to determination a mitigation strategy is 
submitted which includes details of reptile fencing, translocation methods, the 
translocation site / enhancements and the timings of the works. 

 

Comments received 17/08/20 
 

Bats - The mature pedunculate oak, maple and English elm have potential to support 
roosting bats. Due to this these trees should be retained onsite and protected from 
harm. However the oak has several damaged limbs that may require some remedial 
tree works and the English elm and maple are close to the proposed new access 
road and therefore tree works or removal may be required. If this is the case further 
survey works for bats will be required. 

 
The hedgerows on site are used by bats for commuting and foraging and will need to 
be retained and enhanced for bats. This will include having a buffer strip around the 
hedgerows (5m) and during construction fencing should be used to ensure this area 
is undisturbed. Any gaps should also be filled in using native hedge species to 
improve connectivity. Conditions should be used to ensure this. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



The lighting scheme for the site will need to take into consideration the presence of 
bats in the local area and the scheme should minimise potential impacts to any bats 
using the trees, hedgerows and buildings by avoiding unnecessary artificial light spill 
through the use of directional light sources and shielding. 

 

We require that bat bricks are integrated into the buildings onsite facing south/south 
westerly positioned 3-5m above ground. 

 
Reptiles - As detailed within the Reptile Survey Report (July 2020) there are reptiles 
onsite and mitigation is required. Unfortunately no mitigation has been included 
within the report. We require that prior to determination a mitigation strategy is 
submitted which includes details of reptile fencing, translocation methods, the 
translocation site / enhancements and the timings of the works. 

 
Great Crested Newts - A precautionary approach should be taken for Great Crested 
Newts and a precautionary method statement will need to be created for this 
proposal including removing grassland sensitively and it being checked for GCN 
immediately beforehand by an ecologist. Should any GCN be found at any time, all 
works must stop, and a suitably qualified ecologist contacted. A condition should be 
used to ensure a copy of this precautionary method statement is submitted to us prior 
to start on site. 

 
Badgers - Prior to start on site a badger survey should be undertaken to ensure 
badgers are not using the site. If a badger sett is found onsite, Natural England 
should be consulted and a mitigation strategy produced. 

 
Nesting Birds - Any works to the trees or vegetation clearance on the site should only 
be undertaken outside of the bird breeding season which takes place between 1st 
March 1st October. If works are required within this time an ecologist will need to 
check the site before any works take place (within 24 hours of any work). We would 
like a selection of bird boxes to be installed on the buildings and / or trees within the 
site. 

 
Enhancements - Require a number of enhancements are incorporated within the 
scheme and shown with the landscaping strategy. These should include: 

• Any trees removed should be replace at a ratio of 2:1 

• Wildlife pond 

• Wildflower meadow planting used 

• Filling any gaps in tree lines or hedgerows with native species 

• Bat and bird boxes installed on the site (as detailed above) 

• Grassland areas managed to benefit reptiles. 

• Log piles onsite 

• Gap to be included at the bottom of the fences to allow movement of small 
mammals across the site 

• Two hedgehog nesting boxes included on the site 
 

Policy 40 - Following submission of the Sustainability and Energy Statement (July 
2020) we are satisfied that the criteria for renewable energy and a fabric first 
approach to reduce CO2 emissions within policy 40 will be met. We are pleased to 
see the commitment by the applicant to implement measures to achieve a reduction  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



in CO2 emissions of 20%. The will be achieved with a fabric first approach and 
through installing PV onsite. We are pleased to see the commitment by the 
application to install electric car charging points also within the site. As part of the 
condition, further information relating to the number and location of charging points 
will need to be provided. 
 

6.14 Third Party Representations 
 

2 - objection 

• Endless attempts to build houses which do not come to fruition, causing 
uncertainty 

• Should build on brownfield sites rather than greenfield sites. They already 
have the infrastructure. 

• Loxwood has no transport, roads, or mains services to support all these 
developments. 

• Object to the principle that the longstanding PROW will be diverted. The 
developer could retain the PROW as it is. The diversion will actually take 
walkers out of their way. 

 
In April 2022 a further 24 letters have been received raising concern 
over the lack of a shop in the village.  It is understood the existing post 
office and shop is due to close in September and concern is raised 
over the time it is taking for approval of the new shop. 

 
21 - support 

• Will provide a much needed village shop 

• Size and design of shop in keeping with the village and its residential setting 

• Design of housing in keeping with houses already built at Nursery Green 

• Shop and housing meet requirements of village 

• Density high but achieved by increasing number of 2 and 3 bed houses 

• Density of approved Marda/Coop application (19/01498/FUL) was 69dph 

• Car parking appropriately located to rear of shop, with no need to cross the 
road 

• Levels of parking appropriate with 19 spaces available 

• Lack of open space on site should be compensated by large green provided 
as part of the Nursery Green development 

• New route of PROW will be wider than existing, will link with existing paths and 
have a better surface than existing which will provide accessibility for anyone 
using a wheelchair or pushing a buggy 

• Meets requirements and policies of Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan. 
 

7.0 Planning Policy 
 

The Development Plan 
 

7.1 The Development Plan for the area comprises the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 
2014-2029, the CDC Site Allocation Development Plan Document and all made 
neighbourhood plans. The Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan 2013 - 2029 (LNP) was made 
on 14 July 2015. It was subject to a High Court legal challenge in 2016 partly on the 
grounds that the Council had not given adequate or intelligible reasons for concluding that  

 

 

 
Page 64



the LNP should allocate land for only 60 new dwellings. The challenge was unsuccessful 
(on all grounds) and the judge dismissed the appeal. The LNP forms part of the 
Development Plan against which applications must be considered. 

 
7.2 The principal policies of the Chichester Local Plan relevant to the consideration of this 

application are as follows: 

Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029 
Policy 1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Dev 
Policy 2 Dev Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy 4 Housing Provision 
Policy 5 Parish Housing Sites 2012 - 2029 
Policy 6 Neighbourhood Development Plans 
Policy 8 Transport and Accessibility 
Policy 9 Development and Infrastructure Provision 
Policy 25 Development in North of the Plan area 
Policy 33 New Residential Development 
Policy 34 Affordable Housing 
Policy 39 Transport, Accessibility and Parking 
Policy 40 Carbon Reduction Policy 
Policy 42 Flood Risk and Water Management 
Policy 45 Development in the Countryside 
Policy 47 Heritage and Design 
Policy 48 Natural Environment 
Policy 49 Biodiversity 
Policy 52 Green Infrastructure 
Policy 54 Open Space, Sport and Recreation 

 
7.3 The policies of the made LNP relevant to this application are as follows: 

 
Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan 2013 - 2029 
Policy 1: Housing Allocation - a minimum of 60 houses on allocated and windfall sites 
located within the Settlement Boundary 
Policy 2: Settlement Boundary 
Policy 3: Site Assessments and Allocation of Sites 
Policy 7 - Street Lighting 
Policy 8 - Infrastructure Foul Water 
Policy 9 - Built Environment - Housing Density 
Policy 10 - Built Environment - Vernacular 
Policy 15 - Telecommunications and Connectivity 
Policy 16 - Traffic Calming 
Policy 17 - Environmental Characteristics 
Policy 18 - Flood Risk 

 
7.4 Work on reviewing the current LNP by the Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group 

is underway in response to the Local Plan Review's Preferred Approach proposed 
allocation of 125 homes for the parish (draft policy S5). From an initial 'Call for Sites' a 
shortlist of 8 potential housing sites were set out in a questionnaire and the residents of 
Loxwood were invited to give their views on where the additional housing should be 
allocated in the event that the proposed allocation of 125 new homes was confirmed as 
part of the Local Plan Review. The current application site was 1 of the 8 proposed sites.  
The Revised Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan 2019 – 2037 (revised LNP) was formally  
 
 
 
 

Page 65



submitted to Chichester District Council on 8th December 2020. However, the issue of 
water neutrality raised by Natural England has meant this process is now 
delayed.  Although they have limited weight, the following policies in the revised LNP, 
relevant to this application, are: 

Policy 1 – Housing Allocation Policy 
Policy 2 – Settlement Boundary Policy 
Policy 3 – Site assessments and Allocation of Sites Policy 
Policy 5 – Commercial Land at Nursery Green 
Policy 8 – Land to the rear of Black Hall 

 
Chichester Local Plan Review Preferred Approach 2016 - 2035 (December 2018) 

 
7.5 Chichester District Council adopted the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014- 2029 on 

14 July 2015. The Council is currently reviewing and updating its Local Plan as required 
by Regulation 10A of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012, to provide up to date planning policies which are consistent with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021. The Council consulted on the Local 
Plan Review 2016-2035 Preferred Approach (LPR) document between December 2018 
and February 2019 under Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. Following consideration of all responses to the 
consultation period, significant work has been identified.  The Local Development 
Scheme timetable anticipates that the Local Plan will be submitted to the Secretary 
of State for Examination in Summer 2022 and it is currently anticipated that the new 
Local Plan will be adopted in Spring 2023.  This timetable is currently under review. 

 
7.6 Relevant policies from the published Local Plan Review 2035 Preferred Approach are: 

 
Part 1 - Strategic Policies 
S1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
S2 Settlement Hierarchy 
S3 Development Hierarchy 
S4 Meeting Housing Needs 
S5 Parish Housing Requirements 
S6 Affordable Housing 
S12 Infrastructure Provision 
S19 North of the Plan Area 
S20 Design 
S23 Transport and Accessibility 
S24 Countryside 
S26 Natural Environment 
S27 Flood Risk Management 
S29 Green Infrastructure 

 
Part 2 - Development Management Policies 
DM2 Housing Mix 
DM3 Housing Density 
DM8 Transport, Accessibility and Parking 
DM16 Sustainable Design and Construction 
DM18 Flood Risk and Water Management 
DM22 Development in the Countryside 
DM28 Natural Environment 
DM29 Biodiversity 

 

 

 

Page 66



DM31 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodlands 
DM32 Green Infrastructure 
DM34 Open Space, Sport and Recreation including Indoor Sports Facilities and Playing 
Pitches 

 
National Policy and Guidance 

 

7.7 Government planning policy now comprises the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF 2021), which took effect from July 2021 and related policy 
guidance in the NPPG. 

 
7.8 Paragraph 11 of the revised Framework states that plans and decisions should apply a 

presumption in favour of sustainable development, and for decision-taking this means: 
 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or 
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: 
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas of assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; 
or 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 
7.9 The following sections of the revised NPPF are relevant to this application: 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 

11, 12, 14, 15, 16 and Annex 1. The relevant paragraphs of the National Planning Practice 
Guidance have also been taken into account. 

 
7.10 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF advises on the weight which may be attached to relevant 

policies in emerging plans according to their stage of preparation and the degree of 
consistency to the policies in the Framework. The more advanced in preparation emerging 
plans are and the closer their policies align with the Framework, then the greater the 
weight that may be given. Paragraph 30 provides that once a neighbourhood plan has 
been brought into force, the policies it contains take precedence over existing nonstrategic 
policies in a local plan covering the neighbourhood area, where they are in conflict; unless 
they are superseded by strategic or non-strategic policies that are adopted subsequently. 

 
Other Local Policy and Guidance 

 

- Interim Position Statement for Housing Development 
- Surface Water and Foul Drainage SPD 
- Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD 
- CDC Waste Storage and Collection Guidance 
- Loxwood Village Design Statement 2003 

 

Interim Position Statement for Housing Development 
 

7.11 In accordance with national planning policy, the Council is required to regularly prepare an 
assessment of its supply of housing land. The Council's most recent assessment of its 
Five Year Housing Land Supply was published on 24 November 2021 and provides 
the updated position as at 1 April 2021. The assessment identifies a potential  
 
 
 
 

Page 67



housing supply of 3,536 net dwellings over the period 2021-2026. This compares 
with an identified housing requirement of 3,329 net dwellings (equivalent to a 
requirement of 666 homes per year). This results in a housing surplus of 207 net 
dwellings, equivalent to 5.3 years of housing supply. Notwithstanding the benefit of 
having a housing supply which is considered to be robust, the Council 
nevertheless recognises the importance of maintaining and where appropriate 
reinforcing the supply with appropriate new development. 

 
7.12 To help pro-actively manage the Council's housing supply and ensure that it 

maintains in a positive balance prior to the adoption of the Local Plan Review, the 
Council will continue to use the Interim Position Statement for Housing 
Development (IPS), which sets out measures to help increase the supply of 
housing by encouraging appropriate housing schemes in appropriate locations.  A 
draft IPS was originally approved for use by the Planning Committee at its meeting 
on 3 June 2020 at a time when the Council could not demonstrate that it had a 5 
year housing land supply. Following a period of consultation and subsequent 
revisions it was reported back to the 4 November 2020 Planning Committee, where 
it was approved for use with immediate effect. Whilst the Council, with a 5 year 
housing supply, can rely on the provisions of the development plan for decision 
making up until a new plan is adopted, speculative new housing proposals such as 
this application will also continue to be considered under the IPS and assessed 
against the 13 criteria set out in the IPS document.  The IPS is a development 
management tool to assist the Council in delivering appropriate new housing. It is 
not a document that is formally adopted and neither does it have the status of a 
supplementary planning document, but it is a material consideration in the 
determination of relevant planning applications.  It is a document that the decision 
maker shall have regard to in the context of why it was introduced and in the 
context of what the alternatives might be if it wasn't available for use.  New housing 
proposals which score well against the IPS criteria where relevant and where there 
is no conflict with relevant policies in the development plan are likely to be 
supported by officers. 

 
7.13 The aims and objectives of the Chichester in Partnership Community Strategy 2016-2029 

which are relevant and material to the determination of this planning application are: 
 

➢ Maintain low levels of unemployment in the district 
➢ Encourage and support people who live and work in the district and to adopt healthy 

and active lifestyles 
➢ Maintain the low levels of crime in the district in the light of reducing resources 
➢ Support communities to meet their own housing needs 
➢ Support and promote initiatives that encourage alternative forms of transport and 

encourage the use of online services 
➢ Promote and increase sustainable, environmentally friendly initiatives in the district 
➢ Influence local policies in order to conserve and enhance the qualities and 

distinctiveness of our area 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 68



8.0 Planning Comments 
 

8.1 The main issues with this application are considered to be: 
 

i. Principle of development and the policy position 
ii. Highway Impact 
iii. Design and Layout 
iv. Residential Amenity 
v. Surface Water Drainage and Foul Disposal 
vi. Impact on the Landscape/trees 
vii. Ecology 
viii. Sustainable Design and Construction 

 
i. Principle of development and the policy position 

 

8.2 The primacy of the development plan and the plan-led approach to decision-taking is a 
central tenet of planning law and is enshrined in section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states that applications: 

 
'should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise' 

 
8.3 For certainty and clarity a plan-led approach to decision making on planning applications 

relies on a development plan which is up-to-date, particularly with regard to its housing 
policies and the proposed delivery of that housing. When assessed against the policies of 
the adopted Local Plan, the current application is, in part, considered to be contrary to 
policies 2 and 45 in that it is proposing new housing outside the settlement boundary for 
Loxwood in the countryside or Rest of Plan Area and would not meet an "essential, small 
scale and local need" (policy 45). The site is not one of the allocated sites identified in the 
made Loxwood Neighbourhood Plan and so it conflicts with policies 1 and 2 of that Plan. 
Prima facie therefore, and following a s.38(6) development plan approach, this application 
is contrary to policy. 

 
8.4 The Council is progressing work through the Local Plan Review process to identify 

parish allocations for the Local Plan Review period up to 2037. The housing 
numbers stated in the Local Plan Review indicate the proposed direction of travel, 
the 'preferred approach' but they are not confirmed. The provisional allocation for 
Loxwood is 125 new homes (policy S5). As part of that review process the Council 
produced its Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment (HELAA) in 
March 2021. The purpose of the HELAA is to identify a future supply of land which 
is suitable, available, and achievable for housing and economic development. The 
HELAA forms a component of the evidence base that will inform the Chichester 
Local Plan Review.  The conclusion of the HELAA was that Land to the rear of 
Black Hall, Loxwood (HELAA ref. HLX0005a) was potentially suitable subject to 
detailed consideration including on matters of access, was available, achievable 
and deliverable during the Plan period for an estimated 25 dwellings. However, the 
HELAA is a background technical study and is not a policy document and 
consequently in terms of the decision-making process, the emerging policies and 
background documents cannot therefore be afforded any weight in decision 
making on the current application. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



8.5 The Council has previously acknowledged that the Local Plan in terms of its 
housing policies for the supply of new housing are out-of-date but this is now 
balanced out by the fact that the Council has enough housing to demonstrate a 5 
year housing supply. In order to ensure that this housing supply is maintained on a 
rolling year on year basis, the Council has committed to using the Interim Position 
Statement for Housing Development (IPS).  It is relevant to consider the application 
against each of the IPS criteria in turn: 

 
1) The site boundary in whole or in part is contiguous with an identified Settlement 
Boundary (i.e. at least one boundary must adjoin the settlement boundary or be 
immediately adjacent to it). 

 
The north-eastern (front) section of the site is located within the settlement boundary. The 
remainder of the site is located adjacent to the northern boundary of the existing 
settlement boundary for Loxwood. This criterion is therefore satisfied. 

 
2) The scale of development proposed is appropriate having regard to the settlement's 
location in the settlement hierarchy 

 
Loxwood is a sustainably located settlement defined as a Service Village in the Local Plan 
(Policy 2). In this context the proposed scale of development is considered appropriate 
and the criterion is therefore satisfied. 

 
3) The impact of development on the edge of settlements, or in areas identified as the 
locations for potential landscape gaps, individually or cumulatively does not result in the 
actual or perceived coalescence of settlements, as demonstrated through the submission 
of a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment. 

 
It is considered that the development meets this point. There is no actual or perceived 
coalescence likely to arise from permitting this development. 

 
4) Development proposals make best and most efficient use of the land, whilst respecting 
the character and appearance of the settlement. The Council will encourage planned 
higher densities in sustainable locations where appropriate (for example, in Chichester 
City and the Settlement Hubs). Arbitrarily low density or piecemeal development such as 
the artificial sub-division of larger land parcels will not be encouraged. 

Based on the whole site area the proposals achieve a density of 29 dwellings per hectare. 
The site comprises a large paddock and part of the rear ancillary garden so there is no 
artificial sub-division and in the context of the rural edge of settlement location and the 
pattern of existing housing this level of development is considered acceptable. The 
proposal meets this criterion. 

 
5) Proposals should demonstrate consideration of the impact of development on the 
surrounding townscape and landscape character, including the South Downs National 
Park and the Chichester Harbour AONB and their settings. Development should be 
designed to protect long-distance views and intervisibility between the South Downs 
National Park and the Chichester Harbour AONB. 

 
It is considered that the proposal would comply with the above criterion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



6) Development proposals in or adjacent to areas identified as potential Strategic Wildlife 
Corridors as identified in the Strategic Wildlife Corridors Background Paper should 
demonstrate that they will not affect the potential or value of the wildlife corridor. 

 
Not applicable in this instance. 

 
7) Development proposals should set out how necessary infrastructure will be secured, 
including, for example: wastewater conveyance and treatment, affordable housing, open 
space, and highways improvements. 

 
It is considered the proposal would meet the above criterion. Wastewater disposal will be 
through the statutory undertaker, affordable housing, open space, and highways 
improvements will be secured through the Section 106 agreement and/or by planning 
conditions.  The development has demonstrated that it is water neutral and the 
mitigation will be secured by S106 Agreement. 

 
8) Development proposals shall not compromise on environmental quality and should 
demonstrate high standards of construction in accordance with the Council's declaration of 
a Climate Change Emergency. Applicants will be required to submit necessary detailed 
information within a Sustainability Statement or chapter within the Design and Access 
Statement to include, but not be limited to: 
- Achieving the higher building regulations water consumption standard of a maximum of 
110 litres per person per day including external water use; 
- Minimising energy consumption to achieve at least a 19% improvement in the Dwelling 
Emission Rate (DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) calculated according to Part L 
of the Building Regulations 2013. This should be achieved through improvements to the 
fabric of the dwelling; 
- Maximising energy supplied from renewable resources to ensure that at least 10% of the 
predicted residual energy requirements of the development, after the improvements to the 
fabric explained above, is met through the incorporation of renewable energy; and 
- Incorporates electric vehicle charging infrastructure in accordance with West Sussex 
County Council's Car Parking Standards Guidance. 

Following submission of the an addendum letter dated 15th December, the applicant 
has amended the sustainability measures through fabric improvements, combi boiler 
with waste water heat recovery and whole house mechanical ventilation system with 
heat recovery, so that when averaged across the whole residential site the dwelling 
emissions are shown to achieve a 19.6% reduction below the baseline emissions. 
This is an improvement from the 7.6% proposed through a fabric first approach in the 
Sustainability and Energy Statement (October 2020) and now meets the requirement 
of “minimising energy consumption to achieve at least a 19% improvement”. In 
addition the applicant is proposing 44kWp of PV panels (equating to 134no. 330W 
panels) which will result in a further carbon reduction of 25.2%. In the Sustainability 
and Energy Statement (October 2020) the applicant has committed to install 23 
electric car charging facilities in the garages of all properties that have them or to the 
side of dedicated parking spaces. A condition is recommended requiring details of 
the number, location and technical specification of the electric vehicle charging point 
facilities and for the applicant to demonstrate how the development will accord with 
the West Sussex County Council: Guidance on Parking at New Developments 
(September 2020) in respect of the provision of Electric Vehicle (EV) charging 
facilities, which for construction in 2021 requires 33% of spaces to have active EV 
charging facilities. A maximum 110 litres per person per day water use will also be 
conditioned. These sustainability measures meet the requirements of this criterion. 

 
 
 

Page 71



9) Development proposals shall be of high quality design that respects and enhances the 
existing character of settlements and contributes to creating places of high architectural 
and built quality. Proposals should conserve and enhance the special interest and settings 
of designated and non-designated heritage assets, as demonstrated through the 
submission of a Design and Access Statement. 

 
The development is of a high standard of design and layout (see later assessment). This 
criterion is satisfied. 

 
10) Development should be sustainably located in accessibility terms, and include 
vehicular, pedestrian and cycle links to the adjoining settlement and networks and, where 
appropriate, provide opportunities for new and upgraded linkages. 

 
The site is has various amenities and services within walking distance, such as the 
primary school, post office and village hall. Furthermore, by providing a retail unit within 
the site residents may not be reliant on the private car for all daily journeys. There are 
also PROW links within the immediate area which provide an alternate route for 
pedestrians. Whilst some amenities are within cycling distance, the nearest Train Station 
is 10km away at Billingshurst, however, the station does feature car parking and thus 
travel by rail could make up part of a journey, for those travelling further afield. It is 
considered that whilst many journeys for commuting and travelling further afield may be 
reliant on the private car, there are some limited option for public transport. This criterion 
is met. 
 

11) Development must be located, designed and laid out to ensure that it is safe, that the 
risk from flooding is minimised whilst not increasing the risk of flooding elsewhere, and 
that residual risks are safely managed. This includes, where relevant, provision of the 
necessary information for the LPA to undertake a sequential test, and where necessary 
the exception test, incorporation of flood mitigation measures into the design (including 
evidence of independent verification of SUDs designs and ongoing maintenance) and 
evidence that development would not constrain the natural function of the flood plain, 
either by impeding flood flow or reducing storage capacity. All flood risk assessments 
should be informed by the most recent climate change allowances published by the 
Environment Agency. 

 
This criterion is considered to be satisfied (refer to the assessment below). The site is 
located within EA flood zone 1, as area with the lowest level of flood risk. The drainage 
system is to be designed through SuDS to satisfactorily manage the discharge of surface 
water from the development. 

 
12) Where appropriate, development proposals shall demonstrate how they achieve 
nitrate neutrality in accordance with Natural England's latest guidance on achieving 
nutrient neutrality for new housing development. 

 
Not applicable in this instance. 

 
13)  Development proposals are required to demonstrate that they are 
deliverable from the time of the submission of the planning application 
through the submission of a deliverability statement justifying how 
development will ensure quicker delivery. The Council will seek to impose 
time restricted conditions on planning applications to ensure early delivery of 
housing. 
 
 
 

Page 72



The development is submitted in detail.  As outlined above water neutrality has now 
been addressed and there are no further significant abnormals that would otherwise 
restrict or delay implementation of the development in the event that planning 
permission were granted.  The applicant (Antler Homes) has confirmed that the site 
has been cleared and security fencing effected around its perimeter in perpetration 
for its development.  It remains the intention of Antler Homes to construct buildings 
on the land.  A reduced time frame of 2 years to implement the full permission is 
accepted by the applicant. As such, it is considered criterion 13 of the IPS would be 
satisfied. 

 
8.6 The proposed development is considered to meet all the relevant criteria in the IPS. The 

IPS provides an appropriate development management tool for assessing such 
applications and in this context and for the reasons outlined above and in the subsequent 
assessment the 'principle' of housing development on this site is considered acceptable. 

 
ii. Highway Impact 

 

8.7 Access to the site is via Nursery Green estate road.  The access to the will take the form 
of a priority junction of 5m width and 6 metre kerbed radii. A footpath is proposed on the 
southern side of the access road (adjacent to retail unit) which will link in with both the 
footpaths along the Nursery Green estate road and the car park to the rear of the retail 
unit, where it will then transition into shared surface. A layby with 2 retail car parking 
spaces is proposed on the southern side of the access road.  The loading layby at the 
front of the retail unit, off the Nursery Green estate road, will be slightly repositioned. To 
the rear of the retail unit, the access road will become shared surface with a width of 
4.8m. The section of road providing access to plots 19-20 is 4.2m wide. Swept path 
tracking plans illustrate that a refuse vehicle can access the site from Nursery Green and 
manoeuvre within the site in order to exit to the public highway in a forward gear. The LHA 
has confirmed that the street widths and service and emergency vehicle tracking plots are 
acceptable. 

 

8.8 In terms of traffic movements, the residential element is forecast to generate some 23-24 
peak hour vehicle movements.  The trip generation for the retail unit was considered 
under the extant planning permission (ref 19/01498/FUL) and were not considered to be 
‘severe’. The trip rates agreed under the original application have been applied to this 
proposal and found that peak hour movements could range between 28-43 vehicle 
movements in the AM and 24-48 vehicle movements in the PM peak. A more up-to-date 
assessment has also been undertaken which found a reduced  daily vehicle movements 
of 13-22 vehicles in the AM and 26-27 vehicles in the PM peak. It is also expected that 
standard AM/PM peaks would not apply and therefore that trips would be spread 
throughout the day. It is the view of WSCC as Local Highway Authority (LHA) that in light 
of the existing number of trips expected from the Nursery Green development and on the 
nearby local road network, the LHA does not anticipate a capacity issue as a result of 
these additional vehicular trips. The LHA is satisfied that in terms of the relevant policy 
test in NPPF at paragraph 109, that the development would not have an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety and the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would 
not be severe. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



8.9 In terms of retail parking provision, as amended the application proposes 8 retail spaces in 
the car park and two further spaces in the layby adjacent to the access road. A condition 
is recommended requiring one of these spaces to be marked up for disabled access and 
all retail spaces to be marked for their proposed use. The LHA has confirmed that on the 
basis of a 232sqm retail unit, the WSCC parking guidance requires a total of 17 spaces (1 
space per 14sqm). Although this application has an overall shortfall in spaces, it is 
acknowledged that the retail unit is located within a new residential development and in a 
village location and on this basis it is expected that a higher number of trips will be made 
by foot/cycle. In addition there is the possibility for parking in the layby on the Nursery 
Green estate road (north-east side of Nursery Green estate road and outside the 
application site). Furthermore, the  extant planning permission (ref. 19/01498/FUL) 
granted a retail unit (377sqm) and 14 x car parking spaces (including 1 x disabled space), 
where the parking calculator showed a demand of 27 spaces. On this basis the reduction 
in retail parking provision is acceptable. 

 
8.10 With regard to the residential parking provision, as amended a total of 49 x allocated 

spaces (46.5 when using WSCC methodology where the garage spaces are 0.5 space) 
will be provided for the development together with 8 x unallocated spaces. The WSCC 
parking guidance requires a total of 66 spaces and therefore there is a shortfall of 11.5 
spaces. Double yellow lines are proposed at the new junction via a TRO and on this basis 
the LHA does not consider that overspill parking could occur in locations that would be 
detrimental to highway safety. Officers have considered the need for additional parking 
spaces against the amenity of the site and the impact on the proposed landscaping and 
rural edge and on balance, as amended, consider the parking provision has been 
designed in a sympathetic manner, so as not to dominate the street scene and the 
shortfall in parking provision is acceptable. 
 

8.11 Policy 16 of LNP requires that contributions toward traffic calming measures are provided 
for developments greater than one house in size. In order to meet this policy requirement, 
a financial contribution of £15,000 is required. Loxwood Parish Council has indicated that 
they would prefer not to have an additional Vehicle Activated Sign sign. Discussions 
between the Council, WSCC and the Parish Council are therefore suggested with regard 
to the precise traffic calming measures. The S106 Agreement also requires the applicant 
to apply for a Traffic Regulation Order, prior to occupation, for double yellow lining to 
prevent on street parking in the identified areas and to ensure the relocated layby at the 
front of the retail unit on the Nursery Green estate road is for loading only. The applicant 
is required to pay the cost for this TRO. 

 
8.12 Subject to conditions and the S106 obligation, the proposals are acceptable from a 

highway safety and capacity point of view and no objection is raised. 
 

iii. Design and Layout 
 

8.13 The proposed development is serviced by a single access road, which passes through the 
centre terminating in a cul-de-sac at the western end of the site, with all dwellings fronting 
onto and positively addressing the road. The development comprises a mix of 2 storey 
houses, together with a small 2 storey block of 4 flats and a retail unit with 4 flats above. 
The houses are arranged as a variety of detached, semi-detached and terraced forms. 
The proposed development has taken a traditional approach to its appearance which is 
considered appropriate for the setting. The materials palette includes elevations of brick 
under slate and plain clay tiled roofs. Some of the dwellings will be treated with dark  

 

 

 
Page 74



horizontal boarding at first floor level and detailed brick work is also included. The 
dwellings are designed with both hipped and gable ends and chimneys have been 
provided in a number of prominent locations within the development. The design and 
scale of the proposed mixed retail and residential building is considered more appropriate 
than the extant planning permission and the approach to create a traditional styled shop 
front is considered successful. With regard to the landscaping, over the course of the 
application improvements have been made to soften the rural edge of the development 
site through securing larger landscaped areas and setting the built aspects of the 
development back particularly from the north-west corner of the site which provides a 
greater buffer zone to the countryside and a more suitable setting for the adjacent 
bridleway. Details of the proposed enclosures are not currently acceptable, therefore a 
condition is recommended.  Since the consideration of the application by Planning 
Committee in January 2021, additional information has been provided by the 
applicant in relation to the proposed boundary treatments.  This information does 
not, however fully address the comments of the Conservation and Design officer 
and therefore it is recommended that the condition remains as originally proposed.  

 
8.14 The 8 affordable flats are located within the two frontage buildings, 4 flats at first floor 

above the retail unit and 4 flats within the block in the northern corner of the site. The 
distribution accords with the Council's pepper-potting requirements and the homes are 
tenure blind in terms of design. The affordable housing mix will be secured through the 
S106 agreement. The proposed housing mix for both the affordable mix and the private 
market mix meets with the requirements of the Council's Housing Enabling Officer in terms 
of the HEDNA 2020 and no objection is raised. 
 

8.15 The density of the development has been reduced during the consideration of the 
application, with the whole site area achieving around 29 dwellings per hectare (dph). The 
part of the site outside the settlement boundary comprising 19 dwellings has a density of 
24.5dph, when including the car park and 27.5dph when excluding it. The Parish Council 
is of the view that the amended density is still high, especially when compared to the 
average density over the last 10 years for the area which they state is 18.5dph. 
Acknowledging that the majority of the application site is outside of the settlement 
boundary and on the edge of the village, as amended the proposed layout/density is now 
at a level which is considered to enable the spacing of the properties and layout to better 
relate to the more rural character of Loxwood and provide more meaningful areas of 
landscaping / frontage to the proposed dwellings. A density of development at the levels 
stated above is similar to the densities of the developments recently granted planning 
permission in Loxwood, at Loxwood Farm Place (ref. 20/01617/OUT) and Land West of 
Guildford Road (ref. 20/01481/FUL) and below the 35dph requirement “broadly considered 
appropriate by the Council on most greenfield and brownfield development across the 
District” (paragraph 17.6 of the Chichester Local Plan). There is a careful balance to be 
struck between seeking a lower density of development and efficient use of land. When 
considered in the context of the perimeter landscaping and the edge of settlement 
location, the amount of development proposed is considered to be acceptable. 

 
8.15a Since the consideration of the application by Planning Committee in January 2021, 

additional information has been provided by the applicant to seek some minor 
amendments to the proposal.  Specifically: 

• The terrace of four units (plots 22-25) have been slightly amended with the 
ground floor reduced slightly and the first floor increase slightly.  There is no 
change to the overall floor area and the number of bedrooms remain the same.   
 
 
 
 

Page 75



The applicant has proposed this change to provide improved private amenity 
space and provides a better arrangement for home working.  This amendment 
is acceptable in design and layout terms.   

• The northern side elevation of plot 27, facing the car park, has been amended 
in terms of the detailed finish of the elevation, removing the oriel window at 
first floor level and replacing it with two tax windows and a brick design 
feature on the gable end, which will be visible when entering the site.  The 
Design and Conservation officer previously raised some concern with regard 
to the oriel window, which due to its off-set nature and form raised some 
design concerns.  This amendment is considered acceptable. 

• The layout has also been altered with regards to the visitor space outside plot 
19.  This has been moved next to the parking bays for plots 20 and 21, which 
have been re-orientated by 90 degrees.  This amendment to the parking layout 
is considered to be an overall improvement to the layout. 

 
8.16 Overall the design, materials, detailing and appearance of the development suggest that 

this will be an attractive, high quality rural mixed use development that it will be 
appropriate to its rural context and surroundings. 

 
iv. Residential Amenity 

 

8.17 The layout of the development has been carefully considered to acknowledge and address 
the relationship between the proposed dwellings and the newly constructed dwellings in 
Nursery Green. The northern most line of proposed dwellings (Plots 9-10 and 16-18) are 
set away from the boundary and orientated such that there is an acceptable separation 
distance between the proposed dwellings and the existing dwellings in Nursery Green. 
The back-to-back relationship that would result in this instance together with the existing 
line of tree and hedge planting on the northern boundary itself is considered to 
satisfactorily address any potential issues of the development resulting in overlooking or 
the development being overbearing.  The existing properties in Hall Hurst Close will have 
a rear-to-side relationship with the proposed dwellings in the south-eastern corner of the 
site (plots 20-21), with a separation distance in excess of 15m and again this relationship 
is acceptable. The two properties, Woolspinners and Black Hall, located to the south-east 
of the application site are set in excess of 30m from the site boundary. 

 
8.18 Whilst the marked change to the character and appearance of the site resulting from the 

development will clearly create a different outlook for existing residents in Hall Hurst Close 
and Nursery Green, this change does not automatically translate into a development that 
would be harmful to their established amenity. It is not considered therefore that there are 
substantive grounds to demonstrate that the development would result in material harm to 
established amenity. 

 

v. Surface Water Drainage and Foul Disposal 
 

Surface Water 

 
8.19 With regard to flood risk, the site is in Flood Zone1 and at the lowest risk of surface water 

flooding. The Council's Drainage Engineer has confirmed that subject to satisfactory 
drainage no objection is raised to the proposed use, scale or location based on flood risk. 
Similarly no objection is raised by the County Council's Flood Risk Management Team. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



8.20 Ground investigations undertaken at the site have confirmed that the underlying soils are 
unsuitable for infiltration as a means of disposing surface water runoff generated by the 
development. It is therefore proposed that surface water from the development will 
discharge into the existing drainage ditch immediately beyond the western boundary of the 
site, as currently, via overland flows and attenuated discharge. The outfall will be 
restricted so that it does not exceed existing greenfield run-off rates. 

 
8.21 The Council's drainage officer states that “our remaining concerns have now also been 

addressed in respect that we have now identified a positive outfall and found additional 
connectivity between the local ditches. However the downstream system would benefit 
from some “maintenance”. Although this is not the developers responsibility, except on 
their boundary, they have offered to undertake additional clearance and to 
investigate/expose connectivity to improve the local drainage and ensure their scheme 
works effectively. This will be picked up further as part of the detailed design”. The 
Council's drainage officer has confirmed that a surface water drainage strategy based 
upon these principles would be acceptable and has recommended conditions to secure 
details. 

 
8.22 With the imposition of appropriate conditions, it is considered that the surface water 

drainage can to be designed to ensure there is no overall increase in flows into the surface 
water system and its long-term management and maintenance can be secured. 

 
Foul Water 

 
8.23 The application documents confirm that the foul water will connect to the public foul sewer 

in Guildford Road, subject to capacity assessment and necessary network upgrades by 
Southern Water. As site levels fall away to the west a gravity connection to the public 
sewerage connection in Guildford Road is not achievable and therefore the application 
proposes that the foul water from the site will be pumped to the foul sewer outfall in 
Guildford Road. 

 
8.24 Southern Water as the statutory undertaker has acknowledged that there is an increased 

risk of flooding from the development unless any required network reinforcement is 
provided. The 'rehabilitation' of the offsite network infrastructure where necessary will be 
part-funded through Southern Water's New Infrastructure Charge with the remainder 
funded through its Capital Works programme. The applicant has a 'right to connect' their 
development to the public sewerage network under s.106 of the Water Act. The timetable 
thereafter for delivering the connection and any necessary off-site upgrades is a matter for 
Southern Water to agree with the developer, following the grant of planning permission. 
 

8.25 The Parish Council has requested that, “as per the Thakeham Homes development 
(20/01481/FUL), the issue of sewerage disposal should be the subject of a planning 
condition which requires that Southern Water satisfactorily upgrade the infrastructure prior 
to the occupation of the first house/retail unit”. The Thakeham Homes condition states 
that “no occupation of any dwelling shall take place until the approved off-site works have 
been completed or, in the event that the agreed off-site works are not completed in full by 
the time of first occupation, detailed interim on-site measures for the disposal of foul water 
sewerage shall be first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with Southern Water and implemented in full”. A very similar condition is recommended 
on this application, with the further requirement from Southern Water that the “occupation 
of the development shall be phased and implemented to align with the delivery by 
Southern Water of any sewerage network reinforcement required”. 

 
 
 

Page 77



8.26 Subject to inclusion of this condition, Southern Water raises no objection to the 
development. Southern Water is committed under its statutory duty to provide a fit for 
purpose foul drainage system to service the proposed development and is regulated in 
this regard by the industry regulator OFWAT. Any failings on behalf of Southern Water to 
deliver required improvements to the offsite network to satisfactorily service the proposed 
development are failings under Part 4 of the Water Industry Act 1991 not under the Town 
and Country Planning Act and the recourse for such failure therefore falls to be addressed 
under that Act through OFWAT. Since the consideration of the application by 
Planning Committee in January 2021, the applicant has submitted further 
information in relation to proposed condition 6 requiring details to be submitted in 
relation to foul drainage.  Southern Water has been consulted on these details and 
has confirmed that they are currently in the process of designing and planning 
delivery of offsite sewerage network reinforcements.  It is not possible to amend 
condition 6 to a compliance condition as the design works for the off-site foul 
sewerage are not yet complete.  The condition has been amended to allow some 
initial on-site works to commence prior to discharge of condition 6, specifically the 
access formation works onto Nursery Green, re-location of the lay-by, the footpath 
re-location, site clearance and site set-up works, as these do not have a bearing on 
the foul drainage provision for the site. 

 
vi. Impact on the Landscape/trees 

 

8.27 The application site is not subject to any special landscape designation nor has it been 
identified as a 'valued' landscape (NPPF paragraph 170). The application is accompanied 
by a Landscape and Visual Appraisal. This states that “the scale and nature of the 
development and its juxtaposition to other existing residential development to the north, 
east and south will have a medium landscape character sensitivity and the magnitude of 
change is small; therefore resulting in a level of landscape effect of minor (i.e. not a 
material change)”. The viewpoints assessed showed that the site is at least partly visible 
from four of the six assessed and that one of these views can be considered subject to a 
material change (viewpoint 2 that sits close to the western site boundary). The majority of 
receptors in the local area can be considered high or medium, (users of PRoW or 
bridleway and road users). 

 
8.28 Trees are found predominately on the western boundary of the site. The proposed 

development has been designed to retain the existing trees and hedgerows on the site 
boundaries, particularly the trees on the sensitive western edge adjacent to open 
countryside. The retention of the mature landscaping, particularly on the western 
boundary, together with the site’s flat topography and its relationship to the existing 
surrounding development, will mean that the development would be discrete in the wider 
landscape and the site will not be visible from wider views. It is considered that the visual 
effects of the development would be limited, with only localised harm resulting from the 
loss of this undeveloped land on the edge of the settlement.  The housing would be seen 
in the context of the existing properties in Nursery Green and along Guildford Road.  
Whilst it is inevitable that building a development on the rural edge of the settlement would 
result in a change in appearance and character, the very fact that that change would occur 
is not in itself a reason for refusing the application. 
 

8.29 This application is also supported by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method 
Statement. To accommodate the proposed development, 11 individual trees and 2 groups 
of trees are proposed to be removed.  10 trees and 2 groups of trees are category 'C' or  
 

 

 

 

Page 78



‘U’ trees of reduced landscape value or short-term potential. One tree to be removed, a 
Norway spruce, is a category ‘B’ tree. Their removal will not have an adverse impact on 
the character or appearance of the site or surrounding area.  Since the consideration of 
the application by Planning Committee in January 2021, the applicant has 
submitted that this work has taken place, following inspection by a suitably 
qualified professional and therefore condition 11 is recommended to be deleted.   

 
8.30 The landscaping proposals incorporate replacement native tree and hedgerow planting, 

into the existing vegetation to provide additional filtering of the development. Furthermore 
conditions are recommended in relation to tree protection measures to protect the existing 
trees. Finally none of the proposed dwellings or gardens are likely to be shaded by 
retained trees to the extent that this will interfere with their reasonable use or enjoyment 
by incoming occupiers, which might otherwise lead to pressure for a tree to be felling or 
severe pruning. For the reasons outlined above, the proposal is acceptable in terms of its 
impact on trees. Since the consideration of the application by Planning Committee 
in January 2021, additional information has been provided by the applicant in 
relation to the proposed landscaping.  This information also includes the proposed 
boundary treatments which for the reason outlined above are not supported.  It is 
therefore recommended that the landscaping condition remains as originally 
proposed. 

 

vii. Ecology 
 

Protected Species and Trees 
 

8.31 The site supports a range of habitat types including grassland, native species hedgerows 
and mature tree lines, which were assessed as being suitable to support a variety of 
different protected species. 

 
8.32 The mature boundary hedgerows and tree lines provide potentially important wildlife 

corridors, including bats. Conditions are recommended restricting the lighting on the site, 
to maintain the integrity of the boundary features used by bats, landscape proposals to 
provide a foraging habitat and the provision of bat boxes in houses and/or in nearby trees. 
Inspection by an ecologist is also required prior to any felling works taking place. A 
condition is also recommended to secure the proposed reptile mitigation strategy, which 
the Council's Environment Officer has confirmed is acceptable. 

 
8.33 A precautionary approach is proposed with regard to badgers and great crested newts 

(GCNs), with a badger survey required prior to commencement of development and a 
precautionary method statement with regard to the grassland removal in relation to GCNs. 
The submitted Mitigation Summary dated 28/09/2021 has confirmed that this work 
has now taken place, including the creation of a new dedicated receptor area to the 
north-west on land under the ownership and management of the Wey and Arun 
Canal Trust with a trapping and translocation exercise being carried out from April 
– August 2021 followed by a destructive clearance to ensure the site remains 
unsuitable for reptiles to return in the interim period before and during 
construction.  The reptile exclusion fence and badger mesh and gates are proposed 
to remain in situ and be subject to monthly checks for the duration of the 
development. A condition is recommended to secure a number of ecological 
enhancements including bird boxes, bat bricks and hedgehog nesting boxes, gaps at the 
base of fences to allow for movement of small mammals, native planting and replacement 
tree planting at a ratio of 2:1. 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



 Water Neutrality 
 

8.33a The need to consider the impact of development located within the Sussex North 
Water Supply Zone on the Arun Valley Special Area Conservation (SAC), the Arun 
Valley Special Protection Area (SPA) and the Arun Valley Ramsar Site has arisen as 
a material consideration, following advice received from Natural England in May 
2021. Subsequently, Natural England published a Position Statement for 
Applications within the Sussex North Water Supply Zone, September 2021 – Interim 
Approach (the Position Statement).   

 
8.33b This application is located within the Sussex North Water Supply Zone.  Much of the 

water supply in Sussex North is sourced from groundwater abstraction points 
which drain water from the Arun Valley SAC, SPA and Ramsar Site.  Natural 
England has confirmed that it cannot, with certainty, conclude no adverse effect of 
abstracting such water on the integrity of the Arun Valley SAC, SPA and Ramsar 
Site (all designated under the Habitats Regulations).  Natural England’s Position 
Statement confirms that new developments must not add to the adverse impact on 
the Arun Valley SAC, SPA and Ramsar Site. 
 

8.33c This application, must therefore demonstrate that it would not increase water 
abstraction. In other words, it must be 'water neutral'.  Natural England set out the 
definition of water neutrality as “the use of water in the supply area before the 
development is the same or lower after the development is in place”. 

 
8.33d Natural England, in its advice to Councils and in its Position Statement, states:  
 “that this matter should be resolved in partnership through Local Plans across the 

affected authorities, where policy and assessment can be agreed and secured to 
ensure water use is offset for all new developments within Sussex North. To 
achieve this Natural England is working in partnership with all the relevant 
authorities to secure water neutrality collectively through a water neutrality 
strategy.  Whilst the strategy is evolving, Natural England advises that decisions on 
planning applications should await its completion. However, if there are 
applications which a planning authority deems critical to proceed in the absence of 
the strategy, then Natural England advises that any application needs to 
demonstrate water neutrality”. 

 
8.33e Natural England has provided the following interim approach for demonstrating 

water neutrality, until a strategic solution is available. 
 
 Minimising water use of new development 

• Complete a water budget (based on occupancy) 

• Install significant water efficiency measures into the new development.  This 
can be achieved by measures such as grey water recycling, rainwater 
harvesting and water efficient fixings (such as shower aerators) to 
demonstrably reduce demand.  Such measures would need to be suitably 
certain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



Water offsetting measures in existing development 

• In addition to the above, water offsetting measures will also be required to 
reduce water consumption from existing development located in the Sussex 
North Water Supply Zone.  One way to achieve this is retrofitting of council 
owned properties/commercial buildings located within Sussex North. 
Examples include grey water recycling, rainwater harvesting and installation 
of water reduction fittings in Council-owned buildings.  It is worth noting that 
Chichester District Council does not have any appropriate buildings in the 
Sussex North catchment area and therefore this third option is not available.  
These measures would need to be implemented and retained until such time 
as a more sustainable water supply has been secured.   
 

The application would need to demonstrate, through an appropriate assessment, 
the required water neutrality. Any mitigation must be suitably certain in order to 
comply with the Habitats Regulations and Caselaw. 

 
8.33f The onus is on developers to demonstrate deliverable water neutrality for their 

proposals.  This application would clearly increase water usage compared to the 
existing use of the site. Offsetting will therefore be required to mitigate the 
additional usage on site.   

 
8.33g In response to the advice from Natural England, the applicant has submitted water 

usage calculations, which shows the total water demand to be offset for the 
development is 10,510 l/d. This is proposed to be mitigated in 3 ways: 

• utilization of the extant development (ref 19/01498/FUL) water demand 
(3440 l/d).   
Officers have sought legal advice on the use of the extant planning 
permission to off-set part of the demand.  The legal advice has stated 
that so long as the permission is extant and unfettered, such that there 
are no barriers to its implementation, and information has been 
submitted to demonstrate the extant permission would be built out 
should the new proposal not be granted permission then the water 
demand from the extant planning permission can be included in the 
overall water calculations. This means that all pre-commencement 
conditions on the extant permission must be discharged to 
demonstrate there are no barriers to it being implemented.  Application 
19/01498/FUL remains extant (it expires in August 2023) and the agent 
has submitted information to demonstrate why the extant permission 
would be built out should the current proposal not receive planning 
permission, namely the site is within their ownership, a significant 
amount of money has been invested in the site already, and the 
developer has a good track record having delivered the existing 
housing development adjoining the site.  In addition, an application to 
discharge all the pre-commencement conditions for application 
19/01498/FUL was made valid on 21.03.2022 (ref 22/00489/DOC).  
Consultation responses have been received in relation to conditions 4, 
5, 6 and 7 raising no objection.  Consideration is still ongoing in 
relation to conditions 3 (arboriculture) and 8 (PROW).  The 
recommendation for this application is to Delegate to Officers.  Whilst 
the application remains under consideration and no recommendation 
can be at this time due to the outstanding matters above, given the  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



previous resolution of the Planning Committee to permit the proposal, 
the recommendation to delegate to officers would ensure the 
opportunity remains to determine the application positively without 
delay provided all the pre-commencement conditions listed in 
22/00489/DOC have been discharged and the S106 Agreement relating 
to the water neutrality mitigation measures has been completed. 

• on-site water reduction measures (as per the submitted drainage layout 
plans – AH283-CIV-107/PO4 and AH283-CIV-108/PO6) - that is rainwater 
harvesting system for all dwellings with onsite tanks (each unit will 
have its own tank except for the two blocks of flats that have shared 
ones), water butts for all dwellings with gardens and rainwater 
harvesting system for the retail unit 

• off-site water reduction measures at Fishers Farm (within the Sussex 
North water supply zone) to be secured by S106 Agreement and to 
include:  
o 10,000l above ground Rainwater Harvesting (RWH) system at 

Fishers Farm washdown bay 
o Replace 3no. WCs with 1 waterless urinal and 2 no. 1.5l flush WCs at 

Fishers Farm grill together with an above ground 10,000l RWH 
system 

o Retrofit 2 no. waterless urinals and 3 no. 1.5l flush WCs at Fisher 
Farm main entrance building  
 

8.33h The three mitigation proposals listed above will result in a water demand offset of 
11,352 l/d, which exceeds the total water demand of the proposed development 
(10,510l/d) by 842l/d.  With these water offset reductions, the proposed development 
would be fully mitigated.  The over mitigation of 842 l/d, supports the precautionary 
approach required by the HRA.  

 
8.33i Natural England has been consulted on the HRA and concluded that they raise no 

objection, subject to appropriate mitigation being secured.  They go on to state that 
in order to mitigate these adverse effects and make the development acceptable, the 
following mitigation options should be secured: 

• Securing of onsite and offsite water efficient fixtures and fittings and greywater 
harvesting as detailed in the water neutrality mitigation letter of 15 March. We 
advise that an appropriate planning condition or obligation is attached to any 
planning permission to ensure that the mitigation measures can be fully 
implemented and are enforceable until such time as an alternative water supply 
is operational within Sussex North.  

 
8.33j All mitigation measures would be controlled by way of a S106 agreement. The S106 

agreement will specify that the measures need to be fully operational prior to the 
occupation of the development.   

 
8.33k For the reasons set out above, the applicant has demonstrated water neutrality.  An 

HRA has been undertaken by the Council which concludes that, with mitigation the 
proposed scheme would not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the European 
Protected Site under regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017. Natural England has been consulted on the HRA and concurs 
with this conclusion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



viii. Sustainable Design and Construction 
 

8.34 The applicant's Sustainability and Energy Statement and addendums comply with the 
requirements of Policy 40 of the CLP and criterion 8 of the IPS. The documents confirm 
that the approach relies on a combination of measures including 'fabric first' 
construction and solar PV panels. The proposal will result in a 19.6% carbon reduction 
through the fabric of all 27 dwellings, including low U-Values, good airtightness, combi 
boiler with waste water heat recovery and whole house mechanical ventilation system 
with heat recovery. This meets the 19% required by the IPS. Energy efficiencies 
secured through a fabric first approach are to be supplemented in terms of renewable 
energy through the use of solar photovoltaic panels (44kWp of PV panels equating to 
134no. 330W panels). A further carbon reduction of 25.2% will be achieved through the 
installation of the PV panels.  These reductions resulting from the use of renewable 
technologies significantly exceeds the 10% requirement in the IPS. In the Sustainability 
and Energy Statement (October 2020) the applicant has also committed to install 23 
electric car charging facilities in the garages of all properties that have them or to the 
side of dedicated parking spaces and install water efficiency measures. 

 
8.35 Conditions are recommended to secure the stated energy savings as set out in the 

Sustainability and Energy Statement and addendums, as well as further details of the 
photovoltaic panels and electric vehicle charging infrastructure and a water consumption 
standard of a maximum of 110 litres per person per day. It is considered that secured in 
this way the development meets the requirements of criterion 8 of the IPS and therein the 
objectives of Local Plan policy 40. 
 

8.35 In January 2022 the applicant submitted further technical details in relation to the  
electric vehicle charging points, as follows: 

• A layout plan to show that EV charging was proposed for 27 car parking 
spaces (40.3% of overall spaces) which exceeds the provision of active 
spaces required in the WSCC parking standards (37% of spaces for 
construction in 2022). 

• The remaining spaces that do not have charge points are either on-plot 
where cable ducting could be provided by the plots or within allocated 
spaces where charge pillars are proposed which could be utilised for 
additional charging points in the future. The only exception to this is the 3 
unallocated spaces opposite plot 15, which are on a non-dig construction 
surface within the RPA’s of the retained trees.  

The specification details for the EV charging units and the level of EV charging 
provision is acceptable and therefore condition 17 has been amended to a 
compliance condition. 

 
Significant Conditions 

 

8.36 The key conditions that are recommended to make this development acceptable have 
been discussed in the relevant sections of this report. These conditions would include 
details of vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access, construction management plan, site 
levels, surface water drainage and its long-term management and maintenance, foul 
drainage, noise mitigation measures, sustainability components, soft landscaping and tree 
protection measures and ecological mitigation and enhancements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



Section 106 Agreement 
 

8.37 This development is liable to pay the Council's CIL charge at £200 sqm which will address 
most of the infrastructure matters. At the time of preparing this report work was 
progressing on preparing a Section 106 agreement, which the applicants have confirmed 
they will enter into. The anticipated final heads of terms are: 

 
- 30% Affordable Housing (8 units), with a rent:shared ownership tenure mix as 

follows: 
Affordable rent: 

• 4 x 1 bedroom 
Shared ownership: 

• 2 x 1 bedroom 

• 2 x 2 bedroom 
Appropriate management by an approved body and a nominations agreement. 

 

- Affordable Housing Commuted Sum of £1,942.50 for the remaining 0.1 of a unit 
 

- Amenity Open Space (minimum of 267 sqm), provision, management and on-going 
maintenance. 

 
- Prior to occupation to apply for a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for double yellow 

lines at the Nursery Green/ new development junction; the Guildford Road/Nursery 
Green junction; within the new site up to retail car park access and on Nursery Green 
at the 90 degree bend to protect from on-street parking in this area and to secure the 
Nursery Green layby to be for loading only. The applicant to cover the cost of the 
TRO which is £7418. 

 
- Financial contribution of £15,000 for traffic calming measures along Guildford Road. 

The specific measures will be discussed with Loxwood Parish Council. 
 

- Water neutrality mitigation measures: 
 
On-site water reduction measures 

• External rainwater collection tanks (water butts) for all residential units 
with gardens  

• rainwater harvesting (RWH) system for all residential units (as per the 
submitted drainage layout plans – AH283-CIV-107/PO4 and AH283-CIV-
108/PO6)  

• RWH system for the retail unit  

• On site measures to be fully implemented and operational for each 
dwelling before that dwelling is occupied.  On site RWH system to be fully 
implemented and operational before first use of the retail unit. 
 

Offsite water reduction measures at Fishers Farm 

• 10,000l RWH system with above ground tank at Fishers Farm washdown 
bay 

• 10,000l RWH system with above ground tank at Fishers Farm grill 

• Replace 3no. WCs with 1 waterless urinal and 2 no. 1.5l flush WCs at 
Fishers Farm grill 

• Retrofit 2 no. waterless urinals and 3 no. 1.5l flush WCs at Fisher Farm 
main entrance building 
 
 
 

Page 84



• Off-site water neutrality mitigation measures to be fully implemented and 
operational and verified by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
occupation of any of the new dwellings approved under this application.   

• Financial payment of £15,000 to be paid to Fisher Farm by Antler Homes 
(the applicant) to fund maintenance and operation of the RWH systems 
for a five year period post installation. 

• Water meter readings to be reported to the local planning authority on an 
annual basis for an agreed period of up to 5 years in order to demonstrate 
continued water savings against the current benchmark. 
 

- Financial contribution of £1,500 for monitoring of the travel plan by WSCC. 
 

- S106 monitoring fee of £2,538 

Conclusion 

8.38 The Interim Policy Statement provides an appropriate development management 
tool for assessing housing applications to ensure that the Council’s 5 year housing 
land supply position is maintained in the absence of an up to date local plan and it 
is a material consideration The proposed development in this case is considered to 
score well when assessed against the relevant criteria in the IPS (as set out in the 
report above). In this context and for the reasons outlined above the 'principle' of 
housing development is therefore considered acceptable. The development would 
deliver 8 units of affordable housing and 19 market houses and would help to 
increase the Council's housing supply.  Whilst the application remains under 
consideration, should the application be recommended for approval it is likely that 
the following conditions and informatives would be included as well as the Section 
106 obligations set out above. 

 
Human Rights 

 

8.39 In reaching this conclusion the Human Rights of the applicants and nearby occupiers have 
been taken into account when reaching this recommendation and it is concluded that the 
recommendation to permit is justified and proportionate. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
DELEGATE TO OFFICERS 
 
Whilst the application remains under consideration, should the application be 
recommended for approval it is likely that the following conditions and informatives 
would be included: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two 
years from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

 
FA-19-1749-010, FA-19-1749-015, FA-19-1749-100A, FA-19-1749-101C, FA-19-
1749- 102B, FA-19-1749-104B, FA-19-1749-106C, FA-19-1749-108A, FA-19-1749-
110C, FA-19-1749-112B, FA-19-1749-114B, FA-19-1749-116B, FA-19-1749-118A, 
FA-19- 1749-120C, FA-19-1749-050H, FA-19-1749-051C, FA-19-1749-060F and 
DR-T-1007 REV P01 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and to 
ensure the development complies with the planning permission. 

 

3) No development shall commence, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) comprising a schedule of 
works and accompanying plans for that development has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the approved CEMP 
shall be implemented and adhered to throughout the entire construction period unless 
any alternative is agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall 
provide details of the following: 
(a) the phased programme of demolition and construction works, 
(b) the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during construction, 
(c) the location and specification for vehicular access during construction, 
(d) the provision made for the parking of vehicles by contractors, site operatives and 
visitors, 
(e) the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste, 
(f) the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the development, 
(g) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding, 
(h) the location of any site huts/cabins/offices, 
(i) the provision of road sweepers, wheel washing facilities and the type, details of 
operation and location of other works required to mitigate the impact of construction 
upon the public highway (including the provision of temporary Traffic Regulation 
Orders), 
(j) details of public engagement both prior to and during construction works, including 
a named person to be appointed by the applicant to deal with complaints who shall 
be available on site and contact details made known to all relevant parties, 
(k) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, to include 
where relevant sheeting of loads, covering and dampening down stockpiles, water 
suppression during dusty activities and restriction of vehicle speeds on haul roads. A 
dust management plan should form part of the CEMP which includes routine dust 
monitoring at the site boundary with actions to be taken when conducting dust 
generating activities if weather conditions are adverse, 
(l) measures to control the emission of noise during construction, 
(m) details of all proposed external lighting to be used during construction and 
measures used to limit the disturbance of any lighting required. Lighting shall be used 
only for security and safety, 
(n) appropriate storage of fuel and chemicals, in bunded tanks or suitably paved 
areas, 
(o) measures to reduce air pollution during construction including turning off vehicle 
engines when not in use and plant servicing, 
(p) waste management including prohibiting burning and a scheme for the storage 
and disposal of waste, providing maximum recycling opportunities, 
(q) details of site monitoring and logging of results, and 
(r) provision of temporary domestic waste and recycling bin collection point(s) during 
construction. 

 
 

Page 86



3)  The implementation of this planning permission shall be carried out strictly 
in accordance with the Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
dated 28 October 2021 and the Traffic Management Plan (drawing no. AH-EMP-
01).  Prior to commencement of the development details for the Site Contact 
Information (section 9 in the CEMP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason: These details are necessary pre-commencement to To ensure the 
development proceeds in the interests of highway safety and in the interests of 
protecting nearby residents from nuisance during all stages of development and to 
ensure the use of the site does not have a harmful environmental effect. 

 
 

4) No development shall commence until plans of the site showing details of the 
existing and proposed ground levels, proposed finished floor levels, levels of any 
paths, drives, garages and parking areas and the proposed completed height of the 
development and any retaining walls have been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority. The details shall clearly identify the relationship of 
the proposed ground levels and proposed completed height with adjacent buildings. 
The development thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
4)  The implementation of this planning permission shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with drawing numbers AH283-CIV-105/P02 and AH283-CIV-106/P02.   
 
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory relationship results between the new 
development and adjacent buildings and public areas. It is considered necessary for 
this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details relate to the construction 
of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission. 

 
 

5) No development shall commence until details of the proposed overall site-wide 
surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The design should follow the hierarchy of preference for 
different types of surface water drainage disposal as set out in Approved Document H 
of the Building Regulations and the SUDS Manual produced by CIRIA. Winter ground 
water monitoring to establish highest annual ground water levels and Percolation 
testing to BRE 365, or similar approved, will be required to support the design of any 
Infiltration drainage. The surface water drainage scheme shall be implemented as 
approved unless any variation is agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
building shall be occupied until the complete surface water drainage system serving 
that property has been implemented in accordance with the approved surface water 
drainage scheme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



5) The overall site-wide surface water drainage scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with drawings AH283-CIV-101/PO2, AH283-CIV-107/PO4, AH283-CIV-
108/PO6, AH283-CIV-111/PO3, AH 283-CIV-112/P01 (in so far as they relate to surface 
water drainage) unless any variation is agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. No building shall be occupied until the complete surface water drainage 
system serving that property has been implemented in accordance with the 
approved surface water drainage scheme. 
 
Reason: The details are required pre-commencement To ensure that the proposed 
development is satisfactorily drained with all necessary infrastructure installed during 
the groundworks phase. 

 
6) No development shall commence with the exception of access formation 
works onto Nursery Green, re-location of the lay-by, footpath re-location, site 
clearance and site set-up works, unless and until details of the proposed means of 
foul water sewerage disposal including the proposals for the associated off- site 
infrastructure improvements have been submitted to and been approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority acting reasonably in consultation with Southern Water. 
Thereafter all development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
details. Occupation of the development shall be phased and implemented to align 
with the delivery by Southern Water of any sewerage network reinforcement 
required. No occupation of any part of this development shall take place until the 
approved off-site works have been completed or, in the event that the agreed off-site 
works are not completed in full by the time of first occupation, detailed interim on-site 
measures for the disposal of foul water sewerage shall be first agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Southern Water and implemented in 
full. 

 
Reason: To ensure that adequate waste water network capacity is available to 
adequately drain the development. It is considered necessary for this to be a pre- 
commencement condition as such details need to be taken into account in the 
construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission. 

 
 

7) No development shall commence above ground floor level until a scheme of 
sound insulation building design, for any separating structures between the retail unit 
and neighbouring residential dwellings, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The sound insulation performance between 
the commercial activities and residential dwellings shall provide an improvement over 
minimum building regulations as much as is practicable. The detail shall include 
predicted sound insulation performance of the proposed separating structure. 
Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved 
details and all sound insulation shall be installed prior to the first residential 
occupation of the development and thereafter retained for the lifetime of the building. 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of future occupiers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



8) No development shall commence on site, including demolition, until protective 
fencing has been erected around all trees, shrubs and other natural features not 
scheduled for removal in accordance with the Revised Arboricultural Implications 
Report and Tree Protection Plan (drawing number SJA TPP 20180-041a) prepared 
by SJA Trees dated October 2020. Thereafter the protective fencing shall be retained 
for the duration of the works and in accordance with the Revised Arboricultural 
Implications Report prepared by SJA Trees dated October 2020 and the 
recommendations of BS5837:2012, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No unauthorised access or placement of goods, fuels or 
chemicals, soil or other materials shall take place inside the fenced area; soil levels 
within the root protection area of the trees/hedgerows to be retained shall not be 
raised or lowered, and there shall be no burning of materials where it could cause 
damage to any tree or tree group to be retained on the site or on land adjoining at 
any time 

 
Reason: To ensure that trees, shrubs and other natural features to be retained are 
adequately protected from damage to health and stability. It is considered necessary 
for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details need to be agreed prior 
to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning 
permission. 

 
 

9) Prior to commencement of the development a badger survey shall be 
undertaken to ensure badgers are not using the site. If a badger sett is found on site, 
Natural England should be consulted and a mitigation strategy produced. 
 
Reason: In the interest of conserving and enhancing biodiversity. It is considered 
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details need to be 
agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the 
planning permission. 
 
9) The implementation of this planning permission shall be carried out strictly 
in accordance with the method of works and mitigation measures detailed in 
“Section 6 - Conclusions and Recommendations” and “Section 7 - Non-
licensed Method Statement” of the submitted Badger Survey Report dated 
March 2021 and the Mitigation Summary letter dated 28/09/2021, both 
produced by AEWC. 

 
Reason:  To ensure that the protection of ecology and/or biodiversity is fully 
taken into account during the construction process in order to ensure the 
development will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the species. 
 
 

10) Prior to commencement of the development a precautionary method 
statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the method statement shall include a 
programme of works for removing the grassland sensitively and outlining the 
arrangements for the grassland to be checked for Great Crested Newts by a licenced 
ecologist, immediately prior to its removal. Once approved, the schemes shall be 
carried out in full accordance with the agreed details and programme. Should any 
Great Crested Newts be found at any time, all works must stop and a suitably 
qualified ecologist contacted. 

 
 
 

Page 89



Reason: To preserve the conservation status of protected species. It is considered 
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details need to be 
agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the 
planning permission. 

 
10) The implementation of this planning permission shall be carried out 
strictly in accordance with the method of works and mitigation measures 
detailed in “Section 5 Method Statement for Reptiles” of the submitted Reptile 
Mitigation Strategy dated 10 September 2020 and the Mitigation Summary 
letter dated 28/09/2021, both produced by AEWC. 

 
Reason:  To ensure that the protection of ecology and/or biodiversity is fully 
taken into account during the construction process in order to ensure the 
development will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the species. 

 
 

11) Prior to any felling works taking place to any trees, the trees shall be 
inspected by a licensed ecologist prior to any felling works taking place., in 
accordance with the recommendations in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (23 
June 2020) by AEWC. 

 
Reason: In the interest of conserving and enhancing biodiversity. 

 
 

12) Notwithstanding any details submitted to the contrary no dwelling shall be 
constructed above slab level until a full schedule of all materials and finishes and 
samples of such materials and finishes to be used for external walls, window/door 
surrounds and roofs of the building(s) have been submitted to and been approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved schedule of materials and finishes unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
12) The development hereby permitted shall not be constructed other than in 
accordance with the materials specified in the Schedule of Materials received on 16 
June 2021 and submitted samples, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.   

 
Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail 
in the interest of amenity and to ensure a development of visual quality. 

 
 

13) No development above slab level shall commence until verge details for all 
roofs (main roofs, garages and pitched roof porches) have been submitted to and 
been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out in full accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure the finishes to be used are appropriate in the interest of amenity 
and to ensure a development of visual quality. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



14) No development shall commence on the Sustainable Urban Drainage 
System (SUDS) until full details of the maintenance and management of the SUDS 
system, set out in a site-specific maintenance manual, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The manual shall include details 
of financial management and arrangements for the replacement of major components 
at the end of the manufacturers recommended design life. The manual shall also 
include the arrangements for the future access and maintenance details of any 
watercourse or culvert (piped watercourse) crossing or abutting the site. Upon 
completed construction of the SUDS system, the owner or management company 
shall strictly adhere to and implement the recommendations contained within the 
manual, including the approved access and maintenance details for any watercourse 
or culvert. 

 
Reason: To ensure the efficient maintenance and ongoing operation for the SUDS 
system and to ensure best practice in line with guidance set out in the SUDS Manual 
CIRIA publication ref: C687 Chapter 22. 

 
 

15) Notwithstanding the landscaping details submitted with the application no 
construction of any part of the development above slab level shall take place 
unless and until a detailed scheme of soft landscaping for the whole site has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall include a planting plan and schedule of plants noting species, plant sizes and 
proposed numbers/densities, and shall include a program/timetable for the provision 
of the landscaping. In addition all existing trees and hedgerows on the land shall be 
indicated including details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection during the course of development. The scheme shall make particular 
provision for the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity on the application site 
and shall include: 
- tree removal to replace at a ratio of 2:1 
- a 5m buffer strip around the hedgerows 
- wildflower meadow planting 
- filling any gaps in tree lines or hedgerows with native species 
- the provision of bat bricks to be installed into the buildings on facing south/south 

westerly positioned 3-5m above ground 
- the provision of a selection bird boxes to be installed into the buildings and/or 

retained trees on site 
- the provision of 2 no. hedgehog nesting boxes to be installed on site 
- the provision of log piles on site 
- grassland area to be managed to benefit reptiles 
- gaps to be provided at the bottom of the fences to allow movement of small 

mammals across the site. 

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and planting 
timetable and in accordance with the recommendations of the appropriate British 
Standards or other recognised codes of good practice. Any trees or plants which, 
within a period of 5 years after planting, are removed, die or become seriously 
damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with 
others of species, size and number as originally approved unless otherwise first 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and of the environment of the development and to 
encourage ecological enhancement. 

 
 
 

Page 91



16) Notwithstanding the details on the Means of Enclosure plan (drawing number 
FA19-1749-053C) submitted with the application no construction of any dwelling 
or building above slab level shall take place unless and until detail of the boundary 
treatments have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The details shall take into account the Design Officer's comments (dated 
17 December 2020) and shall include: 
- scaled plans showing the location of the boundary treatments and elevations, and 
- details of the materials and finishes. 
Thereafter the boundary treatments shall be maintained as approved in perpetuity.  
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
17) Notwithstanding the submitted information, before construction of any part 
of the development above slab level the developer shall provide details of the 
number, location and technical specification of the Electric Vehicle charging point 
facilities and demonstrate how the development will accord with the West Sussex 
County Council: Guidance on Parking at New Developments (September 2020) in 
respect of the provision of Electric Vehicle (EV) charging facilities. These details shall 
be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and carried out as approved. 
Specifically the development shall provide passive provision through ducting to allow 
EV charging facilities to be brought into use at a later date for the whole site. Active 
EV charging facilities shall be provided in accordance with the table at Appendix B of 
the West Sussex County Council: Guidance on Parking at New Developments 
(September 2020) and no building which is to be provided with an active charging 
facility shall be first occupied until the EV charging facility for that dwelling has been 
provided and is ready for use. 

 
17) The implementation of this planning permission shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the Electric Vehicle charging point layout plan (drawing no. AH-
VCP-01) and the EV charging specification details (two way pedestal EV and Home 
Smart EV) received on 6th January 2022.  No building which is to be provided with an 
active charging facility shall be first occupied until the EV charging facility for that 
dwelling has been provided and is ready for use. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development delivers carbon reductions and a sustainable 
development in accordance with Policy 40 of the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 
2014-2029 and the Council's Interim Position Statement for Housing Development 
(November 2020) 
 

18) Before construction of any part of the development above slab level the 
number, location and technical specification of the PV solar panels (min of 44kWp of 
PV panels equating to 134no. 330W) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Furthermore the solar PV panels must be constructed 
and inserted so that they are flush fitting with the plane of the roof, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No building shall be first occupied 
unless and until the building has been constructed in accordance with the terms of 
the submitted addendum letter prepared by Impact Sustainability dated 15 December 
2020 (19.6% reduction below the baseline emissions) and the PV solar panels for 
that building have been provided and are ready for use. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development delivers carbon reductions and a sustainable 
development in accordance with Policy 40 of the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 
2014-2029 and the Council's Interim Position Statement for Housing Development 
(November 2020). 

 
Page 92



 

19) Prior to the first occupation of the retail unit, a scheme of noise control shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall detail make, model and location of all plant. The noise levels of plant in 
cumulative, maximum operation shall be submitted. Mechanical plant should be 
assessed in accordance of BS4142:2014 A1:2019 Methods for Rating and Assessing 
Industrial and Commercial Sound. A rating level, as determined 1m from the façade 
of the most sensitive receptors, that is no more than the established, representative 
background sound level is an indication of a low impact, dependent on context. Any 
noise mitigation measures, to be adopted shall be detailed. It shall be a requirement 
of any scheme that all plant and connected ducts and pipes, are resiliently isolated to 
reduce the risk of vibration entering the building structure. Thereafter, the 
development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved details prior to 
the first occupation of the retail unit and thereafter retained in accordance with those 
details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interest of the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and future 
residential occupiers of the site. 

 

20) No dwelling shall be first occupied until such time as the vehicular access and 
associated works serving the development have been constructed in accordance with 
the details shown on drawing titled Proposed Site Access and Visibility Splays and 
numbered M4331-JNP-66-XX-DR-T-1003 Rev. P04. 

 
Reason: To accord with the terms of the application and in the interests of road 
safety. 
 

21) No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until visibility 
splays have been provided in accordance with the details shown on the drawing titled 
Proposed Site Access and Visibility Splays and numbered M4331-JNP-66-XX-DR-T- 
1003 Rev. P04. Once provided the visibility splays shall thereafter be maintained and 
kept free of all obstructions over a height of 0.6 metre above the level of the adjoining 
carriageway or as otherwise may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
following consultation with the Local Highway Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interests of road safety. 

 

22) Prior to the first residential occupation of the development details of the 
methods to demarcate the residential parking spaces from the retail parking spaces 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter the parking spaces shall be provided in accordance with the approved 
details prior to the first residential occupation of the development. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure adequate parking provision for the future occupiers of the 
site. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



23) No part of the development shall be first occupied until the car parking has 
been constructed in accordance with plans and details to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include for 
amendments to remove reference to spaces U8 and U9 (to be marked for retail use 
only), appropriate marking of residential only spaces within the retail car park and 
inclusion of a marked up disabled bay for the retail use. Once provided the spaces 
shall thereafter be retained at all times for their designated purpose. 

 
Reason: To provide car-parking space for the use. 

 

24) No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until covered 
and secure cycle parking spaces have been provided for that dwelling/unit in 
accordance with plans and details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking spaces shall be provided in accordance 
with the approved details and retained for that purpose thereafter. 

 
Reason: To provide alternative travel options to the use of the car in accordance with 
current sustainable transport policies. 

 

25) No part of the residential development shall be first occupied until such 
time as a Travel Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall be completed in accordance with the 
latest guidance and good practice documentation as published by the Department 
for Transport or as advised by the Highway Authority. The Travel Plan once 
approved shall thereafter be implemented as specified within the approved 
document. 

 
Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport. 
 
26) No residential unit shall be occupied until the domestic refuse and recycling 
storage facilities including provision of green waste bins to service that part of the 
development have been provided in accordance with a scheme that shall first have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter the domestic refuse and recycling storage facilities shall be maintained 
as approved and kept available for the lifetime of the residential units. 

 
Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of facilities for the storage of domestic 
waste in the interests of general amenity and encouraging sustainable management 
of waste. 

 

27) The retail unit herby permitted shall not be occupied, until details for the 
storage and collection of waste generated by the retail unit have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include 
details of the management of waste generated by both the retail occupier and the 
provision and management of bins outside the retail unit to deter litter and measures 
to maximise the recycling of waste where possible. Thereafter there shall full 
compliance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the use of the site does not 
have a harmful environmental effect. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



28) Before first occupation of any part of the development, details showing the 
precise location, installation and ongoing maintenance of 1 no. fire hydrant to be 
supplied (in accordance with the West Sussex Fire and Rescue Guidance Notes) 
shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with West Sussex County Council's Fire and Rescue Services. The 
approved fire hydrant shall be installed before first occupation of any part of the 
development and thereafter be maintained as in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and in accordance with The Fire and Rescue 
Services Act 2004. 

 

29) Before first occupation of any dwelling full details of how the site will be 
connected to all relevant utilities and services infrastructure networks (including fresh 
water, electricity, gas, telecommunications and broadband ducting) shall be 
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
details shall demonstrate the provision of suitable infrastructure to facilitate these 
connections and the protection of existing infrastructure on the site during works. The 
development will thereafter only proceed in accordance with the approved details 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development benefits from appropriate infrastructure 
 

30) The dwellings hereby permitted shall be designed to ensure the consumption of 
wholesome water by persons occupying a new dwelling must not exceed 110 litres 
per person per day, as set out in in G2 paragraphs 36(2) and 36(3) of the Building 
Regulations 2010 - Approved Document G - Sanitation, hot water safety and water 
efficiency (2015 edition with 2016 amendments). No dwelling hereby permitted 
shall be first occupied until the requirements of this condition for that dwelling have 
been fully implemented, including fixtures, fittings and appliances. 

 
Reason: To ensure water efficiency within the dwellings and to comply with the 
requirements of Policy 40 of the Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029. 

 

31) Before first occupation of any part of the development details of any external 
lighting of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This information shall include a layout plan with beam orientation and 
schedule of equipment in the design (luminaire type, mounting height, aiming angles 
and luminaire profiles). The lighting shall be installed, maintained and operated in 
accordance with the approved details, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its 
written consent to any variation. The lighting scheme shall take into consideration the 
presence of bats in the local area and shall minimise potential impacts to any bats 
using trees and hedgerows by avoiding unnecessary artificial light spill through the 
use of directional lighting sources and shielding. 

 
Reason: To protect the appearance of the area, the environment and foraging bats, 
and local residents from light pollution. 

 
Note: Any proposed external lighting system should comply with the Institute of 
Lighting Engineers (ILE) guidance notes for the Reduction of Light Pollution. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



32) No part of the development (retail or residential) shall be first occupied until 
a scheme for the long-term management and maintenance of the hard and soft 
landscaped areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter these areas shall be managed and maintained in 
accordance with the approved details in perpetuity, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality 

 

33) Prior to the occupation of the retail unit, a Servicing Management Plan shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall 
set out the arrangements for the loading and unloading of deliveries, in terms of 
location and frequency, and set out arrangements for the collection of refuse. The 
retail unit shall thereafter operate in full accordance with the approved details. There 
shall be no amendments to the Servicing Management Plan unless agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To safeguard residential amenity and the operation of the public highway. 
 
34) In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first 
occupied until: 
i) An investigation and risk assessment has been undertaken in accordance with a 
scheme that shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and 
ii) where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any remediation shall be fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme before the development is 
bought into use, and 
iii) a verification report for the remediation shall be submitted in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority before the development is first bought into use. 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to protect the health of future occupiers of the 
site from any possible effects of contaminated land in accordance with local and 
national planning policy. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to protect the health of future occupiers of the 
site from any possible effects of contaminated land in accordance with local and 
national planning policy. 

 

35) Any works to the trees or vegetation clearance on the site shall only be 
undertaken outside of the bird breeding season (which takes place between 1st 
March 1st October). If works are required within this time an ecologist must check the 
site before any works take place (within 24 hours of any work). 

 
Reason: In the interest of ecology. 

 
36) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in full 
accordance with the mitigation measures set out in the Reptile Mitigation Strategy (10 
September 2020), prepared by AEWC and shall be carried out in accordance with 
these details 

 
Reason: In the interest of conserving and enhancing biodiversity. 

 
 
 

Page 96



37) The retail premises shall not be open for trade or business except between the 
hours of 07:00 and 22:00. 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the neighbouring properties. 

 

38) No deliveries shall be taken to or despatched from the retail unit hereby approved 
outside of the hours of 08:00 and 20:00 Mondays to Saturdays and 09:00 and 16:00 
on Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays. 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the neighbouring properties. 

 

39) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying 
that Order) the areas marked on approved plan number FA19-1749-100 as 'retail' and 
'store and office' shall not be used for any purpose other than retail or post office 
(including any other uses within class E of the Use Classes Order 1987 (as amended) 
(or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order). 

 
Reason: To accord with the terms of the application and with the policies of the 
Council and to ensure adequate parking provision. 

 
40) Notwithstanding any indication shown on the approved plans and notwithstanding 
the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order 2015 (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order) there shall be 
no storage of goods, pallets, packaging or waste outside the building hereby 
permitted, other than in within the area marked as 'service yard' on plan number 004 
Rev. P12. Within the service yard, no goods, pallets, packaging or waste shall be 
stacked, stored or deposited above 2m in height. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the visual appearance of the area is not adversely affected. 

 

41) The construction of the development and associated works shall not take place 
on Sundays or Public Holidays or any time otherwise than between the hours of 0700 
hours and 1800 hours Mondays to Fridays and 0800 hours and 1300 hours on 
Saturdays. 

 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity. 

 
42) No part of the development (retail or residential) shall be first occupied 
until the on-site water neutrality mitigation measures for that unit have been 
fully implemented and are operational and a verification report for all the on-
site water neutrality mitigation measures has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
Reason: To ensure that the necessary mitigation measures to ensure an alternative 
water supply is in place prior to occupation of the development.  In the interests of 
biodiversity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



INFORMATIVES 
 

1) The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally 
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the 
proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning Authority has 
been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
2) This permission shall be read in conjunction with an Agreement made under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990. 

 
3) The applicant is advised to contact the WSCC Traffic Regulation Order team 
(01243 642105) to obtain the necessary paperwork and commence the process 
associated with the proposed loading bay/ parking restrictions. The applicant would 
be responsible for meeting all costs associated with this process. The applicant 
should note that the outcome of this process cannot be guaranteed. 
 

4) The applicant is required to obtain all appropriate consents from West Sussex 
County Council, as Highway Authority, to cover the off-site highway works. The 
applicant is requested to contact The Implementation Team Leader (01243 642105) 
to commence this process. The applicant is advised that it is an offence to undertake 
any works within the highway prior to the agreement being in place. 

 
5) The applicant is advised that the erection of temporary directional signage should 
be agreed with the Local Traffic Engineer prior to any signage being installed. The 
applicant should be aware that a charge will be applied for this service. 

 
6) The applicant is advised to discuss surfacing specification for the PROW with 
WSCC PROW officers. An application to close the existing PROW will also be 
required and details can be found on the WSCC PROW website. A minimum of 6 
weeks is required to consider the application. 

 
7) A formal application for connection to the public sewerage system is required in 
order to service this development. Please read our New Connections Services 
Charging Arrangements documents which has now been published and is available 
to read on our website via the following link: southernwater.co.uk/developing- 
building/connection-charging-arrangements 

 
8) The applicant is reminded that the prior written consent of the Lead Local Flood 
Authority (WSCC) or its agent (CDC) will be required in order to comply with the Land 
Drainage Act 1991 and Flood and Water Management Act 2010 for the discharge of 
any flows to watercourses, or the culverting, diversion, infilling or obstruction of any 
watercourse on the site. Any discharge to a watercourse must be at a rate no greater 
than the pre-development run off values. For further information please email 
landdrainage@chichester.gov.uk. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98

mailto:landdrainage@chichester.gov.uk


9) In relation to condition 7, the applicant is advised that Building Regulation, 
Approved Document E, Section 0.8, states a higher standard of sound insulation may 
be required between spaces used of normal domestic purposes and communal or 
non-domestic purposes. In these situations, the appropriate level of sound insulation 
will depend on the noise generated in the communal or non-domestic space. 
Specialist advice may be needed to establish if a higher standard of sound insulation 
is required and, if so, to determine the appropriate level. A sound insulation 
performance between the commercial activities and residential dwellings should 
exceed minimum building regulation requirements, as much as is practicable, in order 
to provide appropriate internal residential sound levels. 

 

10) The developer's attention is drawn to the provisions of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981, the Conservation (Natural Habitats etc) Regulations 1994, and 
to other wildlife legislation (for example Protection of Badgers Act 1992, Wild 
Mammals Protection Act 1996). These make it an offence to kill or injure any wild 
bird intentionally, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird intentionally (when the 
nest is being built or is in use), disturb, damage or destroy and place which certain 
wild animals use for shelter (including badgers and all bats and certain moths, otters, 
water voles and dormice), kill or injure certain reptiles and amphibians (including 
adders, grass snakes, common lizards, slow-worms, Great Crested newts, Natterjack 
toads, smooth snakes and sand lizards), and kill, injure or disturb a bat or damage 
their shelter or breeding site. Leaflets on these and other protected species are 
available free of charge from Natural England. 

 
The onus is therefore on you to ascertain whether any such species are present on 
site, before works commence. If such species are found or you suspected, you must 
contact Natural England (at: Natural England, Sussex and Surrey Team, Phoenix 
House, 32-33 North Street, Lewes, East Sussex, BN7 2PH, 01273 476595, 
sussex.surrey@english-nature.org.uk) for advice. For nesting birds, you should delay 
works until after the nesting season (1 March to 31 August). 

 
 

For further information on this application please contact Joanna Bell on 01243 534734 
 

To view the application use the following link - 
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online- 
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QEND5FERMF500 

Page 99

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND%2CKEYVAL.DCAPPL%3B
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND%2CKEYVAL.DCAPPL%3B


This page is intentionally left blank



Chichester District Council Planning Committee 
 

Wednesday 04 May 2022 
 
 

Report of the Director Of Planning and Environment Services Schedule of Planning 

Appeals, Court and Policy Matters 

between 13-03-2022 - 13-04-2022 

This report updates Planning Committee members on current appeals and other matters. It 
would be of assistance if specific questions on individual cases could be directed to officers 
in advance of the meeting. 

Note for public viewing via Chichester District Council web site 

 

To read each file in detail, including the full appeal decision when it is issued, click on the 
reference number (NB certain enforcement cases are not open for public inspection, but 
you will be able to see the key papers via the automatic link to the Planning Inspectorate). 

* = Committee level decision 
 

 

1. NEW APPEALS (Lodged) 
 
 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/03407/PA3Q 

Boxgrove Parish Eartham Quarry Eartham West Sussex PO18 0FN 
Case Officer: Maria  

Tomlinson  

Written Representation Change of use of agricultural building to 2 no. 

dwellinghouses (Class C3). 

 

 20/03321/OUTEIA 

Chidham & Hambrook 
Parish 
Case Officer: Jane 
Thatcher 

Land North Of A259 Flat Farm Main Road Chidham 
West Sussex 

Public Inquiry Outline planning application (with all matters reserved 
except access) for up to 68 no. dwellings and provision of 
associated infrastructure. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R32U5SER10R00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QLJMSPERJZH00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/03282/FUL 

East Wittering And 
Bracklesham Parish 
Case Officer: Emma 
Kierans 

Land South Of Tranjoeen Ashcroft Place 
Bracklesham Lane Bracklesham Bay West Sussex 

Written Representation Proposed vehicle crossover (means of access to a 
highway Class B). 

 

 19/00176/CONT 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Steven Pattie 

Fast Track Appeal 

4 The Paddocks Common Road Hambrook Westbourne 
Chichester West Sussex PO18 8UP 

Appeal against Enforcement Notice WE/55 - removal 
of TPO'd trees without an application for tree works. 

Page 102

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R2CUTMERHLB00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal


2. DECISIONS MADE 
 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/01685/DOM 

Donnington Parish 121 Stockbridge RoadDonningtonPO19 8QR 
Case Officer: Maria  

Tomlinson  

Fast Track Appeal Erection of a single-storey rear extension, two and a half- 
 storey side extension and new roof extension with dormer 
 window to rear. 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL ALLOWED 

“… The appeal site comprises a detached two storey property set within a spacious plot. The 
host property is set back from the road, with a garden and parking to the front and a large 
garden to the rear. The immediate context comprises a mixture of old and new. To the south is 
more recent redevelopment …. of three storeys on the corner of Stockbridge Road ……. there 
is, therefore, no uniform character to the part of the road that includes the appeal site. …… 
Within the above context, the proposed two and a half storey side extension and new roof 
extension would not appear incongruous or out of character within the streetscene……The 
resulting building relationships are not dissimilar to those that already exist within the road, 
….Moreover, the appeal proposal would secure an appropriate transition between the older 
properties and more recent redevelopment, in terms of design, form and scale ….. In relation to 
the proposed windows within the first floor north east (side) elevation, I note from the submitted 
plans and my observations on site, that there are already existing windows in this location. 
However, the latter serve the stairs and landing, whereas the proposed windows would serve a 
new bedroom. In view of the latter, I agree with the Council and the objection from the occupiers 
of No.119, that the proposed windows would result in the overlooking of the bedroom window to 
that property. The Appellant has suggested that this concern could be addressed by a condition 
that requires these windows to be obscure glazed with no part of the windows, that are less 
than 1.7 metres above the floor level of the new bedroom, capable of being opened. Having 
viewed this relationship on site and mindful of the existing arrangement, I am satisfied that such 
condition is acceptable and would address the concerns that have been raised in this respect. I 
am also satisfied that the resulting standard of internal accommodation would be acceptable 
and would not represent a poor environment. The proposed windows would serve a relatively 
small bedroom and whilst it is uncommon for windows to such rooms to be obscure 
glazed…..the level of projection is not significant and there remains a gap between the two 
properties, created by the gated pedestrian access to No.123 that runs the entire length of that 
property. Moreover, the submitted plans indicate that the proposed extension would fall within 
the 450 angle (line) when drawn from the position of the windows/doors on the rear elevation of 
No.123. The 450 angle test is widely used in planning to determine the acceptability of rear 
extensions, as proposed and their potential impact on the living conditions of neighbouring 
occupiers. I note that this is a test that PGN3 recommends be used in such situations. I accept 
that there would be some impact on No.123, but all the above factors lead to me to conclude 
that this impact would be limited and that the proposed extension would not result in any 
significant harm to the living conditions of No.123. …” 

Page 103

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QTRLNSERITB00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/01674/DOM 

East Wittering And 
Bracklesham Parish 
Case Officer: Sascha 
Haigh 

The Beeches 23 Barn Road East WitteringPO20 8NL 

Fast Track Appeal Hip to gable roof extension with raised ridge and eaves and 
3 no. dormers. Two storey rear extension with various 
alterations including changes to fenestration. 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL ALLOWED - NOTICE QUASHED 

“…The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for hip to gable roof 
extension with raised ridge and eaves. 2 storey rear extension and general alterations 
including fenestration alterations at The Beeches, 23 Barn Road, East Withering, PO20 
8NL in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref. EWB/21/01674/DOM dated 21 
May 2021, and the plans submitted with it and subject to the conditions listed below. The 
main issues are the effect of the proposed development on: (a) the character and 
appearance of the host property and surrounding area; and (b) the living conditions of 
neighbouring occupiers. Within the above context, whilst the proposed hip to gable roof 
extension, with raised ridge and eaves, would result in an increase in the bulk of the host 
property this would not be significant or harmful to the host or streetscene. I accept that 
there would be a material change to the scale and design of the host property when 
viewed from the road, but, even so, all the proposed changes would refresh and 
modernise the appearance of the front elevation, whose current design is not of any 
quality or merit. The result would be a significant improvement on existing that would 
enhance the character and appearance of the appeal site and surrounding area.it would 
assist in raising the standard of design within the area and at the same time secure a 
development that fits in well with the varied character of its surroundings. As I confirmed 
above, there is no uniform built rhythm or form to the surrounding area, with, for example, 
21 Barn Road (No.21), to the south, set back further from the road than the host property 
and 25 Barn Road (No.25), to the north, sited gable end/side on to the road. I find, 
therefore, that the appeal proposal would be compliant with policy 33 of the CLP and the 
corresponding paragraphs of the Framework, and would not materially conflict with the 
aims and objectives of PGN3.Accordingly, I find that the appeal proposal would not lead 
to any significant harm to the living conditions of the neighbouring occupiers of No.21 or 
No.25 and would, therefore, be compliant, in this respect, with policy 33 of the CLP and 
paragraph 130 f) of the Framework. For the reasons given above and having taken all the 
matters raised into account, I conclude that the appeal should be allowed…” 

 

Page 104

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QTRLJAERISP00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 20/02723/FUL 

Fishbourne Parish Land East Of The Trees Main 

Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Road Fishbourne Chichester West Sussex PO18 8AU 

Written Representation 1 no. dwelling, new access and associated works. 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL DISMISSED 

“…The appeal is dismissed. The main issues are: - Whether the proposal would be 
suitably located. - The effect of the proposal on the character and appearance, 
including the setting of the Chichester Harbour Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB). The site currently forms previously developed land. However, …….The site 
lies at some distance away from Bosham/Broadbridge, and from Fishbourne. 
Accordingly, it is likely that future occupiers of the development would have to travel 
further afield to access most of the local services and facilities required for day-to- day 
living. …….having regard to the site's location ………..future residents would rely on 
the private car for the majority of trips, which is the least sustainable mode of 
transport. The proposal would not be suitably located, having regard to national and 
local planning policies. The relatively scattered pattern of development and irregular 
gaps between properties provide long-range views between the nationally protected 
landscapes of the Chichester Harbour AONB to the southern side of Main Road, and 
the South Downs National Park (NP) to the north. These attractive landscapes give 
the site and its immediate surroundings a pleasant rural and open feel. The proposed 
dwelling would consolidate development along this frontage, and lead to the loss of an 
important visual gap between The Trees and October Cottage, which would thus 
erode the contribution made by the site to the rural character and appearance of the 
area. The harm from this incursion would be exacerbated by the extensive area of 
hardstanding. … The development would unduly stand out as an urbanising feature, 
which would appear strongly out of kilter with the more rural character of its 
surroundings. Additional planting may softening the visual impact this would not 
outweigh the harm…. The appeal site lies within proximity to the Chichester and 
Langstone Harbours Special Protection Areas (SPAs). Residential development is 
thought to have a likely significant effect on the integrity of the SPA. Notably by reason 
of additional recreational pressures. Furthermore, concerns regarding the increase in 
nitrates levels which have been found in the water environment of the protected sites. 
This issue is thought to be directly connected to the increase in wastewater associated 
with development involving overnight accommodation. As I am dismissing this appeal 
on other substantive grounds, these are not matters which need to be addressed 
further here. …… the appeal scheme would conflict with the Council's Development 
Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy and the proposed dwelling would not be 
constructed in an accessible and sustainable location. Furthermore, the appeal 
scheme would have a harmful effect on the character and appearance of the area, 
including the setting of the Chichester Harbour AONB. Even if I was to consider that 
the Council has no 5-year housing supply, it is my view that the adverse impacts 
caused by the development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole…” 

 

  

Page 105

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QINRREERHRT00


 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/01256/FUL 

Plaistow And Ifold Parish 
Case Officer: Sascha 
Haigh 

Written Representation 

Land North Of Winkins Wood Farm 
Shillinglee Road Plaistow West Sussex 

 
Demolition of barn and construction of barn style dwelling 
as an alternative to Class Q Prior Approval 
(20/00777/PA3Q). 

Appeal Decision: APPLICATION WITHDRAWN 

“…I have been instructed to withdraw the above appeal. …” 

 

 20/02987/OUT 

Southbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Andrew 
Robbins 

Four Acre Nursery Cooks Lane Southbourne PO10 8LQ 

Public Inquiry 
24-May-2022 
St Johns Church Hall 

Outline application for 40 dwellings with all matters 
reserved apart from access, layout and scale with 
associated new access roads, parking and turning areas, 
erection of a wastewater pumping station, the provision of 
surface water drainage features, amendment to the existing 
site access and works to Cooks Lane including the 
provision of a new footway on the northern side. 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL WITHDRAWN 

Withdrawn 

 

Page 106

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QS0OXJERH6S00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QK017GERIUE00


3. IN PROGRESS 
 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

* 20/02899/FUL 

Birdham Parish Houseboat Water Gypsy Chichester 

Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Marina Birdham Chichester West Sussex PO20 7EJ 

Written Representation Installation of a replacement houseboat at Berth No. 16 of 

Chichester Canal. 

 

 20/03034/OUT 

Birdham Parish 

Case Officer: Jane Thatcher 

Informal Hearings 

Land And Buildings On The South Side Of Church 
Lane Birdham West Sussex 

Erection of 25 no. dwellings comprising 17 open market 
and 8 affordable units with access, landscaping, open 
space and associated works (all matters reserved except 
for access and layout) 

 

 21/00833/FUL 

Birdham Parish 
Case Officer: Andy 

Robbins 

Written Representation 

Chichester Marina Birdham Chichester West Sussex 
PO20 7EJ 

Demolition of three workshops/sheds for the 
comprehensive redevelopment of the South-West area of 
the marina comprising four purpose built buildings 
including marine related workshops, offices, storage, 
reprovision and extension of the retail (chandlery) and a 
cafe/restaurant together with an additional 23 car parking 
spaces, boat parking and storage and appropriate 
landscaping - Variation of Condition 3 of planning 
permission BI/12/00475/FUL - Class use variation on 
buildings A to D allowing greater flexibility in the use of the 
existing business units, to enable retention and creation of 
employment opportunities. 

 

 17/00361/CONMHC 

Birdham Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Plot 13Land North West Of Premier Business Park 
Birdham Road Appledram West Sussex 

Informal Hearings  
 

Without planning permission, change of use of the Land to 
the storage of a caravan and a diesel fuel oil tank. 

 

Page 107

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QJML3KERIIM00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QKANEYERIZ200
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QQ5SFSERFOR00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 17/00356/CONMHC 

Birdham Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Informal Hearings 
21-Jun-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Plot 12Land North West Of Premier Business Park 
Birdham Road Appledram West Sussex 

Without planning permission, change of use of the Land to 
the storage of a caravan and a highway maintenance 
vehicle used for white line painting. 

 

 17/00362/CONMHC 

Birdham Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Informal Hearings  
 

Plot 14 Land North West Of Premier Business Park 
Birdham Road Appledram West Sussex 

Without planning permission change of use of the land to 
use as a residential caravan site. 

 

 20/00379/CONCOU 

Birdham Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Informal Hearings 
21-Jun-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Plot 13 Land North West Of Premier Business Park 
Birdham Road Appledram West Sussex 

Appeal against BI/47 

 

 21/02354/ELD 

Bosham Parish 
Case Officer: Alicia Snook 

Written Representation 

Land West Of Walton House Main Road Bosham PO18 
8QB 

 
Use of the land for the storage of boats, boat trailers and 
sundry items. 

 

* 19/02579/FUL 

Chichester Parish 
Case Officer: Martin Mew 

Informal Hearings 
10-May-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Land North West Of Newbridge Farm 
Salthill Road Fishbourne West Sussex 

Change use of land to travellers caravan site consisting of 
4no. pitches each containing 1no. mobile home, 1no. 
touring caravan, 1no. utility dayroom; play area and 
associated works. 

 

Page 108

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QX9AEHERLHD00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PZ3PS1ER0WT00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 20/02009/FUL 

Chichester Parish 
Case Officer: Martin Mew 

Informal Hearings 
10-May-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Land North West Of Newbridge Farm 
Salthill Road Fishbourne West Sussex 

Change use of land to travellers caravan site consisting of 
3 no. pitches each containing 1 no. mobile home, 1 no. 
touring caravan, 1 no. utility dayroom; play area and 
associated works (Resubmission of CC/19/02579/FUL). 

 

 21/02110/FUL 

Chichester Parish 
Case Officer: Martin Mew 

Written Representation 

23 Lavant Road Chichester PO19 5RA 

 
Redevelopment of the site with creation of 5 no. flats and 
parking, landscaping and associated works. (Variation of 
condition 2 for permission CC/20/03226/FUL - 
amendments to rear roof slope to create a concealed roof 
terrace). 

 

 20/00380/CONTRV 

Chichester Parish 
Case Officer: Sue Payne 

Informal Hearings 
10-May-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Land North West Of Newbridge Farm 
Salthill Road Fishbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of hardstandings and siting of 
mobile homes without planning permission. 

 

 20/03320/OUTEIA 

Chidham & Hambrook 
Parish 
Case Officer: Jane Thatcher 

Public Inquiry 

Land East Of Broad Road Broad Road Nutbourne 
West Sussex 

 
Outline planning application (with all matters reserved 
except access) for up to 132 dwellings and provision of 
associated infrastructure. 

 

 20/03378/OUT 

Chidham & Hambrook 
Parish 
Case Officer: Andrew 
Robbins 

Informal Hearings 

Land At Flat Farm Hambrook West Sussex PO18 8FT 

 
 
 
Outline Planning Permission With Some Matters Reserved 
(Access) - Erection of 30 dwellings comprising 21 market 
and 9 affordable homes, access and associated works 
including the provision of swales. 

 

Page 109

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QEW2OLER0PD00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QVVMA2ERKH700
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QLJMQ7ERJZF00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QLUNT8ERK8G00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 19/02493/OUT 

Earnley Parish 
Case Officer: Andrew 
Robbins 

Informal Hearings  
 

Earnley Concourse Clappers Lane Earnley Chichester 
West Sussex PO20 7JN 

 
Outline planning application with all matters except Access 
reserved. Demolition of Earnley Concourse buildings, Elm 
Lodge, Gate Cottage and the Ranch House and 
replacement with residential development of up to 32 no. 
dwellings with associated access and footway works, 
landscaping, open space and drainage infrastructure 

 

 20/03125/OUT 

Earnley Parish 
Case Officer: Jeremy 
Bushell 

Public Inquiry 
14-Jun-2022 
Multiple Venues 

Land South Of Clappers Lane Clappers Lane Earnley 
West Sussex 

 
Outline Application for the erection of up to 100 dwellings 
with associated access, landscaping and public open 
space. All matters reserved other than access. 

 

 21/01920/PA16A 

East Wittering And 
Bracklesham Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Written Representation 

Car Park Northern Crescent East Wittering West Sussex 

 
 
 
Proposed 15.0m Phase 8 monopole C/W wrapround 
cabinet at base and associated ancillary works. 

 

 21/03279/FUL 

East Wittering And 
Bracklesham Parish 
Case Officer: Emma 
Kierans 

Fast Track Appeal 

Land South Of Tranjoeen1 Field Maple 
Bracklesham Lane Bracklesham Bay West Sussex 

 

 
Proposed vehicle crossover (means of access to a highway 
Class B). 

 

 21/03313/DOM 

East Wittering And 
Bracklesham Parish 
Case Officer: Emma 
Kierans 

Fast Track Appeal 

Coromandel Longlands Road East Wittering Chichester 
West SussexPO20 8DD 

 

 
Construction of a single attached garage to the western 
side of the approved 2 bedroom chalet bungalow currently 
being constructed. 

 

Page 110

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PYNFUKERIGK00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QKO3AAERJ9G00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QUW7WGER0PD00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R2COI1ERHKU00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R2GSEPERHOH00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/02553/FUL 

Fishbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Joanne 
Prichard 

Written Representation 

Bethwines Farm Blackboy Lane Fishbourne PO18 8BL 

 

 
Change of use of land to provide facility for 'doggy day 
care', including the provision of 3 no. portakabins and 
perimeter fence. 

 

* 19/00445/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Martin Mew 

Written Representation 

Land South East Of Tower View Nursery West 
Ashling Road Hambrook Funtington West Sussex 

Relocation of 2 no. existing travelling show people plots 
plus provision of hard standing for the storage and 
maintenance of equipment and machinery, 6 no. new 
pitches for gypsies and travellers including retention of hard 
standing. 

 

 19/02939/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Written Representation 

Old Allotment Site Newells Lane West Ashling West 
Sussex 

 

 
Use of land for the stationing of a caravan for residential 
purposes, together with the formation of hardstanding. 

 

 20/00234/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

Land West Of Newells Lane West Ashling PO18 8DD 

 

 
Change of use of land for the stationing of 4 no. static 
caravans and 4 no. touring caravans for a Gypsy Traveller 
site, including parking, hard standing and associated 
infrastructure. 

 

 20/00534/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

Land South Of The Stables Scant Road East Hambrook 
Funtington West Sussex 

 
Change of use of land to use as a residential caravan site 
for 2 no. gypsy families and construction of 2 no. ancillary 
amenity buildings, including the laying of hardstanding, 
erection of boundary wall. 

 

Page 111

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QY6GTDERM6P00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PMRR9XERHI900
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q1MBL9ERKKF00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q4X9MFERMYB00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q6252SER10R00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 20/00950/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Written Representation 

Field West Of Beachlands Nursery Newells Lane West 
Ashling West Sussex 

 
Use of land for the stationing of a caravan for residential 
purposes, together with the formation of hardstanding and 
associated landscaping. 

 

 20/00956/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 
09-Aug-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Field West Of Beachlands Nursery Newells Lane West 
Ashling West Sussex 

 
Change use of land to residential for the stationing of 
caravans for Gypsy Travellers including stable, associated 
infrastructure and development. 

 

 20/03306/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

Land To The West Of Newells Farm Newells Lane West 
Ashling West Sussex 

 
The stationing of caravans for residential purposes together 
with the formation of hardstanding and utility/dayrooms 
ancillary to that use for 3 no. pitches. 

 

 21/01681/FUL 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Rebecca 
Perris 

Written Representation 

Chapel Barn Chapel Lane Funtington PO18 9AW 

 

 
Change of use of land to garden land for the construction of 
tennis court with fence enclosure and soft landscaping. 

 

 20/00109/CONTRV 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Informal Hearings 
09-Aug-2022 
Chichester District Council 
East Pallant House PO19 
1TY 

Field West Of Beachlands Nursery Newells Lane West 
Ashling West Sussex 

Appeal against Enforcement Notice FU/80 

 

Page 112

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q8IKEMERHXG00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q8J166ERHYE00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QLHWOXER10V00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QTRLM1ERIT300
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/00152/CONTRV 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Informal Hearings 

Land West Of Newells Farm Newells Lane 
West Ashling West Sussex 

Appeal against Enforcement Notice FU/87 

 

 20/00288/CONENG 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Informal Hearings 

Land West Of Newells Lane West Ashling Chichester 
West SussexPO18 8DD 

Appeal against Enforcement Notice FU/77 

 

 18/00323/CONHI 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Sue Payne 

Written Representation 

West Stoke Farm House Downs Road West Stoke 
Funtington Chichester West Sussex PO18 9BQ 

Appeal against HH/22 

 

 18/00323/CONHI 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Sue Payne 

Written Representation 

West Stoke Farm House Downs Road West Stoke 
Funtington Chichester West SussexPO18 9BQ 

Appeal against High Hedge Remedial Notice HH/25 

 

 20/00288/CONENG 

Funtington Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Land West Of Newells Lane West Ashling Chichester 
West Sussex PO18 8DD 

Informal Hearings Appeal against Enforcement Notice FU/89 

 

 20/02675/OUTEIA 

Lavant Parish 
Case Officer: Jane Thatcher 

Public Inquiry  
 

Field South Of Raughmere Drive Lavant West Sussex 

 
Outline Application with all matters reserved (except for 
access) for the development of 140 dwellings, public open 
space, landscaping, parking and associated works. 

 

Page 113

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QIJRNKER0PD00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 19/01400/FUL 

Loxwood Parish 
Case Officer: Martin Mew 

Written Representation 

Moores Cottage Loxwood Road Alfold Bars 
Loxwood Billingshurst West Sussex RH14 0QS 

Erection of a detached dwelling following demolition of free- 
standing garage. 

 

 21/00300/FUL 

Loxwood Parish 
Case Officer: Robert Young 

Written Representation 

Land At Loxwood Hall West Guildford Road 
Loxwood Billingshurst West Sussex RH14 0QP 

Erection of a detached dwelling. 

 

 21/00077/FUL 

Plaistow And Ifold Parish 
Case Officer: Sascha Haigh 

Written Representation 

Oxencroft Ifold Bridge LaneIfold Loxwood RH14 0UJ  

New entrance gate at Oxoncroft (retrospective). 

 

 20/00182/CONCOU 

Plaistow And Ifold Parish 
Case Officer: Sue Payne 

Written Representation 

The Coach House Oak Lane Shillinglee Plaistow 
Godalming West Sussex GU8 4SQ 

Appeal against PS/70 

 

* 19/03112/FUL 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

Melita Nursery Chalk Lane Sidlesham Chichester 
West Sussex PO20 7LW 

 
Change of use of land to rear of dwelling for siting of 
residential caravans for 7 no. pitch Gypsy Traveller site 
with associated development (hard standing fencing and 3 
no. utility buildings). 

 

 20/01470/FUL 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

3 Melita Nursery Chalk Lane Sidlesham Chichester 
West Sussex PO20 7LW 

 
Change of use of land to mixed use for siting of residential 
caravans for 3 no. pitch Gypsy Traveller site with 
associated development (hard standing, fencing and utility 
buildings) on land forming part of 3 Melita Nursery -part 
retrospective. 

Page 114

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PRZY6LERLAF00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QNWBUNERLK300
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QMV4XEERKWS00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q2M4RTERLAQ00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QBYGS8ERKEM00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 20/02541/FUL 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Martin Mew 

Written Representation 

Annabel Barns Chalk Lane Sidlesham PO20 7LW 

 
Single storey extension to existing office and storage 
building, including installation of solar photovoltaic panels 
and 3 no. additional parking spaces. 

 

 20/02858/FUL 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Emma 
Kierans 

Written Representation 

Land To The North Of Sunnybrook Highleigh Road 
Sidlesham PO20 7NN 

 
1 no. single storey dwelling with garage and associated 
landscaping. 

 

 21/00622/FUL 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Maria 
Tomlinson 

Written Representation 

Land East Of 4 Cow Lane Sidlesham West Sussex 
PO20 7LN 

 
Detailed application for an alternative 1 no. 3 bed dwelling 
following approval of 19/02349/FUL. 

 

 21/01163/PA3Q 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Maria 
Tomlinson 

Written Representation 

Johnsons Barn Mill Lane Sidlesham Chichester West 
Sussex PO20 7NA 

 
Class Q(b) Application for Prior Approval. Change of Use of 
Agricultural Building from Agriculture to 1 no. Dwelling (C3 
Use Class). 

 

 20/00301/CONMHC 

Sidlesham Parish 
Case Officer: Sue Payne 

Written Representation 

M &Y Fruit Limited 82A Fletchers Lane Sidlesham 
Chichester West Sussex PO20 7QG 

Appeal against Enforcement Notice SI/77. 

 

 20/02077/FUL 

Southbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Maria 
Tomlinson 

Written Representation 

Marina Farm Thorney Road Southbourne Emsworth 
Hampshire PO10 8BZ 

 
Redevelopment of previously developed land. Removal of 
existing 5 no. buildings. Proposed 1 no. dwelling. 

Page 115

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QHVN5MERH4W00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QJDP1CERICB00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QPAU16ERMPP00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QRLWI4ER0YN00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QF9OLNERMVZ00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/00089/FUL 

Southbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Maria 
Tomlinson 

Written Representation 

Thornham Products Thornham Lane Southbourne PO10 
8DD 

 
Retention of existing single mobile home on the land and to 
continued use for applicant's place of residence, following 
expiry of temporary period granted under condition 2 of 
SB/15/01837/FUL. 

 

* 20/02491/OUT 

West Wittering Parish 
Case Officer: Jane Thatcher 

Public Inquiry  
 

Land To The West Of Church Road Church Road 
West Wittering West Sussex 

Outline planning application for residential development of 
70 dwellings (some matters reserved except for access). 

 

* 20/00047/FUL 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Written Representation 

Hopedene Common Road Hambrook Westbourne 
PO18 8UP 

 
Change use of land to a single private gypsy pitch with 
associated hardstanding and day room. 

 

 20/00785/FUL 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

Meadow View Stables Monks Hill Westbourne PO10 8SX 

 

 
Change of use of land for use as extension to Gypsy 
caravan site for the stationing of 6 additional caravans, 
including 3 pitches, each pitch consisting of 1 no. mobile 
home, 1 no. touring caravan and a utility building together 
with laying of hardstanding 

 

 20/03164/FUL 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Calum 
Thomas 

Informal Hearings 

Land East Of Monk Hill Monks Hill Westbourne West 
Sussex 

 

 
Change of use of land to 1 no. private gypsy and traveller 
caravan site consisting of 1 no. mobile home, 1 no. touring 
caravan, 1 no. utility dayroom and associated development. 

 

Page 116

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QMVJL1ERKXS00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QHKX6UERGX600
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q3U5WFERM5B00
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q7DQACERH3100
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QKTK4PER0PD00


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 13/00163/CONWST 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Public Inquiry 
19-May-2022 
Virtual Event 

The Old Army Camp Cemetery Lane Woodmancote 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against WE/40, WE/41 and WE/42 

 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 19/00107/CONMHC 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Steven Pattie 

Written Representation 

Jubilee Wood Bridle Lane Woodmancote Hambrook 
West Sussex 

Appeal against Enforcement Notices WE/50 and WE/51 

 

 21/00169/CONDWE 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Public Inquiry 

Land South West Of Racton View Marlpit Lane Hambrook 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of a dwellinghouse and two annex 
buildings subject to Enforcement Notice WE/57 

 

 21/00169/CONDWE 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Public Inquiry 

Land South West Of Racton View Marlpit Lane Hambrook 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of a dwellinghouse and two annex 
buildings subject to Enforcement Notice WE/59 

 

 21/00169/CONDWE 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Public Inquiry 

Land South West Of Racton View Marlpit Lane Hambrook 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of a dwellinghouse and two annex 
buildings subject to Enforcement Notice WE/52 

 

 21/00169/CONDWE 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Public Inquiry 

Land South West Of Racton View Marlpit Lane Hambrook 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of a dwellinghouse and two annex 
buildings subject to Enforcement Notice WE/53 

 

Page 117

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal


Reference/Procedure Proposal 

 21/00169/CONDWE 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Public Inquiry 

Land South West Of Racton View Marlpit Lane Hambrook 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of a dwellinghouse and two annex 
buildings subject to Enforcement Notice WE/54 

 

 13/00163/CONWST 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Shona Archer 

Public Inquiry 
19-May-2022 
Virtual Event 

The Old Army Camp Cemetery Lane Woodmancote 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against WE/40, WE/41 and WE/42 

 

 21/00169/CONDWE 

Westbourne Parish 
Case Officer: Tara Lang 

Public Inquiry 

Land South West Of Racton View Marlpit Lane Hambrook 
Westbourne West Sussex 

Appeal against creation of a dwellinghouse and two annex 
buildings subject to Enforcement Notice WE/58 

 

 20/02824/OUT 

Westhampnett Parish 
Case Officer: Andrew 
Robbins 

Public Inquiry 
03-Aug-2021 
Virtual Event 

Land Within The Westhampnett / North East Chichester 
Strategic Development Location (north Of Madgwick 
Lane) Chichester 

Outline Application with all matters reserved except for 
access for the residential development comprising up-to 
165 dwellings, including an element of affordable housing; 
together with an access from Madgwick Lane as well as a 
relocated agricultural access, also from Madgwick Lane; 
Green Infrastructure, including the enhancement of the 
Lavant Valley Linear Greenspace; sustainable drainage 
systems; and associated infrastructure. 

 

Page 118

https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal
https://publicaccess.chichester.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QJ88KRERI8000


4. VARIATIONS TO SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
 

None 
 

5. CALLED-IN APPLICATIONS 
 

Reference Proposal Stage 

   

6. COURT AND OTHER MATTERS 
 

Injunctions   

Site Breach Stage 

Birdham Farm 
 

Of 4 Enforcement Notices Injunction granted by the High 
Court.  Most of the plot have 
been vacated apart from 3.  
Matter referred to counsel to 
advise on Contempt of Court 
proceedings for breach of the 
2020 Injunction. 
 

 

Court Hearings   

SIte Matter Stage 

   

 

Prosecutions   

Site Breach Stage 

Land South of the Stables 
 

Of Enforcement Notice Prosecution withdrawn from the 
court list.  This matter had been 
adjourned 4 times at our 
request due to the Defendant 
lodging an appeal to the 
Planning Inspectorate which 
might regularize the use of the 
land.  Indication from the P.I. is 
that it might be several months 
still before the appeal is heard.  
Withdrawal of proceedings was 
in the Interest of Justice as we 
could not justify more requests 
to adjourn.  This matter does 
not have a six months’ time 
limit to list in the court, 
therefore it can always be re-
listed depending on the 
outcome of the appeal. 
 
 

Page 119



Prosecutions - continued   

Site Breach Stage 

Cowdown Farm, Compton Of Enforcement Notice Prosecution withdrawn from the 
court list.  Use of the land 
regularized by the application 
and granting of a Permitted 
Development Certificate. 
 

Oakham Farmhouse, Oving Of Enforcement Notice Awaiting court date as date 
provided by the court is not 
suitable for parties to attend 
 

Crouchlands, Lagoon 3 Of Enforcement Notice Counsel’s opinion requested as 
to the viability of prosecution 
proceedings due to potential 
statutory defence.  
 

7. POLICY MATTERS 

Page 120



South Downs National Park 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Report of the Director Of Planning and Environment Services 

 

Schedule of Planning Appeals, Court and Policy Matters 
 

Date between 13/03/22 and 13/04/22 

 

This report updates Planning Committee members on current appeals and other 
matters. It would be of assistance if specific questions on individual cases could be 
directed to officers in advance of the meeting. 

 

Note for public viewing via Chichester District Council web siteTo read each file in 

detail, 

including the full appeal decision when it is issued, click on the reference number (NB 
certain enforcement cases are not open for public inspection, but you will be able to see the 
key papers via the automatic link to the Planning Inspectorate). 

 
* - Committee level decision. 

1. NEW APPEALS (Lodged) 

None 

2. DECIDED 

 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

SDNP/21/00587/HOUS 

Northchapel Parish Council  

Case Officer: Beverley 
Stubbington 

Householder Appeal 

7 Luffs Meadow Northchapel Petworth West Sussex GU28 
9HN - Retention of home office (retrospective). 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL DISMISSED 

The appeal is dismissed .... The main issue is the effect of the development on the 
character and appearance of the area, with specific regard to the South Downs National 
Park (SDNP) designation. The appeal site lies within a residential cul de sac where the 
extent of set back of buildings from the road, spacing between them and generous front 
gardens garner a pleasant sense of spaciousness to the street scene. This spaciousness is 
part of the landscape character and forms an important part of the relationship between 
the edge of the settlement and the open countryside beyond. Properties in the street are 
predominantly brick, but exist in groups of varying design and character. The development 
sits notably forward of the front building line of the property and extends into the front 
garden area ... The development therefore causes harm to the character and appearance 
of the area and, by association fails to comply with the first statutory purpose of the South 
Downs National Park designation, which is to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10



Appeal Decision: APPEAL DISMISSED - 
continued 

wildlife and cultural heritage of the National Park. As such the development is contrary to 
Policies SD1, SD4, SD5 and SD31 of the South Downs Local Plan 2019 (the LP) insofar 
as they require high quality design which respects the character of the area. It would also 
conflict with the design objectives of the Framework. ... The development would be contrary 
to the development plan as a whole and this conflict is not outweighed by other material 
considerations. That are worthy of sufficient weight, in this instance. The appeal is therefore 
dismissed." 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

SDNP/21/04007/FUL 
Milland Parish Council  
 
Case Officer: Louise Kent 
Written Representation 

Aston House (formerly Dellwood Cottage) Wheatsheaf 
Enclosure Milland Liphook West Sussex GU30 7EH - 
Replacement 1 no. 2 storey dwelling. 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL WITHDRAWN 

Withdrawn, see Idox letter 

Page 122



Reference/Procedure Proposal 

SDNP/20/04533/HOUS 

Fittleworth Parish Council  

Case Officer: Beverley 
Stubbington 

Householder Appeal 

Dunrovin Limbourne Lane Fittleworth RH20 1HR - Erection 
of a two storey rear extension and front porch with 
associated roof works and installation of tile hanging at the 
first floor level. 

Appeal Decision: APPEAL DISMISSED 

" The appeal is dismissed ......The main issue is the effect of the proposed development on 
the supply of small and medium sized homes within the National Park. Due to the appeal 
building having two bedrooms on the first floor and commensurate internal floorspace, it can 
be defined as a small dwelling by the Authority's 2020 technical advice note on extensions 
and replacement dwellings. Both main parties agree that the appeal scheme would be in 
breach of the approximate 30% enlargement cap (unless there are exceptional 
circumstances) set out by Policy SD31 of the South Downs Local Plan 2019 (LP). The 
house would be enlarged to a four bedroom property and would thus exceed the size of 
either a small or medium sized dwelling by definition. It would therefore result in the loss of 
one such unit in the housing stock. .... In addition, and despite the issue of affordability, it 
remains the case that the Authority have identified a strong need for houses of 2 
bedrooms across the National Park. Overall, I do not find that there are exceptional 
circumstances applicable in this instance, nor indeed sufficiently weighty material 
considerations which would outweigh the harm that the appeal scheme would cause to the 
supply of small houses in the National Park for which there is a strong identified need over 
the plan period. As such the proposals would conflict with Policy SD31 and SD27 of the LP 
insofar as they seek to protect the limited supply of small and medium sized homes in the 
National Park.  The proposed development would be contrary to the development plan as a 
whole and this conflict is not outweighed by other material considerations in this instance. 
The appeal is therefore dismissed." 

Page 123



3. CURRENT APPEALS 

Reference/Procedure Proposal 

SDNP/20/01635/LDP Kennels Farm Selham Road West Lavington Midhurst West 
West Lavington Parish Sussex GU29 0AU - Proposed use of buildings at Kennels 
Council  Farm as Estate Maintenance yard including a joinery 

Case Officer: Derek Price 
workshop, painters workshop, stores and offices. 

Informal Hearing  

 

SDNP/20/05011/FUL 

Ebernoe Parish Council  

Case Officer: Jenna Shore 

 
Written Representation 

Bittlesfield Ebernoe Road Balls Cross Ebernoe GU28 9JU - 
Demolition of 1 no. existing dwelling, garage and 
outbuildings, replaced with 1no. detached dwelling and 1no. 
detached garage/storage including access, driveway, 
parking and amenity space. 

 

SDNP/20/04086/HOUS 

Bury Parish Council 

Case Officer: Jenna Shore  
 
Written Representation 

Cokes Barn West Burton Road West Burton RH20 1HD - 
Annex extension including three bay garage, cycle store and 
bin store 

 

SDNP/21/04110/LDE 

Lynchmere Parish Council 

Case Officer: Louise Kent 
 

Written Representation 

1 Stone Pit Cottages Marley Combe Road Camelsdale 
Linchmere GU27 3SP - Existing lawful development - rear 
garden cabin. 

 

SDNP/21/01499/FUL 

Linch Parish Council 

 

Case Officer: Charlotte 
Cranmer 

Written Representation 

Woodmansgreen Farm Linch Road Woodmansgreen Linch 
GU30 7NF - The erection of a replacement storage barn. 

 

SDNP/20/04087/LIS 
Bury Parish Council  
 
Case Officer: Jenna Shore 
 
Written Representation 

Cokes Barn West Burton Road West Burton RH20 1HD - 
Annex extension including three bay garage, cycle store and 
bin store 

 

Page 124



Reference/Procedure Proposal 

SDNP/21/00910/FUL 
Rogate Parish Council  
 
Case Officer: Rebecca Perris  
 
Written Representation 

Land North East of Paddock Lodge London Road Hill Brow 
Rogate West Sussex - 1 no. dwelling with associated work 
and extension of driveway. 

 

SDNP/21/03427/HOUS 

Trotton With Chithurst Parish 
Council  

 
Case Officer: Louise Kent 

 
Householder Appeal 

Mottistone Cottage Terwick Hill Rogate GU31 5EJ - 
Erection of a new oak framed garage provided by English 
Heritage Oak. 

 

SDNP/20/02935/CND 

Harting Parish Council  

Case Officer: Derek Price 

Informal Hearing 

Three Cornered Piece East Harting Hollow Road East 
Harting West Sussex GU31 5JJ - Change of use to a mixed 
use of the land comprising the keeping and grazing of 
horses and a gypsy and traveller site for one family. 
(Variation of conditions 1, 2, 3 and 4 of planning permission 
SDNP/16/06318/FUL- To make the permission 
permanent,non personal to increase the number of mobile 
homes by one to change the layout.) 

 

SDNP/21/01877/FUL 

Fittleworth Parish Council  

Case Officer: Beverley 
Stubbington 

Written Representation 

Rew Cottage Hesworth Common Lane Fittleworth RH20 
1EW - Retrospective planning application for the retention 
of the realigned access road together with the replacement 
gates. 

 

SDNP/18/00609/BRECO 

Rogate Parish Council  

Case Officer: Steven Pattie  
 
Written Representation 

Land South of Harting Combe House Sandy Lane Rake 
Rogate West Sussex - Appeal against Enforcement Notice 
RG/37 

 

SDNP/19/00386/COU 

Fittleworth Parish Council  

Case Officer: Sue Payne 
 

Written Representation 

Douglaslake Farm Little Bognor Road Fittleworth 
Pulborough West Sussex RH20 1JS - Appeal against FT/11 

 

Page 125



4. VARIATIONS TO SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 

5. CALLED-IN APPLICATIONS 

Reference Proposal Stage 

   

6. COURT AND OTHER MATTERS 

Injunctions   

Site Breach Stage 

   

 

Court Hearings   

Site Matter Stage 

   

 

Prosecutions   

Site Breach Stage 

   

 
7. POLICY MATTERS 

Page 126



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
(Wednesday 4th May 2022) 

SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING CONTRAVENTIONS 
 

 
1. This report provides an update on the position of contraventions included in the 
previous schedule and includes cases that have since been authorised.   
 
2.  Statistics as at 31st March 2021 

Case Numbers: CDC SDNP Total 

On hand as at last report: 
 

262 145 407 

Cases received since last report: 
 

76 34 110 

Cases closed since last report: 
 

82 51 133 

Current number of cases on hand: 
 

256 128 384 

Number of “On hand” cases awaiting 
compliance with an EN or the 
outcome of an appeal/application 

89 34 123 

 
CDC and SDNP 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 11



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

CDC 
 

 
 
SDNP 
 

 
 
3. Performance Indicators are for CDC area only as this information is not available for 

cases within the South Downs National Park: 
 
a.   Time taken to initial visit from date of complaint: 

High with 2 days (21 Cases)     100% 
Medium within 10 days (78 Cases)    100% 
Low within 20 days (219 Cases)     100% 

Page 128



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 
b.   Time taken to notify complainants of action decided from date of complaint: 

High within 9 days (22 Cases)     100% 
Medium within 20 days (82 Cases)    100% 
Low within 35 days (229 Cases)     100% 

  
4. Notices Served.  

Notices Served: 
Jan-Mar 2021 Total in FY 2021/22 

CDC SDNP CDC SDNP 

Enforcement Notices 3  20 3 

Breach of Condition Notices   1 2 

Stop Notices   6  

Temporary Stop Notices 2  6 4 

Section 215 Notices   1  

Section 225A Notices     

High Hedge Remedial Notices   2  

Tree Replacement Notice   1  

Total      5  37 9 

 
If Members have any specific questions on individual cases, these should be directed to 
the contact officer: 
 
Shona Archer, Enforcement Manager (01243 534547) 

Page 129



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

OUTSTANDING CONTRAVENTIONS – SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
BURY/SDNP/ 
17/00096/ 
SEC215 
(Sue Payne) 
 

Sydenham Cottage 
West Burton Road 
West Burton 
Pulborough 

Untidy land 19.03.18 S215 Notice S215/29/BY/24 issued. No compliance achieved 
by 30.07.18 as required 
18.09.19 – Crawley Magistrates awarded costs against the 
owner who did not attend. The total fine is £660; the victim’s 
surcharge is £66 and the costs of £1769.39.  The courts 
imposed a Collection Order 
28.10.19 – site visit – non-compliance 
03.04.20 – witness statement to Legal Team regarding a 
prosecution for non-compliance 
23.06.20 – Property is considered to be a Building at Risk.  
16.07.20 – SDNPA agreed that CDC Historic Building Advisor 
[HBA] assess the property; repairs notice is pending 
19.10.20 –confirmation of ownership and occupancy sought.   
20.01.21 –SDNPA and Legal advised sending a further letter 
to Owner requesting contact is made to avoid issue of S48 
Repairs Notice  
22.04.21 – Matter sits with SDNPA and HBA to consider what 
action should be taken to safeguard the building  
27.09.21 – The matter remains with SDNPA and HBA with 
regard to action to safeguard the LB now at risk 
07.01.22 – The SDNPA has advised the poor condition of the 
building is monitored.  SDNPA visit in Spring 2022 to assess 
further deterioration 
04.04.22 – a site visit was undertaken on 17th February 2022. 
The fabric of the building appears to have deteriorated further. 
On the 18th February 2022, the SDNPA were appraised of the 
position and CDC Conservation and Design have been asked 
to provide an assessment in to the condition of the listed 
building. No response has been received.  
 

 

P
age 130



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
COMP/SDNP/ 
15/00209/ 
COU 
(Shona Archer) 

Cowdown Farm 
Cowdown Lane 
Compton 

Without planning 
permission, the 
construction of a gable 
end wall in the west 
elevation of the building 
 

04.07.18 EN CP/9 issued 
03.01.19 - Appeal dismissed with variation 
New compliance date 03.04.20 
19.04.21 – No compliance, internal building remains – 
prosecution proceedings to commence. 
10.06.21 – prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
29.09.21 – development remains in situ  
22.10.21 – Prosecution documents agreed with legal 
10.01.22 – Court date Magistrates’ Court Crawley – 15.00hrs 
14.01.22 – court date adjourned 

30.03.22 – application SDNP/22/01150/APNB now approved 
for extension to barn which incorporates works the subject of 
this breach. Development of the approved scheme has now 
commenced.  
13/04/22 – Remove from next list 
 

COMP/SDNP/ 
21/00367/COU 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land East of 
Noredown Way 
West Marden 

Operational 
development and 
engineering operations 
including excavation, 
hard standing and 
access, used of 
diggers, dumper truck 
and plant 
 

05.07.21 TSN/82 issued 
The notice ceases to have effect on 02.08.21 
13/04/22 – since August 2021, works on site have advanced 
and so the expediency of issuing an enforcement notice will 
now be considered.  

 

P
age 131



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
FIT/SDNP/17/ 
00755/COU 
(Tara Lang) 

Lithersgate 
Common 
Bedham Lane 
Fittleworth 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use of the Land to a 
BMX cycle track 
 

28.11.18 EN FT/10 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
23.03.20 – Appeal dismissed with variation to compliance 
period in step (ii)  to removing the bunds in 12 months 
New compliance date 23.03.21 
22.12.20 – Owner confirmed that use had ceased. Works 
delayed due to Covid   
22.04.21 – Owner working towards compliance  
19.07.21 – Work is being undertaken to comply with the EN.  
30.09.21 – Works of compliance are ongoing but progress is 
slow as the track is being removed by hand from the 
woodland 
13/04/22 – Works of compliance are taking place 
 

FIT/SDNP/19/ 
00386/COU 
(Sue Payne) 

Douglaslake Farm 
Little Bognor Road 
Fittleworth  

Unauthorised use of 
agricultural buildings for 
a toilet hire company 
and a marquee 
company 
 

28.06.21 EN FT/11 issued 
Awaiting decision of appeal – Written Representation 

FUNT/SDNP/ 
21/00490/ 
OPDEV 
(Shona Archer) 

Bermuda 
Southbrook Road 
Funtington 

Without planning 
permission, 
construction of a timber 
building and the laying 
and formation of a 
hardstanding 
 

29.09.21 EN FU/91 issued 
Compliance date 10.02.22 
Planning application SDNP/22/00670/FUL received for the 
timber building – pending consideration 

 

P
age 132



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
HART/SDNP/ 
18/00587/TPO 
(Tara Lang) 

Three Cornered 
Piece 
Hollow Road 
East Harting 
 

Breach of condition – 
occupation 

19.06.19 BCN HT/28 issued 
Compliance due 19.09.19 
15.10.19 - BCN considered not to have been complied with. 
24.10.19 –No evidence to demonstrate non-compliance with 
the notice 
18.06.20 – site visit revealed that the authorised persons do 
not live on site. Prosecution instructions to be prepared 
23.10.20 – Prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
20.01.21 –Legal Services reviewing case 
21.04.21 – Further information required - It is noted that the 
temporary pp has expired 
26.06.21 – Prosecution withdrawn due to lack of evidence 
20.07.21 – case review held 
24.09.21 – Updated witness statements sent to legal for 
consideration 
22.10.21 – comments from legal under review by Enf 
13/04/22 – in light of pending appeal regarding the use of the 
land and its occupation consideration of the need for further 
enforcement action is held in abeyance 
 

HART/SDNP/ 
20/00600/ 
OPDEV 
(Tara Lang) 

Three Cornered 
Piece 
Hollow Road 
East Harting 
 

Without planning 
permission, the erection 
of brick pillars and 
gates 

01.07.19 EN HT/29 issued.  Compliance date 12.11.19 
Works of compliance have not been carried out.  
29.10.20 – Prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
20.01.21 –Legal Services reviewing case 
21.04.21 –Further information required to progress 
prosecution 
28.04.21 – Further information sent to legal 
19.07.21 – waiting for a court date for initial hearing 
30.09.21 – Continue to await a court date for initial hearing 
13/04/22 – Enforcement Notice HT/29 to be withdrawn 
following advice from legal. Further EN to be served 

P
age 133



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
HART/SDNP/ 
18/00587/TPO 
(Tara Lang) 

Three Cornered 
Piece 
Hollow Road 
East Harting 
 

Breach of condition – of 
appeal decision 
conditions 2 

08.06.21 
 

BCN HT/30 issued 
Compliance date 08.09.21 
30.09.21 - prosecution proceedings in abeyance pending the 
outcome of the appeal against refusal of SDNP/20/02935/CND. 
 

LURG/SDNP/ 
20/00539/ 
OPDEV 
(Mike Coates-
Evans) 
 

Land North of Blind 
Lane  
Lurgashall 

Without planning 
permission, the erection 
of an agricultural 
building 

27.01.21 EN LG/17 issued 
Appeal dismissed against SDNP/20/03482/APNB 
New compliance date 14.03.22 
13.04.22 – application SDNP/22/00098/FUL pending 
consideration 
 
 

LURG/SDNP/ 
20/00539/ 
OPDEV 
(Mike Coates-
Evans) 
 

Land North of Blind 
Lane  
Lurgashall 

Building works in the 
construction of an 
agricultural building 

27.01.21 SN LG/18 issued 
Takes effect on 31.01.21 

ROG/SDNP/ 
18/00609/ 
BRECON 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land South of 
Harting Combe 
House 
Sandy Lane 
Rake 
Rogate 
 

Without planning 
permission, stationing 
of a shepherds and use 
of a wooden building 
for the purposes of 
human habitation 

05.08.21 EN RG/37 issued 

Awaiting appeal decision – Written Representation 

P
age 134



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
TILL/SDNP/18/ 
00733/COU 
(Mike Coates-
Evans) 

Land South East of 
Beggars Corner 
Halfway Bridge 
Lodsworth 
 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of a timber field shelter 

08.01.20 EN LD/16 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written representations 
02.09.20 – Appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 02.12.20 
02.04.21 - application for smaller building by the end of April 
2021 
02.07.21 – application submitted. 
06.10.21 – application SDNP/21/03527/FUL refused.   
22.10.21 - Need for further action to be considered 
18.01.22 – letter before action sent and prosecution papers to 
be commenced 
13.04.22 – site visit to be undertaken to update records before 
proceeding 
 

P
age 135



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 
Chichester District Cases: 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 

BI/15/00194/ 
CONTRV 
(Shona Archer) 

Land North West of 
Birdham Farm, 
Birdham Road, 
Chichester 

Without planning 
permission the 
stationing of a mobile 
home for the purposes 
of human habitation 

06.05.15 EN BI/23 and BI/24 issued 
The Appeals were dismissed and the EN’s upheld. 
Compliance date: 2 August 2018 
Injunction granted by the High Court  
08.01.21 – As a result of COVID the injunction order was 
amended administratively by the Justice to read - 1) that the 
Defendants shall cease the use of the site for residential 
purposes and remove all caravans, mobile homes, portable 
toilets etc. by 31 March 2021. 
2) The Defendants shall remove all hard-core, tracks, fences, 
stables, cabling etc. and restore the land to its agricultural use 
by 30 April 2021. 
A failure of the Defendants legal representation and High 
Court handling of their attempt to extend the time they could 
stay on the land resulted in no legal alteration of the Court 
Order and so the dates remain as stated above. 
22.09.2021 – a letter was delivered to the remaining families 
to explain this and to request confirmation of their plans to 
vacate the land.  
22.10.21 – two of the occupying families have contacted the 
LPA but remain on the land along with another family. A site 
visit is proposed on 28 Oct to establish current situation 
before considering further action. 
16.12.21 – site visited and photographs taken. Three families 
remain on the land [6 adults and 6 children]  
13.01.22 – statement drafted and discussed with Solicitor.  
13.04.22 – waiting for legal to advise 
 

P
age 136



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
BI/15/00139/ 
CONSH 
(Shona Archer) 

Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
Chichester 
 

Without planning 
permission erection of 
a stable building 

10.08.15 EN BI/29 issued with compliance date of 21.12.15 
Following the outcome of the Inquiry, compliance to remove 
the stables is considered to be 2 August 2018 
As serial BI/15/00194/CONTRV 
 

BI/15/00139/ 
CONSH 
(Shona Archer) 
 

Access track and 
hardstanding -land 
North West of 
Premier Business 
Park, Birdham Rd 
 

Without planning 
permission excavation, 
deposit of hardcore and 
erection of gates and 
fences 
 

21.09.15 EN BI/30 issued 
The Appeal decision on the above matters was published on 
2 August 2017 
The appeals are dismissed and the enforcement notice(s) are 
upheld with corrections and variations 
Compliance date: 2 November 2018 
As serial BI/15/00194/CONTRV 
 

BI/15/00139/ 
CONSH 
(Shona Archer) 

Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of the land to a 
mixed use as a 
residential caravan site, 
for the storage of 
caravans and the 
keeping of horses 
 

03.03.16 EN BI/31 issued 
The Appeal decision on the above matters was published on 
2 August 2017 
The appeals are dismissed and the enforcement notice(s) are 
upheld with corrections and variations 
Compliance date: 2 August 2018 
As serial BI/15/00194/CONTRV 
 

BI/17/00356/ 
CONMHC 
(Shona Archer) 

Plot 12 
Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use of the land to use 
as a residential caravan 
site 

22.11.18 EN BI/44 issued 

Appeal lodged – Hearing 21.06.22 

P
age 137



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
BI/17/00361/ 
CONMHC 
(Shona Archer) 

Plot 13 
Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use of the land to use 
as a residential caravan 
site 

22.11.18 EN BI/41 issued 
Appeal lodged – Hearing 21.06.22 

BI/17/00362/ 
CONMHC 
(Shona Archer) 

Plot 14 
Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use of the land to use 
as a residential caravan 
site 

22.11.18 EN BI/42 issued 
Appeal lodged – Hearing 21.06.22 

BI/17/00357/ 
CONMHC 
(Tara Lang) 

Plot 15 
Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use of the land to a 
mixed use of 
agriculture, a 
residential caravan site 
and animal boarding 
and rescue centre 
 

22.11.18 EN BI/43 issued.  Compliance date 03.07.19 
01.04 20 – Breach remains ongoing  
22.07.20 – prosecution papers compiled 
19.10.20 – Owner stated that steps made to comply 
20.01.21 – some structures removed but stables and MH 
remain on the land 
22.04.21 – Mobile home has been broken up and removed 
16.12.21 – Site visit found that full compliance not yet 
achieved 
13.04.22 – wooden buildings remain on the land 
 

P
age 138



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
BI/18/00240/ 
CONCOU 
(Shona Archer) 

Land east of 
Birdham Farm 
Birdham Road 
Birdham 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of the land to a 
general storage use 
including the storage of 
motor vehicles, parts, 
metal, wood, ladders, 
plastic, trailers and 
windows 
 

23.01.19 EN BI/45 issued 
Compliance date 06.06.19 
17.10.19 – Meeting on site with the landowner. He would like 
to make an application to use the land as storage place  
8.1.20 – no application made but use of land is continuing. 
The owner considers that the LPA wrongly issued the notice  
16.07.20 – aerial photo show some waste remains on site 
22.10.20 – letter to be sent to owner explaining evidence of 
ongoing offence and that the LPA proposes commencing 
prosecution of the offence 
20.01.21 – land use reduced but vehs remain on the land. To 
be progressed as stated above 
17.02.21 – prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
Prosecution papers under review by Legal Services 
21.10.21 – on Legal Services advice, further site visit and 
photo evidence to be provided 
16.12.21 – photographs taken of site.  
13.04.22 - Prosecution statement required as use continues 
 

BI/20/00379/ 
CONCOU 
(Shona Archer) 
 

Plot 13 
Land North West of 
Premier Business 
Park 
Birdham Road 
Chichester 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
erection of a wooden 
barn/stable, a kennel 
and kennel run and a 
close boarded fence/ 
gates and concrete and 
tarmac hard standings 
 

13.10.21 EN BI/47 issued 
Appeal lodged – Hearing 21.06.22 

P
age 139



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
CC/15/00064/ 
CONLB 
(Sue Payne) 

13 Parchment 
Street 
Chichester 

Without Listed Building 
Consent the installation 
and fitting of 3 no. upvc 
double glazed windows 

18.10.17 LBEN CC/138 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry on 30.10.18 at City Council 
26.02.19 – Appeal dismissed with variation.  Costs awarded to 
the Council and repayment plan agreed 
Compliance date 26.02.20 
03.04.20 – compliance check to be carried out once Covid 19 
restrictions are lifted 
16.07.20 – compliance check to be carried out post COVID. 
19.10.20 – owner said works would be undertaken but then 
refused to due to the cost. Owner made aware of potential 
prosecution 
January 2021 - The owner was advised that their proposed 
amended design was inappropriate; compliance with the EN 
likely to be affected by COVID 
April 2021 – No communication from owner. Personal financial 
circumstances unlikely to have changed.  
July 2021 – No immediate risk to the LB but matter to be 
reviewed to bring it to a conclusion 
September 2021 – Works to comply with the notice have yet to 
be undertaken.  
22.10.21 – SV to be undertaken to inform decision on legal 
proceedings if compliance not achieved 
07.01.22 – Letter sent to the owner in November 2021 
requesting an update and convenient times for a site visit. No 
response received to date. Follow up letter to be sent prior to 
seeking advice from legal regarding further prosecution. 
04.04.22 – No response has been received therefore seeking 
advice from legal regarding further prosecution 

P
age 140



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
CC/18/00181/ 
CONLB 
(Sue Payne) 

24 Washington 
Street 
Chichester 

Without planning 
permission the 
installation of upvc 
double glazed windows 
to the upper and first 
floor rear elevation 
 

11.12.19 LBEN CC/149 issued 
Compliance date 22.07.20 
09.10.20 – owner confirmed works had not been undertaken 
as COVID-19 resulted in loss of employment and funds to 
undertake works 
22.10.21 -  No immediate threat to the LB but case to be 
reviewed to bring this matter to a conclusion and a letter 
before action to be sent to the owner 
07.01.21 – the works remain outstanding owing to financial 
burden to undertake the work 
04.04.22 – the works remain outstanding with the owner 
stating that the property is likely to be sold owing to the 
financial burden. Advised that the requirements to comply with 
the notice would revert to the new owners.  
 

CC/21/00033/ 
CONENF 
(Sue Payne) 

Land North West 
Of Newbridge 
Farm 
Salthill Road 
Fishbourne 
Chichester 
 

excavation/digging, 
hardsurfaces and 
hardcore and 
introduction of 
caravans 

18.12.20 TSN/73 notice issued 
Notice ceases to be in effect on 15.01.21  
18.01.21 – Prosecution papers for non-compliance with the 
TSN forwarded to Legal Services 
22.04.2021 – Statement to be amended 
21.07.21 – prosecution papers under review by Legal 
Services 
27.09.21 – additional information provided to Legal Services 
following review of prosecution papers 
22.10.21 – prosecution documents to be returned to legal 
following amendment by enf officers. 
14.01.22 – prosecution documents with legal for progressing 
04.04.22 – Additional prosecution papers drafted with regard 
to failure to comply with the TSN and SN with legal for 
processing. 
 

P
age 141



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

P
age 142



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
CC/20/00380/ 
CONTRV 
(Sue Payne) 

Land North West 
Of Newbridge 
Farm 
Salthill Road 
Fishbourne 
Chichester 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the land to use as a 
residential mobile 
home/caravan site 
 

05.01.21 EN CC/151 issued 
Appeal lodged - Hearing 10.05.22 at EPH 
 

CC/21/00033/ 
CONENF 
(Sue Payne) 

Land North West 
Of Newbridge 
Farm 
Salthill Road 
Fishbourne 
Chichester 

Building operations – 
excavation/digging of 
trenches, hard 
surfaces, erection of 
buildings/structures and 
bringing on further 
mobile homes or 
caravans 
 

05.01.21 SN CC/152 issued 
Notice effective as of 09.01.21 
 

CC/20/00040/ 
CONENG 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land North West 
Of Newbridge 
Farm 
Salthill Road 
Fishbourne 

Without planning 
permission a material 
change of use of the 
land to a mixed use 
comprising the 
stationing of a mobile 
home for the purpose 
of human habitation, 
the stationing of a items 
and operation of a 
waste collection 
business 
 

 15.02.22 – authorised given to issue CC/154 
11.04.22 – Awaiting EN from Legal Services 

P
age 143



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
EWB/22/00068/ 
CONTRV 
(Shona Archer) 

Land South Of 
Tranjoeen 
Bracklesham Lane 
Bracklesham Bay 
 

Engineering operations, 
services, hardstanding 
and stationing of a 
caravan 

24.03.22 TSN/87 issued 
The notice ceases to be in effect 14.04.22 
13.04.22 – the land has become occupied. Evidence is being 
gathered 

FU/18/00323/ 
CONHI 
(Sue Payne) 
 

Land south of  
West Stoke Farm 
West Stoke 
Funtington 
 

High Hedge Remedial 
Notice  

22.11.21 HHRN HH/25 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representation 

FU/17/00310/ 
CONCOU 
(Tara Lang) 

Cutmill Depot 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of land to use as a 
residential caravan site 
 

27.09.18 EN FU/67 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
21.07.20 – notice upheld, compliance varied to 8 months 
New compliance date 21.03.21 
19.07.21 – Letter sent to landowner to arrange a site visit to 
check compliance with enforcement notice 
06.09.21 – Site visit showed compliance not achieved  
30.09.21 - Prosecution held in abeyance as owners intend to 
appeal the refusal of 21/01003/ELD 
13.01.22 - No appeal lodged  
13.04.22 – Planning applications made for a means of 
enclosure, stationing of containers and the wintering of 
caravans. Also, an ELD for a residential unit of 
accommodation. The applications are currently invalid.  
 

P
age 144



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
FU/20/00299/ 
CONENF 
(Tara Lang) 

Land south of The 
Stables 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 

Without planning 
permission, the 
erection of stone pillars 
and walls 
 

27.06.19 EN FU/70 issued 
Compliance date 07.11.19 
24.02.20 Prosecution matrix and witness statement sent to 
legal for prosecution 
17.06.20 – letter sent to owner by legal. If no compliance by 
03.08.20 legal will apply to court for a date for prosecution. 
15.10.20 – Updated witness statement sent to legal for 
consideration 
19.11.20 – Listed for court at 10.00hrs on 29.01.21 at 
Brighton Magistrates Court 
25.01.21 - The above case has been adjourned to 30/07/2021 
at Brighton Magistrates Court at 11:00 
19.07.21 –Case has been adjourned pending appeal 
01.04.22 - 10:00 at Brighton Magistrates’ Court.  Case has 
been adjourned pending outcome of appeal 
04.04.22 – removed from court listing until the outcome of 
appeal against refusal of planning permission: 20/00534/FUL 
 

FU/17/00011/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land south of 
Scant Road East 
Hambrook 
West Ashling 
 

Without planning 
permission the 
construction of two 
wooden chalet 
buildings on raised 
breeze block 
foundations 
 

12.09.19 EN FU/71 issued 
Appeal lodged – Hearing – virtual event 25/01/21 
29.01.21 - Appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 29.04.21 
19.07.21 – compliance SV scheduled for 22.07.21 
18.10.2021 – compliance SV required 
18.01.2022 – compliance SV required 
21.02.2022 – SV undertaken. EN has not been complied with. 
Prosecution to be prepared for legal.  
 

P
age 145



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
FU/17/00011/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land south of 
Scant Road East 
Hambrook 
West Ashling 
 

Cease all the activity 
involved in the 
construction of the 
wooden chalet 
buildings 
 

12.09.19 SN FU/72 issued 
Takes effect on 17.09.19  

FU/19/00231/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 
 

3 West Ashling 
Road 
Hambrook 
Funtington 
 

Breach of condition – 
number of caravans 
exceeding permission 

26.09.19 BCN FU/73 issued.  Compliance date 26.12.19 
Planning application (19/02662/FUL) for additional caravans 
refused 
A/W submission of a further planning application 
23.07.20 – instructions sent to legal for prosecution for non-
compliance with BCN 
15.10.20 – Further witness statement for the prosecution 
being completed on request from Legal 
19.11.20 – Listed for court at 10.00hrs  29.01.21 at Brighton 
Magistrates Court 
25.01.21 - The above case has been adjourned to 30/07/2021 
at Brighton Magistrates Court at 11:00 
30.07.21 – Defendant found guilty in absence - £2500 fine, 
£1161.95 costs and £181 victim surcharge 
18.10.2021 – SV required to check compliance with the BCN 
17.01.2022 – SV required to gather evidence for a further  
prosecution for non compliance with BCN 
21.02.2022 – SV undertaken to check compliance with BCN. 
Prosecution to be prepared for legal.  

 

P
age 146



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
FU/18/00368/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land At 6 
Oaklands 
West Ashling Road 
Hambrook 
Funtington 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the land to a use for 
the stationing of a 
touring caravan, two 
mobile homes and a 
motor home for the 
purposes of human 
habitation  
 

17.07.20 EN FU/76 issued 
Compliance date 28.11.20 
20.01.20 - site visit required to check on compliance 
22.04.21 – Enforcement Notice has been partially complied 
with. Officers are working with owner to achieve discharge of 
drainage condition on FU/17/01191/FUL. Once this has been 
discharged, the enforcement case can be closed 
19.07.2021 – awaiting discharge of drainage condition 
18.10.2021 – awaiting discharge of drainage condition. Agent 
has been chased for this 
24.02.22 – Application 21/03330/DOC permitted 
13.04.2022 – a/w implementation of drainage tank to comply 
with information submitted to discharge the condition. 
 

FU/20/00288/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 

Land West of 
Newells lane 
West Ashling 

Without planning 
permission, the 
carrying out of 
engineering operations 
to remove top soil and 
excavate the ground, 
followed by the 
importation of hard-
core and gravel to form 
areas of hardstanding 
and an access track 
 

28.10.20 EN FU/77 notice issue 
Appeal lodged – Informal Hearing date tbc 

P
age 147



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
FU/19/00294/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land East of Tower 
View Nursery 
West Ashling Road 
Hambrook 
 

Breach of conditions – 
excess number of 
caravans 

19.01.21 BCN FU/78 issued 
Compliance date 18.07.21 
19.07.21 – site visit required to check on compliance with the 
BCN 
18.10.2021 – letter sent to owner to request site visit to check 
compliance 
17.01.2022 -prosecution papers to be drawn up for 
consideration by legal 
15.02.22 – prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
 

FU/21/00087/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 
 

3 West Ashling 
Road, Hambrook, 
Funtington, West 
Sussex 
 

Breach of conditions – 
occupation category 

08.02.21 BCN FU/79 issued 
Compliance date 08.08.21 
18.10.2021 evidence of occupation of mobile home required 
to undertake prosecution proceedings 
17.01.2022 – difficulty in obtaining evidence required for 
prosecution proceedings 
 

FU/20/00109/ 
CONTRV 
(Shona Archer) 

Field west of 
Beachlands 
Nursery, 
Newells Lane 
Funtington 

Without planning 
permission the change 
of use of the land to a 
residential mobile 
home/caravan site 
 

17.03.21 EN FU/80 issued 
Appeal lodged – Informal Hearing 9 August 22 

FU/18/00270/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land West of 
Beachlands Nursey 
Newells Lane, 
West Ashling, 
Chichester, West 
Sussex 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the Land to use as a 
residential mobile home 
site 
 

17.03.21 EN FU/81 issued 
Compliance date 24.10.21 
04.04.2022 – linked appeal in progress with refusal of 
planning application: 20/00950/FUL 

P
age 148



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
FU/18/00270/ 
CONBC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land West of 
Beachlands Nursey 
Newells Lane, 
West Ashling, 
Chichester, West 
Sussex 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
formation of a 
hardstanding and the 
installation of a metal 
container building 

17.03.21 EN FU/82 issued 
Compliance date 24.10.21 
04.04.22 – linked appeal in progress with refusal of planning 
application: 20/00950/FUL 

FU/21/00010/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 

Plot 1 The Old 
Allotment 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 
 

Without planning 
permission the change 
of use of land to use for 
the parking of motor 
vehicles, storage and 
disposal of items and 
waste 
 

19.08.21 EN FU/83 issued 
Compliance date 30.12.21 
17.01.2022 – sv required to check compliance.  
21.02.220 – All rubbish/waste items have been removed from 
the land. Prosecution papers to be prepared for the removal 
of the hard standing.  

FU/21/00010/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 

Plot 1 The Old 
Allotment 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 
 

The parking of motor 
vehicles, importation, 
storage and disposal of 
household items and 
waste, creation of 
hardstandings 
 

19.08.21 SN FU/84 issued 
This notice takes effect 23.08.21 when all activity specified 
shall cease. 

FU/21/00152/ 
CONTRV 
(Tara Lang) 

 

Land to west of 
Newells Farm 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the land to use as a 
residential mobile 
home/caravan site 
 

27.09.21 EN FU/87 issued 
Appeal lodged – Informal Hearing date tbc 

P
age 149



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 
SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 

FU/21/00152/ 
CONTRV 
(Tara Lang) 

 

Land to west of 
Newells Farm 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 

Cease introduction and 
stationing of additional 
mobile homes/caravans 
and hardcore, ground 
works and tarmac 
 

27.09.21 SN FU/88 issued 
This notice takes effect 01.10.21 when all activity specified 
shall cease 

FU/20/00288/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 

Land west of 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the land to use as a 
residential mobile 
home/caravan site 
 

08.09.21 EN FU/89 issued 
Appeal lodged – Informal Hearing date tbc 

FU/20/00288/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 

Land west of 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 
 

The introduction and 
stationing of additional 
mobile homes/carvans 
and the carrying out of 
ground works 
 

08.09.21 SN FU/90 issued 
This notice takes effect 12.09.21 when all activity specified 
shall cease. 

FU/21/00295/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 
 

Plots 3 
Old Allotment Site 
Newells Lane 
West Ashling 
 

The carrying out of 
ground works and 
engineering operations 
– the ere3ction of 
fences and gates more 
than 2m in height and 
use of plant and 
machinery on the land 
 

28.01.22 TSN/86 issued 
The notice ceases to be in effect on 25.02.22 
Remove from next list 

P
age 150



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
HN/20/00400/ 
CONCOU 
(Sue Payne) 
 

Land east of 
Farmfield 
Nurseries 
Selsey Road 
Hunston 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the land to a general 
storage use. 

11.03.21 EN HN/28 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representation 
11.03.22 – appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 11.09.22 

HN/20/00400/ 
CONCOU 
(Sue Payne) 
 

Land east of 
Farmfield 
Nurseries 
Selsey Road 
Hunston 
 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of two container 
buildings 
 

11.03.21 EN HN/30 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representation 
11.03.22 – appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 11.06.22 

LX/20/00069/ 
CONHI 
(Sue Payne) 
 

Garton House 
High Street 
Loxwood 

High Hedge 21.09.20 HHRN HH/23 issued 
Compliance date step one 20.04.21 
Compliance date step two 20.04.22 
April 2021 – step one compliance completed 
04.04.22 - The reduction of the hedge to 2.8 metres needs to 
be completed by end of April 2022. 
 

NM/16/00325/ 
CONCOM 
(Shona Archer) 

Land at 6 Oakdene 
Gardens 
North Mundham 
Chichester 
 

Without planning 
permission storage of 
metal containers and 
other items 

10.01.19 EN NM/28 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
03.08.20 – Appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 03.11.20 
Date for compliance varied to 30.04.21 
20.07.21 – Contact owner regarding compliance 
22.10.21 – SV required to update 
13.01.22 – access to site not obtained. Neighbour confirmed 
that the site has not been cleared.  
13.04.22 - Letter to be sent to the tenanted property to 
request access to garden area for the purpose of taking 
photographs 

P
age 151



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

P
age 152



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
O/15/00202/ 
CONAGR 
(Tara Lang) 

Oakham Farm 
Church Lane 
Oving 
 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use to a mixed use for 
agriculture and the 
storage of caravans, 
motorhomes/ 
caravanettes, motor 
vehicles and shipping 
containers 

03.02.17 EN O/26 issued 
Appeal dismissed – new compliance date 05.04.18 
20.12.19 – Confirmation received that only a limited number 
of vehicles remain. Application for retention to be submitted 
09.04.20 - planning application submitted  
29.05.20 – application 20/00882/FUL refused 
18.08.20 – site visit carried out. Most of the vehicles and 
caravans have been removed 
03.02.21 – letter before prosecution action sent. 
22.04.21 –a few vehicles left on the site 
19.07.21 – Officers are continuing to work with the landowner 
to achieve full compliance 
18.10.2021 – a/w outcome of planning application: 
21/02041/FUL 
13.04.22 – application is pending determination 
 

O/19/00141/ 
CONHH 
(Emma 
Kierans) 

Oakham 
Farmhouse 
Church Lane 
Oving 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of a fence in excess of 
1 meter in height 
adjacent to a highway 
 

13.02.20 EN O/30 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 

23.10.20 – Appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 23.01.21 
20.04.21 -  compliance check to be carried out 
27.04.21 – site visit showed non-compliance – prosecution 
proceedings to be commenced 
02.07.21 – prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
28.09.21 – awaiting update from legal 
03.11.21 – authorisation given to prosecute 
18.01.22 – awaiting court date 
10.03.22 – court hearing at Crawley – 11.00 am - adjourned 
13.04.22 – Court Hearing date 12.05.22 Crawley at 3:00pm 
 

P
age 153



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
PS/13/00015/ 
CONAGR 
(Shona Archer) 

Crouchland Farm, 
Rickmans Lane, 
Plaistow 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of the land from 
agriculture to a 
commercial biogas 
plant 
 

15.07.15 EN PS/54 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry originally scheduled for  
APP/P3800/15/3137735.  Appeal part allowed/part dismissed 
21.11.17 – Appeal dismissed.  Enforcement Notice upheld, 
04.12.17 – EA confirmed use and importation and processing 
of feedstock had ceased. 
17.10.18 – Planning Committee authorised extension to 
compliance until 21.05.21 
21.6.19 – engagement with site owners ongoing  
24.10.19 – officers in contact with the landowner of Lagoon 3 
to impress upon them the need for compliance and to 
highlight the reducing time scale in which to achieve this. 
30.12.20 – owner confirmed his intentions to sell the site 
20.01.21 – CDC monitoring situation  
23.04.21 – Compliance site visit to be made after 21.05.21 
24.05.21 – site visit identified non-compliance  
28.06.21 – prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 
13.01.22 – owner states intention to apply to EA for special 
licence. Legal obtaining w/c from EA before instructing a 
barrister 
13.04.22 – letter before action sent to owner and instructions 
to barrister drafted 
 

PS/13/00015/ 
CONAGR 
(Shona Archer) 

Crouchland Farm 
Rickmans Lane 
Plaistow 

Without planning 
permission, the 
installation, 
construction, of a 
commercial biogas 
plant 
 

15.07.15 EN PS/55 issued 
As previous serial. 

P
age 154



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
PS/18/00088/ 
CONAGR 
(Shona Archer) 

Crouchland Farm 
Rickmans Lane 
Plaistow 

Without planning 
permission, the 
construction of a slurry 
lagoon, earth bund and 
fencing 
 

01.11.18 EN PS/67 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
10.01.20 – appeal decision varied the notice finding that the 
slurry lagoon and earth bunds were immune from 
enforcement action.  The removal of the fencing was upheld 
and the compliance period amended 
New compliance date 10.05.21 
See PS/13/00015/CONAGR serials 
 

PS/20/00182/ 
CONCOU 
(Sue Payne) 

Manor Copse Farm 
Oak Lane 
Shillinglee 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
erection of a building 

25.08.21 EN PS/70 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representation 

SB/20/00215/ 
CONTRV 
(Tara Lang) 
 

Land South East 
side of 
Priors Leaze Lane  
Hambrook 
 

Without planning 
permission, the laying 
and compaction of hard 
core and tarmac 
chippings over an 
existing (unmade) track 
and to create new 
access tracks and the 
formation of an earth 
bank 
 

20.08.20 EN SB/120 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
03.02.21 – appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 03.08.21 
18.10.2021 – a/w validation and determination of planning 
application: 21/02082/FUL which will require the retention of 
the access track 
04.01.22 – application remains pending determination 
03.02.22 – application refused 
08.02.22 – letter before action sent 
23.02.22 – application 22/00406/FUL received for Change of 
use of land for 2 no. travelling showmen plots 
04.04.22 – application remains pending consideration 
 

P
age 155



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
SB/20/00215/ 
CONTRV 
(Tara Lang) 
 

Land South East 
side of 
Priors Leaze Lane  
Hambrook 
 

The resurfacing of 
existing tracks, 
construction of new 
access tracks and earth 
bank 
 

20.08.20 SN SB/121 issued with EB SB/120 
Takes effect 24.08.20 
 

SB/21/00030/ 
CONHI 
(Sue Payne) 

The Cottage 
Prinsted Lane 
Prinsted 
Emsworth 
 

High Hedge Remedial 
Notice 

11.11.21 HHRN HH/24 issued 
Compliance date 10.03.22 
04.04.22 – overall height of the hedge has been reduced to 
3.5 metres. The reduction to 3 metres could have resulted in 
long term damage to the hedge so further reduction required 
at the end of 2022 to decrease the height to 3 metres. 
 

SI/16/00026/ 
CONMHC 
(Steven Pattie) 

Zsaras Yard 
Highleigh Road 
Sidlesham 

Without planning 
permission the change 
of use of the land for 
the stationing of a 
caravan for the purpose 
of human habitation 
 

06.11.19 EN SI/71 issued 
Appeal lodged –Written Representations 
02.07.20 – appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 02.01.21 
20.01.21 to carry out compliance post COVID 
20.04.2021 – Site visited the breach remains. Letter sent to 
the owner and their agent with regard to prosecution 
proceedings 
20.07.2021 – Further correspondence sent out in reply to the 
planning agent regarding the outstanding breach 
13.04.22 – Consideration to be given to prosecution 
proceedings, SV first to confirm a continued breach and to 
discuss occupation. 
 

P
age 156



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
SI/20/00238/ 
CONCOU 
(Shona Archer) 

Land Adjacent To 
Ham Road 
Keynor Lane, 
Sidlesham 
 

Untidy Land 26.05.21 SI/76 S215 Notice issued 
Compliance date 24.09.21 
12.10.21 – site visit showed some compliance.  Case to be 
reviewed 
13.04.22 – some items remain on the land.  Witness 
Statement to be written 
 

SI/20/00301/ 
CONMHC 
(Sue Payne) 
 

82A Fletchers Lane 
Sidlesham  

Without planning 
permission the material 
change of use of the 
Land to a residential 
caravan site 
 

15.06.21 EN SI/77 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representation 

SI/21/00038/ 
CONMHC 
(Sue Payne) 

Land east of Ivy 
Grange 
Keynor Lane 
Sidlesham 

Without planning 
permission change of 
use of land to the 
stationing of a mobile 
home for human 
habitation 
 

09.08.21 EN SI/78 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representation 
01.03.22 – appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 01.03.23 

P
age 157



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
SY/19/00067/ 
CONHH 
(Sue Payne) 

Wayside 
Chichester Road 
Selsey 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of a wall, railings, 
entrance gate and piers 
 

04.03.20 EN SY/71 issued 
Compliance date 15.07.20 
17.07.20 – notice not complied with.  Letter before action sent 
19.10.20 – some works had been undertaken.  
January 2021 – discussion with the owner to remedy the 
breach however restricted by COVID-19 regulations 
April 2021 –owner agreed to remedy the breach after COVID- 
restrictions lifted 
July 2021 – Owner advised that owing to furlough the works 
would not be completed until September 2021. Requested 
confirmation of such from the contractor 
30.09.21 – Owner has confirmed no works will be undertaken. 
Prosecution papers to be drafted  
07.02.21 – Prosecution papers drafted  
04.04.22 – An assessment is to be undertaken with regard to 
the harm identified and the expediency of pursuing 
prosecution for non-compliance with Legal Services Team 
  

TG/19/00069/ 
CONSRV 
(Sue Payne) 

17 Nettleton 
Avenue 
Tangmere 
 

Breach of condition -
retention of amenity 
land 

09.01.20 BCN TG/21 issued 
Appeal against refusal of planning application 19/01532/FUL 
23.10.20 – Planning appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 28.01.21 
Planning application 20/03130/DOM submitted to change the 
use of the land which was refused and an appeal lodged. 
09.11.21 – Appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 09.02.2022 
04.04.22 – A legal opinion has been sought in to the legality 
of the planning permission (TG/99/01811/OUT) as queried by 
the owners solicitor. Advised that the Council will look to 
prosecute for non-compliance as the planning permission is 
considered to be lawful. 

P
age 158



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WE/16/00191/ 
CONCOU 
(Shona Archer) 

Unit 2 
Land north of 
Cemetery Lane 
Woodmancote 

Without planning 
permission material 
change of use of the 
land to a mixed for 
open storage of 
vehicles and use as a 
HGV Operating Centre 
 

24.07.17 EN WE/39 issued 
Appeal ongoing – Written Representations 
New compliance date 02.01.2020 
7.1.2020 – it is reported that the use is continuing. To be 
checked on site and prosecution proceedings taken if 
confirmed 
11.6.20 – planning application WE/19/03206/FUL Refused 
and appeal lodged 
23.10.20 – consideration of a prosecution is held in abeyance 
pending the appeal being determined 
30.09.21 – appeal remains in progress 
04.01.22 – appeal Dismissed.  
13.04.22 – owner considering future use of the land. Letter to  
be sent to request timescale for the site to be cleared. 
 

WE/13/00163/ 
CONWST 
(Shona Archer) 
 

The Old Army 
Camp 
Cemetery Lane 
Woodmancote 
Westbourne 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of the land to use 
as a civil engineering 
contractor’s yard 

10.04.18 EN WE/40 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry date amended to 14.09.21 
Sep 21 - Public Inquiry suspended to due illness of Inspector 
Jan 22 – Public Inquiry suspended due to illness on 
appellant’s team 
Proposed reconvened 19/20 May 2022 
 

 

P
age 159



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WE/13/00163/ 
CONWST 
(Shona Archer) 
 

The Old Army 
Camp 
Cemetery Lane 
Woodmancote 
Westbourne 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of land for storage 
of portable site office 
cabins, container 
cabins, portable toilet 
blocks and commercial 
vehicles 
 

10.04.18 EN WE/41 issued 
Sep 21 - Public Inquiry suspended to due illness of Inspector 
Jan 22 – Public Inquiry suspended due to illness on 
appellant’s team 
Proposed reconvened 19/20 May 2022 
 

WE/13/00163/ 
CONWST 
(Shona Archer) 
 

The Old Army 
Camp 
Cemetery Lane 
Woodmancote 
Westbourne 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use, storage of skips, 
building materials, 
scaffolding, lifting 
platforms, storage 
racks, engine parts, 
commercial vehs, 
HGV’s, redundant 
vehicles and truck 
bodies 
 

10.04.18 EN WE/42 issued 
Sep 21 - Public Inquiry suspended to due illness of Inspector 
Jan 22 – Public Inquiry suspended due to illness on 
appellant’s team 
Proposed reconvened 19/20 May 2022 
 

WE/17/00333/ 
CONMHC 
(Tara Lang) 

Land at Home 
Paddock Stables 
Hambrook Hill 
North 
Hambrook 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of the land to a 
mixed us comprising 
equine and the 
stationing of a 
shepherd’s hut 
 

27.06.18 WE/44 issued 
14.01.20 – Appeal dismissed. New compliance date 14.01.21 
29.01.21 – date for compliance deferred to 31.03.21 
22.04.21 – date for compliance deferred to 30.06.2021 
19.07.21 – Property now for sale. Owner has requested 
additional time to comply but advised as to prosecution 
01.10.2021 – Owner informed that non compliance will result 
in prosecution  
17.01.2022 – prosecution papers to be drawn up for 
consideration by legal 

P
age 160



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

17.02.22 – prosecution papers forwarded to Legal Services 

P
age 161



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WE/17/00403/ 
CONENG 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South West 
of Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Hambrook 

Without planning 
permission, the 
erection of fencing and 
entrance gates, wing 
walls and piers and 
raised gravel banks 
containing wooden 
sleepers 
 

06.08.18 EN WE/46 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
13.08.19 – appeal dismissed and the notice is upheld 
New compliance date 13.11.19 
10.01.2020 – Works to remove the walls, gates and pillars 
has commenced. Site visit required post COVID-19 
24.07.20 – site visit carried out. Works to comply with EN still 
not completed. Consider prosecution for non-compliance 
21.10.20 – Owner has confirmed his intention to comply with 
the Enforcement Notice. He requires advice on type of fence 
and gates acceptable in this location. Advised to submit an 
application for pre-application advice 
14.01.21 – Owner has confirmed most of the works have 
been done to comply with the EN. Site visit required 
22.04.21 – Owner has done most of the work to comply with 
Enforcement Notice. Part of the fence remains in situ. Officers 
now considering prosecution for the part of the notice not 
complied with 
19.07.21 – Consideration is to be given for prosecution for 
non-compliance with the part of the notice not complied with 
18.10.2021 – Further consideration of a prosecution for the 
fence required 
17.01.2022 – Prosecution papers to be drawn up for 
consideration by legal 
 

P
age 162



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WE/19/00117/ 
CONMHC 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land North of The 
Grange 
Woodmancote 
Lane 
Woodmancote 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of the land to the 
stationing of two mobile 
homes  for the purpose 
of human habitation 
 

15.01.20 EN WE/47 issued 
Appeal lodged – Hearing 25.11.20 
09.12.20 – enforcement notice upheld with variation 
New compliance date 09.09.21 
09.09.2021 – Residential use has ceased 
07.01.22 – Application with DM regarding the occupation of 
the Land for a temporary period of 3 years 
04.04.22 – invalid application returned 
13.04.22 – Site visit required to ascertain if the static caravan 
remains to be a site dayroom or if it is being used for 
residential occupation. 
 

WE/19/00217/ 
CONCOU 
(Steven Pattie) 
 

Land West of 4 
The Paddocks, 
Common Road, 
Hambrook, 
Westbourne 

Without planning 
permission the material 
change of use of the 
land to use as a 
residential caravan site 
 

03.02.21 EN WE/49 issued 
Appeal lodged – Hearing 07.09.21 
19.01.22 – appeal dismissed.   
New compliance date 19.07.22 

WE/19/00107/ 
CONMHC 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land at Jubilee 
Wood, Bridle Lane, 
Woodmancote, 
Hambrook 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the Land to use as a 
residential caravan site 
 

07.07.21 EN WE/50 issued 
Appeal decision awaited – Written Representation 

WE/19/00107/ 
CONMHC 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land at Jubilee 
Wood, Bridle Lane, 
Woodmancote, 
Hambrook 
 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the land to a use for 
recreational purposes 
 

07.07.21 EN WE/51 issued 
Appeal decision awaited – Written Representation 

P
age 163



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WE/21/00169/ 
CONDWE 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South of 
Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Westbourne 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of a two storey dwelling 
house 
 

13.07.21 EN WE/52 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry 

WE/21/00169/ 
CONDWE 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South of 
Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Westbourne 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of a timber dwelling 
house (east) 
 

13.07.21 EN WE/53 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry 

WE/21/00169/ 
CONDWE 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South of 
Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Westbourne 

Without planning 
permission the erection 
of a timber dwelling 
house (west) 
 

13.07.21 EN WE/54 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry 

WE/19/00176/ 
CONT 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land west of 4 The 
Paddocks 
Common Road 
Hambrook 
Westbourne 
 

Tree Replacement 
Notice 

11.08.21 WE/55 issued 
Compliance date 09.06.22 

WE/21/00169/ 
CONDWE 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South of 
Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Westbourne  
 

Without planning 
permission the material 
change of use of the 
land to residential use 
two storey dwelling 
house 
 

06.01.22 EN WE/57 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry 

P
age 164



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WE/21/00169/ 
CONDWE 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South of 
Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Westbourne  
 

Without planning 
permission the material 
change of use of the 
land to residential use 
timber dwelling house 
(east) 
 

06.01.22 EN WE/58 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry 

WE/21/00169/ 
CONDWE 
(Tara Lang) 

Land South of 
Racton View 
Marlpit Lane 
Westbourne  
 

Without planning 
permission the material 
change of use of the 
land to residential use 
timber dwelling house 
(west) 
 

06.01.22 EN WE/59 issued 
Appeal lodged – Public Inquiry 

WI/18/00100/ 
CONCOU 
(Steven Pattie) 
 

Land at Itchenor 
Park 
Itchenor 
Chichester 
 

Without planning 
permission, change of 
use of land to the 
storage of boats, boat 
hulls, moulds, frames, 
boat trailers, wooden 
pallets, metal cages, 
boxes, magazines and 
packaging 
 

29.07.19 EN WI/16 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written Representations 
07.09.20 - Appeal is dismissed 
New compliance date 07.03.21 
20.04.2021 – compliance check carried out. The vast majority 
of the work has been carried out 
21.04.21 - Letter sent requesting removal of remaining items. 
20.10.2021 – Further compliance check to be carried out 
before a view to closing or gathering evidence for a witness 
statement regarding any remaining items. 
13.04.22 – Consideration to be given to prosecution for not 
fully complying with the EN WI/16 

 

P
age 165



 

E:\Chichester\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\7\AI00011793\$uwgk1xqx.doc 

 

 

CON NO. 
(Case Officer) 

ADDRESS DETAILS OF BREACH Date of 
Notice 

COMMENTS 
EN = Enforcement Notice/BCN = Breach of Condition Notice 
HHRN = High Hedge Notice/TSN = Temporary Stop Notice 

SN = Stop Notice/HRN = Hedge Replacement Notice 
WW/16/00251/ 
CONCOU 
(Steven Pattie) 

Land East of Brook 
House 
Pound Road 
West Wittering 

Without planning 
permission, the 
material change of use 
of the wooden building 
to use as a single 
dwellinghouse 

14.01.20 EN WW/49 issued 
Appeal lodged – Written representation 
15.06.21 – Appeal dismissed 
New compliance date 15.10.21 
08.11.21 - Site visit carried out to check compliance. Unable 
to establish if the breach had ceased as curtains were closed. 
17.01.22 - Letter out to owner requesting an accompanied SV 
and to set out the issues should compliance not have 
occurred 
13.04.22 – Consideration to be given to prosecuting for non-
compliance with EN WW/49 

 
 
 

P
age 166


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interests
	5 CC/21/02880/ADV  48 East Street Chichester PO19 1HX
	6 CC/21/02893/FUL 48 East Street Chichester PO19 1HX
	7 SI/21/02786/FUL Land South Of Telephone Exchange  Selsey Road Sidlesham PO20 7NG
	8 LX/20/01977/FUL Land West Of Guildford Road Loxwood West Sussex
	9 Chichester District Council Schedule of Planning Appeals, Court and Policy Matters
	10 South Downs National Park Authority Schedule of Planning Appeals, Court and Policy Matters
	11 Schedule of Contraventions

